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United States
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number (1-14588)

NORTHEAST BANCORP

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Maine 01-042506¢€
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
500 Canal Street, Lewiston, Maine 04240
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:
(207) 786-3245

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) d¢fie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registere
Voting Common Stock, $1.00 par val NASDAQ

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tiie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 d¢earities Act.  YesOl No ™
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. YesO No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sewtl3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act (84L8uring the preceding 12 months (or
such shorter period that the registrant was reduadile such reports), and (2) has been subgestich filing requirements for the past 90 day¥es M No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ndsnitted electronically and posted on its corpoWétbsite, if any, every Interactive Data File regdito be submitted and posted pursuant
to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of thisptks) during the preceding 12 months (or for suwbrter period that the registrant was requiredutinst and post such files). YeR®l
No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§2®% of this chapter) is not contained herein, wilidhot be contained, to the best of
registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or imfoation statements incorporated by reference inIRaf this Form 10-K or any amendment to thisfol0-K. ™

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantler@e accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting comp&wse the definitions of “large accelerated
filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large Accelerated File O Accelerated filel O

Non-accelerated file O Smaller Reporting Compat )

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes O No ™
The aggregate market value of the registrant’sngadind non-voting common stock held by non-aféi&atcomputed by reference to the last reported paiee of the registrant’s voting
common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on Decen@ig 2011 was approximately $30,624,300.

As of September 1, 2012, the registrant had oudstgrd,307,127 shares of voting common stock, $pa0salue per share, and 1,076,314 shares of atimgwcommon stock, $1.00 par
value per share.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s proxy statement fer 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be heldlovember 28, 2012 are incorporated by referendeins 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of Part
11l of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The regésit intends to file such proxy statement with teeBities and Exchange Commission no later thanda®8 after the end of its fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012.
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A Note About Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains certain “forward-looking stagnts” within the meaning of Section 27A of the @ées Act of 1933, as amended and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended, such as statements relating to @undil condition, prospective results of
operations, future performance or expectations)glabjectives, prospects, loan loss allowancewsiBg simulation of changes in interest
rates, capital spending, finance sources and reveowrces. These statements relate to expectaboesrning matters that are not historical
facts. Accordingly, statements that are based amagement’s projections, estimates, assumptionsjualgghents constitute forward-looking
statements. These forward looking statements, wdnielbased on various assumptions (some of whecheyrond the Compars/tontrol), ma
be identified by reference to a future period aiqus, or by the use of forward-looking terminolagych as “believe”, “expect”, “estimate”,
“anticipate”, “continue”, “plan”, “approximately™jintend”, “objective”, “goal”, “project”, or othesimilar terms or variations on those terms, o
the future or conditional verbs such as “will”, “gia“should”, “could”, and “would”. In addition, ta Company may from time to time make
such oral or written “forward-looking statements*future filings with the Securities and Exchanganission (including exhibits thereto), in
its reports to shareholders, and in other commtinicga made by or with the approval of the Company.

Such forwardooking statements reflect our current views angegetations based largely on information currentdgilable to our manageme!
and on our current expectations, assumptions, pétisnates, judgments, and projections about osinlkss and our industry, and they involve
inherent risks and uncertainties. Although the Canypbelieves that these forward-looking statemardsased on reasonable estimates and
assumptions, they are not guarantees of futur@peaince and are subject to known and unknown nisksertainties, contingencies, and other
factors. Accordingly, the Company cannot give yay assurance that our expectations will in facuoar that our estimates or assumptions
will be correct. The Company cautions you that alctasults could differ materially from those exgsed or implied by such forward-looking
statements as a result of, among other factorgatters referenced in this report under Item 1Risk Factors”; changes in interest rates;
competitive pressures from other financial inskitus; the effects of a continuing deterioratioméneral economic conditions on a national
basis or in the local markets in which the Compaperates, including changes which adversely alfeatowers’ ability to service and repay
our loans; changes in loan defaults and chargeat#f; changes in the value of securities and atbssts, adequacy of loan loss reserves, or
deposit levels necessitating increased borrowirfgrid loans and investments; increasing governmegntlation, such as the Dodd-Frank Wall
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act; thetrisk we may not be successful in the implememadfoour business strategy; the risk that
intangibles recorded in the Company’s financialesteents will become impaired; and changes in asangpused in making such forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statesiepeak only as of the date of this report andCinapany does not undertake any
obligation to update or revise any of these forwlamking statements to reflect events or circumstaroccurring after the date of this report ol
to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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PART |

Item 1. Business
Overview

Northeast Bancorg‘we,” “our,” “us,” “Northeast” or the “Company”), daine corporation chartered in April 1987, is ak&olding company
registered with the Board of Governors of the FaldBeserve System (“Federal Reserve”) under thé Bendding Company Act of 1956, as
amended. The Company’s primary subsidiary and pahasset is its wholly-owned banking subsididgrtheast Bank (the “Bank” or
“Northeast Bank”), which has ten banking branchidge Bank, which was originally organized in 1872ddaine-chartered mutual savings
bank and was formerly known as Bethel Savings BaSkB., is a Maine state-chartered bank and a meailitke Federal Reserve System. As
such, the Company and the Bank are currently sutma@be regulatory oversight of the Federal Resamnd the State of Maine Bureau of
Financial Institutions (the “Bureau”).

On December 29, 2010, the merger of the CompanyatiziFormation LLC, a Delaware limited liability sgoany (“FHB”), was
consummated. As a result of the merger, the sungiegbmpany received a capital contribution of $I6iion (in addition to the approximate
$13.1 million in cash consideration paid to forrakareholders), and the former members of FHB dbligly acquired approximately 60% of
the Company'’s outstanding common stock. The Compaplied the acquisition method of accounting,@scdbed in Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC") 805Business CombinatiorfsASC 805”) to the merger, which represents an &ition by FHB of Northeast, with
Northeast as the surviving compa

In connection with the transaction, as part ofrégulatory approval process, the Company and tm&k Beade certain commitments to the
Federal Reserve and the Bureau, the most signifafamhich are (i) to maintain a Tier 1 leveragéaaf at least 10%, (ii) to maintain a total
risk-based capital ratio of at least 15%, (iii)itoit purchased loans to 40% of total loans, (vfund 100% of the Company’s loans with core
deposits (defined as non-maturity deposits andbrokered insured time deposits), and (v) to holeercial real estate loans (including
owner-occupied commercial real estate) to withiQ%Mmf total risk-based capital. The Company and®hek are currently in compliance with
all commitments to the Federal Reserve and thedure

As of June 30, 2012, the Company, on a consolidaasis, had total assets of $669.2 million, toegdasbits of $422.2 million, and stockholders'
equity of $119.1 million. The Company gathers tedaposits through its Community Banking Divisiofvanking offices in Maine and through
its online affinity deposit program, ableBankingiginates loans through its Community Banking Dimig and purchases performing
commercial real estate loans at a discount thraisgboan Acquisition and Servicing Group (“LASGMhe Company operates the Community
Banking Division, with ten full-service branchesyéstment centers in certain of those branchesthaed loan production offices, from the
Bank’s headquarters in Lewiston, Maine. The Compargrates ableBanking and the LASG from its officeBoston, Massachusetts.

In August of 2011, the Company sold the custonsts lnd certain other assets of its insurance ggéwision. Refer to Item 7.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations — Businesg&jya for additional information on
the sale of insurance assets in August 2011.

In May of 2012, the Company raised net proceed®58f7 million through the sale of shares of its own stock. Refer to Item 7.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations — Financial ditton” for addition information on
the common stock offering in May 2012.

Unless the context otherwise requires, refereneesiito the Company include the Company and lisidiary on a consolidated basis.
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Strategy

The Company’s goal is to prudently grow its fraisehiwhile maintaining sound operations and riskagament, by implementing the
following strategies:

Measured growth of the purchased loan portfi. The Company’s Loan Acquisition and Servicing Grqurchases performing commercial
real estate loans, on a nationwide basis, at auligdrom their outstanding principal balancesdo@ng yields higher than those normally
achieved on our originated loan portfolio.

Loans are purchased on a nationwide basis fromietyaf sources, including banks, insurance congmrinvestment funds and government
agencies, either directly or indirectly throughraker. We expect that loans purchased by our Loaguisition and Servicing Group will,
subject to compliance with applicable regulatorynotitments, represent an increasing percentagerdbtal loan portfolio in the future.

Focus on core deposi. The Company offers a full line of deposit produitt customers in the Community Banking Divisiomarket area
through its ten-branch network. In addition, weergty launched our online affinity deposit prograhleBanking, a division of Northeast
Bank. One of the Company’s strategic goals is ldeRanking to provide an additional channel througtich to raise core deposits to fund the
acquisition of loans by the Loan Acquisition anchv&eang Group.

Continuing our community banking traditionhe Community Banking Division retains a high degoé local autonomy and operational
flexibility to better serve its customers. The Coaomity Banking Division’s focus on sales and senigcexpected to allow us to attract and
retain core deposits in support of balance sheettty; and to continue to generate new loans, pdatily through the efforts of the residential
mortgage origination team.

Market Area and Competition

We operate our Community Banking Division, with felt-service branches, four investment centerstaneke loan production offices, from
our headquarters in Lewiston, Maine. We operateBdotking and the Loan Acquisition and Servicing @prérom our offices in Boston,
Massachusetts. The Community Banking Division’sianiy market area, which covers the western andhsmrttral regions of the State of
Maine, is characterized by a diverse economy taataxperienced an economic decline in recent yd&sencounter significant competition in
our Community Banking Division market area in makioans, attracting deposits, and selling othetarner products and services. Our
Maine-based competitors include savings banks, commdraiats, credit unions, mutual funds, insurance nigs, brokerage and investm
banking companies, finance companies, and othanéial intermediaries operating in Maine. Many of primary competitors there have
substantially greater resources, larger establishetbmer bases, higher lending limits, extensrem¢h networks, numerous ATMs and gre
advertising and marketing budgets. They may al&r gkrvices that we do not currently provide.

The Loan Acquisition and Servicing Group has aamatide scope in its loan purchasing and servicitiyidies, and competes with regional
banks, private equity funds operating nationwidé atimited number of community banks when biddimigperforming commercial loans.
ableBanking is currently focused on gathering dépdlsrough its pilot program in the Greater Boséwmea of Massachusetts. ableBanking
competes with banks and credit unions, as weltlasrplarger, online direct banks having a natiagrath.

Lending Activities
General

We conduct our loarelated activities through two primary channels: Gammunity Banking Division and our Loan Acquigitiand Servicin
Group. Our Community Banking Division originateats directly to consumers
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and businesses located primarily in its market arédaine and New Hampshire. Our Loan Acquisitionl &ervicing Group purchases
primarily performing commercial real estate loamsa nationwide basis, at a discount from theistaunding principal balances, producing
yields higher than those normally achieved on then@any's originated loan portfolio. At June 30, 2012 cofr total loan portfolio of

$356.3 million, $271.8 million, or 76.3%, was origied in the Community Banking Division and $84iliam, or 23.7%, was purchased by
our Loan Acquisition and Servicing Group. We expéet loans purchased by our Loan Acquisition aed/i8ing Group will, subject to
compliance with applicable regulatory commitmengpresent an increasing percentage of our total poatfolio in the future.

We individually underwrite the loans that we origfi@ and all loans that we purchase. Our loan undérgvpolicies are reviewed and approy
annually by our board of directors. Each loan, réigss of whether it is originated or purchasedstmeet underwriting criteria set forth in our
lending policies and the requirements of applicddaeling regulations of our federal and state ragus. We typically retain servicing rights

all loans that we originate or purchase, exceptdeidential loans that we originate and sell simgi released in the secondary market.

Community Banking Division

Originated Loan Portfolia Our originated loan portfolio consists primarif/loans to consumers and businesses in our ContynBanking
Division’s primary market area.

* Residential Mortgage Loar. We originate single-family residential mortgagars secured by owner-occupied property, and
generally sell any such fixed rate loans into teeosdary market. We also offer home equity loamktanme equity lines of credit,
which are secured by first or second mortgagesnen t four-family owner-occupied properties, artdch are held on our balance
sheet. At June 30, 2012, originated residentialdaautstanding totaled $133.6 million, or 37.5%atél loans. Of the residential
mortgages we held for investment at June 30, 28d@oximately 46.9% were adjustable rate. Includa@sidential loans are hol
equity lines of credit and other second mortgagasoaggregating approximately $42.7 milli

« Commercial Real Estate LoangVe originate multi-family and other commercialrestate loans secured by property located
primarily in our Community Banking Division’s markarea. At June 30, 2012, commercial real estasl@utstanding were
$100.2 million, or 28.1% of total loans. Althoudtetlargest commercial real estate loan originajedus Community Banking
Division had a principal balance of $3.0 millionJaine 30, 2012, the majority of the commercial esshte loans originated by our
Community Banking Division had principal balancesd than $500 thousar

» Commercial Business Loan&/e originate commercial business loans, includergtloans, lines of credit and equipment and
receivables financing to businesses located priynariour Community Banking Division’s market areg. June 30, 2012,
commercial business loans outstanding were $19l®mior 5.5% of total loans. At June 30, 201Zrhwere 235 commercial
business loans outstanding with an average prihbgdance of $89 thousand. The largest of thesenential business loans had a
principal balance of $1.9 million at June 30, 2C

» Consumer Loand\e originate, on a direct basis, automobile, bodtr@creational vehicle loans. At June 30, 2018sumer loans
outstanding were $17.1 million, or 4.8% of totadns.

» Construction Loans=rom time to time, we originate residential constlen loans to finance the construction of singesfly,
owner-occupied homes. At June 30, 2012, constructionsl@atstanding were $1.2 million, or 0.3% of totaris.

Underwriting of Originated LoansResidential loans originated for sale in the s€emy market are underwritten in accordance wigh th
standards of the Federal National Mortgage Assiociathe Federal Home Loan

6



Table of Contents

Mortgage Corporation, or other purchasing agenay.derwriting and approval process for all oflo@ns originated by our Community
Banking Division is as follows:

* Most of our originated loans are sourced througklaionship between a loan officer at the ComnyuB#nking Division and the
borrower.

» After a loan officer has taken basic informatioonfrthe borrower and structured a loan product,isiemrproposal is submitted to
two senior managers, one from the lending departarech one from the credit department. Each profédeback to the loan officer
and, if appropriate, authorize the officer to pextevith underwriting

* The Community Banking Division’s credit departmebtains comprehensive information from the borroamd third parties, and
conducts a thorough verification and analysis eftibrrower information, which is assembled intingle underwriting package
that is submitted for final approvi

» Loans of $500 thousand or more (determined onagioekhip basis) require approval from the ComnyB#nking Division Credit
Committee, which is comprised of senior managets®Community Banking Division and other seniomiagers of Northeast
Bank. Loans of less than $500 thousand (deternonealrelationship basis) require approval from designated senior manage

Loan Acquisition and Servicing Group

General. Our Loan Acquisition and Servicing Group purclsagemarily performing commercial loans securedrimpmeproducing collatera
and from time to time may also originate commeritiahs on a nationwide basis. Although the Bangégal lending limit was $15.2 million at
June 30, 2012 (equal to 20% of Northeast Bank'séa&lgpus surplus), our credit policy currently teigs prior Board approval for the purchase
of a loan with an initial investment greater th&@%dof the Company'’s tier 1 capital, determined @alationship basis. Since the merger, we
have focused primarily on loans with balances betw&l.0 million and $3.0 million. Loans are pur@ten a nationwide basis from a variety
of sources, including banks, insurance companiegstment funds and government agencies, eithecttiiror indirectly through a broker. We
seek to build a loan portfolio that is diverse wiéilspect to geography, loan type and collatera.t@f the loans purchased by our Loan
Acquisition and Servicing Group that were outstagdis of June 30, 2012, $80.5 million, or 95.3%sgsted of commercial real estate loans.

Since the inception of the Loan Acquisition andv&ng Group through June 30, 2012, we have pumdhésans for an aggregate investmel
$102.4 million, of which, $101.8 million was purateal during fiscal 2012. As of June 30, 2012, theaidhprincipal balance of purchased lo
(on a relationship basis) ranged from $37 thousar$8.6 million, with an average of $1.1 milliomdawere secured by retail, industrial, mixed

use, multi-family and office properties in 24 state

The following table shows the composition of pusddiloans from inception of the Loan Acquisitiom &ervicing Group through June 30,
2012 by the amount of our initial investment.

Percent
Investment siz Investmen of Total
(Dollars in
thousands
$0- $500 $ 14,67 14.32%
$500- $1,000 18,43: 18.0(%
$1,000- $2,000 21,68¢ 21.1&%
$2,000- $3,000 13,26¢ 12.9¢%
$3,000- $4,000 6,27( 6.12%
Greater than $4,0C 28,08« 27.42%
$102,41¢ 100.0(%
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The following tables show the composition of then@any’s initial investments in purchased loans finoeption of the LASG through
June 30, 2012 by location and type of collateral.

Percent Percent
Collateral Type Investmen of Total State Investmen of Total
(Dollars in (Dollars in
thousands thousands
Retail $ 26,46 25.84% CA $ 25,73 25.1%
Mixed Use 11,88 11.61% FL 12,61 12.31%
Industrial 13,63¢ 13.31% NY 9,43¢ 9.21%
Multifamily 10,10¢ 9.87% PA 7,022 6.8€%
1-4 Family 3,95¢ 3.8% WI 6,80( 6.64%
Office 12,55¢ 12.26% LA 5,64¢ 5.51%
Self Storage 2,62¢ 2.56% IL 4,331 4.22%
Hospitality 15,39( 15.0% IN 3,19¢ 3.12%
Other 5,791 5.6€% All other 27,64¢ 26.99%
$102,41¢ 100.00%% $102,41¢ 100.0(%

Loan Purchase StrategieOur Loan Acquisition and Servicing Group’s loanghasing strategy involves the acquisition of conuia¢foans,
typically secured by real estate or other busiasssts located throughout the United States. Tha Baquisition and Servicing Group
includes a team of credit analysts, real estatlystsaservicing specialists and legal counsel witensive experience in the loan acquisition

business.

We acquire performing commercial loans typicallyaatiscount to their unpaid principal balances. /e acquire loans on a nationwide
basis, we seek to avoid significant concentrativary geographic region or in any one collatenaétyWe do not seek acquisition opportunitie:
where the primary collateral is land, constructiongesidential property, although in a very lirditeumber of cases, loans secured by such
collateral may be included in a pool of otherwigsidable loans.

We focus on servicing released, whole loan or [gaticipation transactions so that we can contrelrhanagement of our portfolio through
experienced asset management professionals. Paccluans can be acquired as a single relationstiprabined with other borrowers in a
larger pool. We generally avoid small average badaransactions (i.e. less than $250 thousandjaltie relatively higher operational and
opportunity costs of managing and underwriting ¢hessets. Loans are bid to a minimal acceptable t@ematurity based on the overall risk of
the loan, including expected repayment terms aeditiderlying collateral value. Updated loan-to-ealatios and loan terms both influence the
amount of discount the Bank requires in determimithgther a loan meets the Bank’s guidelines. Wenadichieve actual results in excess of

our minimal acceptable yield to maturity when anldaprepaid.

Since the inception of the Loan Acquisition andv&#ng Group through June 30, 2012, we have purdhésans with unpaid principal
balances of $125.5 million for aggregate purcha&sef $102.4 million, representing an averagealist across the portfolio of 18.4%.

Percent
Investment as a % of Unpaid Principal Bala Investmen of Total
(Dollars in
thousands
0% - 60% $ 1,961 1.91%
60%- 70% 6,93¢ 6.71%
70%- 80% 21,08¢ 20.5%
80%- 90% 32,38 31.62%
90%- 100% 40,05( 39.11%
$102,41¢ 100.0(%
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Secondary Market for Commercial Loa@mmercial whole loans are typically sold eitheedily by sellers or through loan sale advisors.
Because a central database for commercial whofesldaes not exist, we attempt to compile our owtistics by both polling major loan sale
advisors to obtain their aggregate trading volumetaacking the deal flow that we see directly aiproprietary database. This data reflects
only a portion of the total market, as commerciable loans are sold in private direct sales orughoother loan sale advisors not included in
our surveys. In recent years, the ratio of perfagroans to total loans in the market has incredsechuse, we believe, sellers have worked
through their most troubled, non-performing loansui@ looking to minimize the discount they woutdeive in a secondary transaction. While
the recent economic crisis has led to a high lef/élading volume, we expect the market to remativa in times of economic prosperity, as
sellers tend to have additional reserve capacigeliatheir unwanted and troubled assets. Furthexywee believe that the continued
consolidation of the banking industry will creagesndary market activity as acquirers often sefl-swategic borrowing relationships or asset:
that create excess loan concentrations.

Underwriting of Purchased LoandNe review many loan purchase opportunities amdneence underwriting on a relatively small perceatag
of them. During fiscal 2012, we reviewed approxiehatl23 transactions representing loans with $illisi in unpaid principal balance. Of
those transactions that we reviewed, we placedibi@6 transactions representing loans with $2llianiin unpaid principal balance.
Ultimately, we closed 27 transactions in which weghased a total of 105 loans with $124.6 milliorunpaid principal balance for an
aggregate purchase price of $101.8 million, or &ld the unpaid principal balance.

Each of our purchased loans is individually undétem by a team of in-house, seasoned analystsébting considered for approval. Prior to
commencing underwriting, each loan or portfolidagns is analyzed for its performance charactesstoan terms, collateral quality, and price
expectations. We also consider whether the logodfolio of loans would make our total purchaseal portfolio more or less diverse with
respect to geography, loan type and collateral.type opportunity is underwritten once it has bigiemtified as fitting our investment
parameters. While the extent of underwriting magy\@sed on investment size, procedures generallyde the following:

* Aloan analyst reviews and analyzes financial statets and third party research, including cregibres and other data with resp
to the borrower, guarantors, corporate sponsoraaganajor tenants, in order to assess credit

* Anin-house attorney makes a determination regardinguhéty of loan documentation and enforceabilitya#n terms

* Anin-house real estate specialist performs a lget@ivaluation of all real estate collateral, inibhg canvassing local market
experts, conducting original market research femds and sale and lease comparables, and creatiétea valuation that is based
on current data reflecting what we believe aremetrends

* An environmental assessment is performed on réatleesollateral

* A property inspection is performed on all real estollateral securing a loan, focusing on sevenatacteristics, including, among
other things, the physical quality of the propedyrrent occupancy, general quality and occupantyimthe neighborhood, market
position and nearby property listing

» A detailed underwriting package containing the lssof all this analysis and information is assesdbhnd reviewed by a separate
credit analyst on our team before being submitbedpproval by the Loan Acquisition and Servicingp@ Credit Committee

Collateral Valuation.The estimated value of the real property collateiral the loan is determined by the Loan Acquisitamd Servicing
Group’s inhouse real estate group, which considers, amorag €ahtors, the type of property, its conditiorgdtion and its highest and best
in its marketplace. An inspection is conductedtlfier real property securing all loans bid upon, famall loans that represent an investment in
excess of $1.0 million, members of the Loan Acdiasiand Servicing Group typically conduct a peedaite inspection.
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We generally view cash flow from operations asghimary source of repayment on purchased loansLdhe Acquisition and Servicing
Group analyzes the current and likely future césivg generated by the collateral to repay the l8dso considered are minimum debt service
coverage ratios, consisting of the ratio of netrafieg income to total principal and interest paptseFor example, our credit policy provides
that the debt service coverage ratio for a purahasenmercial real estate loan generally shouldoedess than 120 percent of the monthly
principal and interest payments resulting from-amertization of the Bank’s basis, at a marketregerate.

Loan Pricing.In determining the amount that we are willing td b acquire individual loans or loan pools, thehad\cquisition and Servicing
Group considers the following:

» the collateral securing the loe

» the geographic locatiol

» the financial resources of the borrower or guananibany;

» the recourse nature of the loi

» the age and performance of the lo

» the length of time during which the loan has perfance in accordance with its repayment te
» the yield expected to be earned; i

e servicing restrictions, if an

In addition to the factors listed above and degpiéefact that purchased loans are typically periog loans, the Loan Acquisition and
Servicing Group also estimates the amount that ae r@alize through collection efforts or foreclasand sale of the collateral, net of
expenses, and the length of time and costs reqtoredmplete the collection or foreclosure prodagbe event a loan becomes nuerforming
or is non-performing at the time of purchase.

Approvals All loan purchases must be approved by the Loarubitipn and Servicing Group Credit Committee. T¢agnmittee is comprised
of members of the executive management team arnadrseanagement from the Loan Acquisition and Séng&roup. The committee
discusses all loans on an individual basis. Loaguisition and Servicing Group Credit Committee awat of a purchased loan with an initial
investment greater of $500 thousand must includetiproval of our Chief Executive Officer, Chieh&ncial Officer or the Chief Executive
Officer’s designee. Our credit policy currently uégs prior Board approval for the purchase ofamlwith an initial investment greater than
10% of the Company'’s tier 1 capital, determinechaelationship basis.

Loan Servicin¢. We conduct all loan servicing with an in-housaneof experienced asset managers who actively neathagoan portfolio.
Asset managers initiate and maintain regular bograentact, and ensure that the loan credit arsalysiccurate. Collateral valuations, prop
inspections, and other collateral characteristiesupdated periodically as a result of our ongambouse real estate analysis. All asset
management activity and analysis is contained wighcentral database.

Competition for Purchased of Loar@ur Loan Acquisition and Servicing Group competesarily with a limited number of community
banks, regional banks and private equity fundsatpey nationwide. We believe that we have a corntipetadvantage in bidding against priv
equity funds on performing loans because thosesfgetherally have higher funding costs and, theeetuigher expectations for return on
investment than we do. Furthermore, many privatetgdunds do not compete for small balance comimaélgans and only pursue transacti
where the investment amount would exceed $20 milliiomore.

We believe that we have a competitive advantadpedding against many banks that purchase commeoaak in the secondary market
because we have a specialized group with experiermarchasing commercial real
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estate loans. Most banks we compete against armuaaity banks looking to acquire loans in their netrkhese banks usually have specific
criteria for their acquisition activities and dotmpursue pools with collateral or geographic diitgrdVe believe that there are a limited number
of banks pursuing a similar, nationwide commerigciah acquisition strategy.

Brokerage and Investment Advisory Services

The Bank’s investment brokerage division, Northéasancial Services (“Northeast Financial”), offars array of investment and financial
planning products and services through the Bantdadh network. Working in partnership witommonwealth Financial Network, a
registered investment adviseNortheast Financial's registered representaifs customers a broad range of investment praduct

Investment Activities

Our securities portfolio and short-term investmgntsvide and maintain liquidity, assist in managthg interest rate sensitivity of our balance
sheet, and serve as collateral for certain of dligations. Individual investment decisions are madsed on the credit quality of the
investment, liquidity requirements, potential reiircash flow targets, and consistency with ouetdibility management objectives.

Sources of Funds

Deposits have traditionally been the primary sowfcéne Bank’s funds for lending and other investinaurposes. In addition to deposits, the
Bank obtains funds from the amortization and prepaiyt of loans and mortgage-backed securities,alee sall or maturity of investment
securities, advances from the Federal Home Loak B&Boston (the “FHLB"), other term borrowings acash flows generated by operations

Deposits

Community Banking DivisionWe offer a full line of deposit products to custrs in the Community Banking Division’s marketathrough
our ten-branch network. Our deposit products codidemand deposit, NOW, money market, savingscantificate of deposit accounts. Our
customers access their funds through ATMs, MastéfcBebit Cards, Automated Clearing House fundscfedaic transfers) and checks. We
also offer telephone banking, Internet bankinggrmét bill payment and remote deposit capture sesvilnterest rates on our deposits are bas
upon factors that include prevailing loan demareghait maturities, alternative costs of funds,resérates offered by competing financial
institutions and other financial service firms, ajgheral economic conditions. At June 30, 2012hagecore deposits of $413.5 million,
representing 97.9% of total deposits. We define cmposits as non-maturity deposits and non-brdkeseired time deposits.

ableBanking In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, we launclogd online affinity deposit program, ableBankiaglivision of Northeast Bank.
The ableBanking savings platform is designed te givstomers the ability to generate payments teftigron-profit organizations of their
choice that are tagxempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal ReeeCode. When a new customer opens a savings@®digposit accoul
with ableBanking, we will remit $25 to a non-praditganization of the customer’s choice. Thereaftewill remit, annually, 25 basis points of
a customer’s average annual deposit balance to-groit organization of the customer’s choice. users will be able to manage their
accounts’ charitable designations on the ableBankiebsite, which is expected to include social eking tools to facilitate customers’
ability to raise funds for non-profit causes. Astpd the ableBanking pilot, we have formed parshgos with six norprofit organizations in tt
Boston area, which are featured on the ableBankatgsite atvww.ablebanking.comto highlight the needs in the Boston communitgt m
show how $25 can make a difference. At June 302 20& had $2.8 million in deposits through ableBagkWe believe that various
ableBanking features, including the program’s aiséimn with non-profit organizations, will enabls to attract more customers and cost-
effectively obtain additional core deposits, whichurn will support our growth.
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Borrowings

While we currently consider core deposits (definechon-maturity deposits and non-brokered insunee dleposits) as our primary source of
funding to support asset growth, advances fronttheB and other sources of wholesale funding renaaitmportant part of our liquidity
contingency planning. Northeast Bank may borrowaup0.0% of its total assets from the FHLB, andrtwings are typically collateralized by
mortgage loans and securities pledged to the FHtBune 30, 2012, we had $9.3 million available iednately and an additional

$278.5 million, subject to the purchase of addaidrHLB stock and the availability of additionallleteral, for advances from the FHLB.
Northeast Bank can also borrow from the FederaéResBank of Boston, with any such borrowing celtatized by consumer loans pledge
the Federal Reserve. Based on loans pledged aB0,2012, we had a total borrowing capacity frowm Federal Reserve of approximately
$369 thousand, none of which was outstanding.

For the foreseeable future we expect to rely lesBarrowings than other banks of similar size, lbseaof our regulatory commitment to fund
100% of our loans with core deposits, althoughatelability of FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank oSBm advances and other sources of
wholesale funding remain an important part of éguitlity contingency planning.

Recent Technology and Operational Enhancements

We have made recent investments in technology asimer service to develop new infrastructure fipstt the Loan Acquisition and
Servicing Group, ableBanking, and the Community kg Division. In addition, we invested in new sefire, hardware, and staffing to
support our growing Customer Contact Center in Iséovi, Maine, and to ensure that we will continudetver a high level of personal service
to our customers as we grow. We expect that fuhwestments in technology, customer service andatipmal support functions will genera
be proportionate to our growth.

Employees

As of June 30, 2012, the Company employed 197%tifuk and 12 part-time employees. The Company’s eyags are not represented by any
collective bargaining unit. The Company believest its relations with its employees are good.

Other Subsidiaries
At June 30, 2012, the Bank had three wholly-owneatbank subsidiaries:

* Northeast Bank Insurance Group, Ir“NBIG”). The insurance agency assets of NBIG wexlel ®n September 1, 2011. The entity
currently holds the real estate formerly usedsdrnrisurance agency busine

e 200 Elm Realty, LLC, which was established to haddimercial real estate acquired as a result of va@kouts.
« 500 Pine Realty, LLC, which was established to hekidential real estate acquired as a resultaf i@orkouts

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, ASI Datav&ags, Inc. (“ASI”), is an inactive corporate suliary. ASI initially provided data
processing services to the Company and its subigiarhe Company’s board transferred the asset®perations of ASI to the Bank in 1996.
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Supervision and Regulation

General

As a bank holding company registered under the B#riking Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHC#e Company is subject to
regulation and supervision by the Federal Resé&san FDIC-insured Maine-chartered bank and merabtire Federal Reserve System, the
Bank is subject to regulation and supervision leyRlederal Reserve, the Maine Bureau of Financsititions (the “BFI”) and the FDIC. To
the extent that the following information descrils¢gtutory or regulatory provisions, it is qualiian its entirety by reference to those particula
statutory provisions. Any change in applicable mwegulation may have a material effect on thartass and prospects of the Company. The
following discussion of certain of the materialreknts of the regulatory framework applicable toksaand bank holding companies is not
intended to be complete.

Financial Regulatory Reform Legislation

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetimn Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) comprehensivesfarmed the regulation of
financial institutions, products and services. Aather things, the Dodd-Frank Act:

grants the Federal Reserve increased supervistnmgrity and codifies the source of strength doetrisms discussed in more detail in
“—Source of Streng” below;

provides for new capital standards applicable éoGompany, as discussed in more detail in “—Capitlquacy and Safety and
Soundnes—Regulatory Capital Requireme” below;

modifies deposit insurance coverage, as discuss“—Capital Adequacy and Safety and Sound—Deposit Insuranc’ below;

bars banking organizations, such as the Compamy, éngaging in proprietary trading and from spoimgpand investing in hedge
funds and private equity funds, except as permitteger certain limited circumstances, as discusséd-Bank Holding Company
Regulatior” below;

established new corporate governance and proxjodis@ requirements, as discussed in “—Corporatee®ance and Executive
Compensatic” below;

established the Bureau of Consumer Financial Piote¢the“ CFPE"), as discussed i“*—Consumer Protection Regulat” below;
established new minimum mortgage underwriting staahsl for residential mortgages, as discuss¢‘—Mortgage Reforr” below;

authorizes the Federal Reserve to regulate integehtees for debit card transactions. The FederaéRe has issued a rule
governing the interchange fees charged on deldsoahich caps the fees a bank may charge on adsbitransactions and shifts
such interchange fees from a percentage of thedction amount to a per transaction fee. Altholghrtile does not directly apply
to institutions with less than $10 billion in asseharket forces may result in debit card issuéedl sizes adopting fees that comply
with this rule;

permits the payment of interest on business derdapdsit account:

established and empowered the Financial Stabiltgr€lght Council to designate certain activitiepasing a risk to the
U.S. financial system and recommend new or heiglitestandards and safeguards for financial institgtiengaging in such
activities; anc

established the Office of Financial Research, whiah the power to require reports from financiavises companies such as the
Company.

Bank Holding Company Regulation

Unless a bank holding company becomes a finanoldirig company under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act [(BA”) as discussed below, the
BHCA prohibits (with the exceptions noted belowthiis paragraph) a bank
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holding company from acquiring a direct or indiretterest in or control of more than 5% of the mgtshares of any company that is not a t
or a bank holding company. In addition, the BHCAMpbits a bank holding company from engaging diyeat indirectly in activities other

than those of banking, managing or controlling lsaokfurnishing services to its subsidiary bankswever, a bank holding company may
engage in, and may own shares of companies engagedain activities, that the Federal Reservemeines to be so closely related to
banking or managing and controlling banks so dmetocident thereto. In making such determinatitims Federal Reserve is required to weigt
the expected benefit to the public, including sfasdtors as greater convenience, increased conguetitigains in efficiency, against the
possible adverse effects, such as undue concemti@tresources, decreased or unfair competitionlicts of interests or unsafe or unsound
banking practices.

Under GLBA, bank holding companies are permittedffer their customers virtually any type of seevitat is financial in nature or incidental
thereto, including banking, securities underwritimgurance (both underwriting and agency), ancchwert banking. Under the Dodd-Frank
Act, however, a bank holding company and its &fils are prohibited from engaging in proprietaagitng and from sponsoring and investing
in hedge funds and private equity funds, expegeamitted under certain limited circumstances.rifeo to engage in financial activities under
GLBA, a bank holding company must qualify and regisvith the Federal Reserve as a “financial hadiompany” by demonstrating that
each of its bank subsidiaries is “well capitalizetiiell managed,” and has at least a “satisfactoaging under the Community Reinvestment
Act of 1977 (“CRA"). Although the Company believitat it meets the qualifications to become a fitarwlding company under GLBA, it
has not elected “financial holding company” statug, rather to retain its pre-GLBA bank holding quany regulatory status for the present
time. This means that the Company can engage sethctivities which are closely related to bankifige Company is required by the BHCA
to file an annual report and additional reportsures with the Federal Reserve. The Federal Resdseemakes periodic inspections of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The BHCA requires every bank holding company taobthe prior approval of the Federal Reserve leeifftomay acquire substantially all of
the assets of any bank, or ownership or contrangfvoting shares of a bank, if, after such actjaisiit would own or control, directly or
indirectly, more than five percent of the votin@eds of such bank. Additionally, as a bank holdiagpany, the Company is prohibited from
acquiring ownership or control of five percent cona of any class of voting securities of any conypidwat is not a bank, or from engaging in
activities other than banking or controlling baeksept where the Federal Reserve has determineditia activities are so closely related to
banking as to be a “proper incident thereto.”

Dividends

The Company is a legal entity separate and distinot the Bank. The revenue of the Company (onrarmaompany only basis) is derived
primarily from interest and dividends paid to itiby subsidiary bank. The right of the Company, eoxdsequently the right of shareholders of
the Company, to participate in any distributiorthed assets or earnings of any subsidiary througip&lyment of such dividends or otherwise is
necessarily subject to the prior claims of creditofrthe subsidiary (including depositors, in thse of its banking subsidiary), except to the
extent that certain claims of the Company in aitoedapacity may be recognized.

It is the policy of the Federal Reserve that baoklimng companies should pay dividends only outwfent earnings and only if, after paying
such dividends, the bank holding company would raradequately capitalized. The Federal Reserveheaauthority to prohibit a bank
holding company, such as the Company, from payivigehds if it deems such payment to be an unsafsmsound practice.

The Federal Reserve has the authority to use fits@ment powers to prohibit a bank from payingadiwds if, in its opinion, the payment of
dividends would constitute an unsafe or unsoundtime Federal law also prohibits the payment eidtinds by a bank that will result in the
bank failing to meet its applicable capital reqoients on a pro forma basis. Maine law requireapproval of the BFI for any dividend that

would reduce a bank’s capital below prescribedt8mi
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Source of Strength

Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the Company is requitesdrve as a source of financial strength for thekBin the event of the financial distress
of the Bank. This provision codifies the longstamppolicy of the Federal Reserve. In addition, eapital loans by a bank holding company to
any of its bank subsidiaries are subordinate tgp#yment of deposits and to certain other indelassinn the event of a bank holding
company’s bankruptcy, any commitment by the barldihg company to a federal bank regulatory agenanaintain the capital of a bank
subsidiary will be assumed by the bankruptcy trustied entitled to a priority of payment.

Certain Transactions by Bank Holding Companies witheir Affiliates

There are various statutory restrictions on themxto which bank holding companies and their hank subsidiaries may borrow, obtain cr:
from or otherwise engage in “covered transactiani#fi their insured depository institution subsidasr The Dodd-Frank Act amended the
definition of affiliate to include an investmentnfdi for which the depository institution or one tf affiliates is an investment adviser. An
insured depository institution (and its subsidigyimay not lend money to, or engage in coveredaetions with, its non-depository institution
affiliates if the aggregate amount of covered taatisns outstanding involving the bank, plus theppised transaction exceeds the following
limits: (a) in the case of any one such affiliates aggregate amount of covered transactions dhtluged depository institution and its
subsidiaries cannot exceed 10% of the capital stocksurplus of the insured depository institutieamg (b) in the case of all affiliates, the
aggregate amount of covered transactions of theédsdepository institution and its subsidiariesnta exceed 20% of the capital stock and
surplus of the insured depository institution. Bos purpose, “covered transactions” are definedthtute to include a loan or extension of
credit to an affiliate, a purchase of or investniargecurities issued by an affiliate, a purchdsaseets from an affiliate unless exempted by th
Federal Reserve, the acceptance of securitiesddsuan affiliate as collateral for a loan or exgien of credit to any person or company, the
issuance of a guarantee, acceptance or letteedit@n behalf of an affiliate, securities borrowior lending transactions with an affiliated that
creates a credit exposure to such affiliate, ceravdtives transaction with an affiliate that ce=at credit exposure to such affiliate. Covered
transactions are also subject to certain collas®alrity requirements. Covered transactions alsasaither types of transactions between a
bank and a bank holding company must be on magketstand not otherwise unduly favorable to theihgldompany or an affiliate of the
holding company. Moreover, Section 106 of the BH@Avides that, to further competition, a bank hojdcompany and its subsidiaries are
prohibited from engaging in certain tying arrangataen connection with any extension of creditskear sale of property of any kind, or
furnishing of any service.

Regulation of the Bank

As a Maine-chartered bank and member of the Fe&asérve System, the Bank is subject to the sugiervof and regulation by the BFI and
the Federal Reserve. Additionally, the Bank is sabjo the regulation and supervision of the FD$Ghee Bank’s insurer of deposits. This
supervision and regulation is for the protectiomepositors, the FDIC’s Deposit Insurance Fund E'Dland consumers, and is not for the
protection of the Company’ shareholders. The pproval of the Federal Reserve and the BFI isireduamong other things, for the Bank to
establish or relocate an additional branch offassume deposits, or engage in any merger, consolidaurchase or sale of all or substantially
all of the assets of any bank. Under the Dodd-Freetkthe Federal Reserve may directly examinesthissidiaries of the Company, including
the Bank.

Capital Adequacy and Safety and Soundness

Regulatory Capital Requiremer. The Federal Reserve has issued risk-based aedhtgy capital guidelines applicable to United State
banking organizations. In addition, the FederaldRes may from time to time require that a bankingaaization maintain capital above the
minimum levels, whether because of its financialditbon or actual or anticipated growth.
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The Federal Reserve risk-based guidelines deftheea-tier capital framework. Tier 1 capital fomligholding companies generally consists of
the sum of common stockholders’ equity, perpetualgored stock and trust preferred securities (lsattject to certain limitations and, in the
case of the latter, to specific limitations on Kired and amount of such securities which may beigexd as Tier 1 capital and certain additiona
restrictions described below), and minority intéses the equity accounts of consolidated subsisatess goodwill and other non-qualifying
intangible assets. Pursuant to the Dodd-FranktActt preferred securities issued after May 1902@idll not count as Tier 1 capital; however,
under the Dodd-Frank Act the Company’ currentlystariding trust preferred securities were grandfathéor Tier 1 eligibility. Under the
proposed Basel Il capital rules discussed belbe,Gompany’s currently outstanding trust prefesecurities would no longer qualify as

Tier 1 capital and would be subject to a ten yémsp-out period from the calculation of Tier 1 tapiTier 2 capital generally consists of
hybrid capital instruments, perpetual debt and ratorg convertible debt securities; perpetual prefi¢stock and trust preferred securities, to
the extent it is not eligible to be included asrTiecapital; term subordinated debt and intermeetietm preferred stock; and, subject to
limitations, general allowances for loan losses $im of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital less certainumegl deductions, such as investments in
unconsolidated banking or finance subsidiariesiesgnts qualifying total capital. Risk-based cdpé#tios are calculated by dividing Tier 1 and
total capital, respectively, by risk-weighted asséissets and off-balance sheet credit equivabmetassigned to one of four categories of risk-
weights, based primarily on relative credit riskeTminimum Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio is 4% #me minimum total riskased capital rat

is 8%. As of June 30, 2012, the Company’ Tier k-based capital ratio was 33.12% and its totalbiaked capital ratio was 33.34%. The
Company is currently considered “well capitalizentder all regulatory definitions.

In addition to the risk-based capital requiremetfts,Federal Reserve requires top-rated bank hpltbmpanies to maintain a minimum
leverage capital ratio of Tier 1 capital (defingdrbference to the riskased capital guidelines) to its average total cliisted assets of at le:
3.0%. For most other bank holding companies (inalgidhe Company), the minimum leverage capitabregi4.0%. Bank holding companies
with supervisory, financial, operational or manaajemeaknesses, as well as bank holding compahésate anticipating or experiencing
significant growth, are expected to maintain cdp#tios well above the minimum levels. The Compamgverage capital ratio as of June 30,
2012 was 19.91%.

The Federal Reserve’s capital adequacy standadsapply to statehartered banks which are members of the FedesdriRe System, such
the Bank. Moreover, the Federal Reserve has pratedgcorresponding regulations to implement théesy®f prompt corrective action
established by Section 38 of the Federal Deposiirance Act (“FDIA”). Under these regulations, aké “well capitalized” if it has: (i) a

total risk-based capital ratio of 10.0% or greaf@ra Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.0%gveater; (iii) a leverage capital ratio of 5.0% or
greater; and (iv) is not subject to any writtenesgnent, order, capital directive or prompt corkectction directive to meet and maintain a
specific capital level for any capital measure.ahkis “adequately capitalized” if it has: (1) éalaisk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or greater;
(2) a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 4.0% cgagjer; and (3) a leverage capital ratio of 4.0%reater (3.0% under certain circumstances) an
does not meet the definition of a “well capitalizeshk.”

The Federal Reserve also must take into considerdi) concentrations of credit risk; (i) inteteate risk; and (iii) risks from non-traditional
activities, as well as an institution’s ability imanage those risks, when determining the adequeaay iostitution’s capital. This evaluation will
be made as a part of the institution’s regulartgadad soundness examination. The Bank is curreothgidered well-capitalized under all
regulatory definitions.

Generally, a bank, upon receiving notice that itas adequately capitalized (i.e., that it is “urudgitalized”), becomes subject to the prompt
corrective action provisions of Section 38 of FOlfat, for example, (i) restrict payment of capdestributions and management fees,

(ii) require that the Federal Reserve monitor thedition of the institution and its efforts to rest its capital, (iii) require submission of a
capital restoration plan, (iv) restrict the growttthe institution’s assets and (v) require priegulatory approval of certain expansion
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proposals. A bank that is required to submit atehpéstoration plan must concurrently submit qranance guarantee by each company that
controls the bank. A bank that is “critically undapitalized” (i.e., has a ratio of tangible equdytotal assets that is equal to or less than 2.0%
will be subject to further restrictions, and getigraill be placed in conservatorship or receivepsivithin 90 days.

The Company has not elected, and does not expetgdp to calculate its risk-based capital requiats under either the “advanced” or
“standard” approach of the Basel Il capital accoiidse Basel Committee on Banking Supervision hss adleased new capital requirements,
known as Basel lll, setting forth higher capitajugements, enhanced risk coverage, a global Igeeratio, provisions for counter-cyclical
capital, and liquidity standards. The Federal Resalong with the other federal banking agendias,issued three joint proposed rules (the
“Proposed Capital Rules”) that implement the Bél$alapital standards and establish the minimumtehpequirements for banks and bank
holding companies required under the Dodd-Frank Adtitionally, the Proposed Capital Rules addtissrequirement under the Dodd-Frank
Act that references to credit ratings be removethfbank capital rules and other regulations. Thgritya of the provisions of the Proposed
Capital Rules apply to bank holding companies aatkb with consolidated assets of $500 million orensuch as the Company and the Bank
The Proposed Capital Rules establish a new cafstabased capital ratio, a minimum common equisr T capital ratio of 6.5% of risk-
weighted assets to be a “well capitalized” insiitnt and increase the minimum total Tier 1 capi#s#ib to be aWell capitalized institution fror

6 % to 8%. Additionally, the Proposed Capital Ruleguire that an institution establish a capitadsayvation buffer of common equity Tier 1
capital in an amount above the minimum risk-basggital requirements equal to 2.5% of total riskgitiassets. The Proposed Capital Rule
would revise certain capital definitions and, gafigr make the capital requirements more string€uatther, the Proposed Capital Rules would
increase the required capital for certain categarfeassets, including higher-risk residential mages, higherisk construction real estate lo:
and certain exposures related to securitizatiossadted above, the Proposed Capital Rules wouttiradie the treatment of trust preferred
securities as Tier 1 capital and requires the pbasef these instruments for bank holding compahigving under $15 billion in total
consolidated assets as of December 31, 2009, sutle £ompany, over a teear period; permitting the inclusion of 90% of trarying value

of such instruments in 2013, with annual 10% deswedn the includible amount through 2021, untistipreferred securities are fully phased-
out as Tier 1 capital on January 1, 2022.

The Proposed Capital Rules are expected to geeffeot on January 1, 2013, but banking organizatigauld not be required to be in full
compliance with the final version of the Proposegpital Rules until January 1, 2019. The ProposequtélaRules are subject to public
comment and further revision, and the final versibthe capital rules may differ from the Propo&apital Rules. Accordingly, the Company
is not yet in a position to determine the effecBakel 11l and the Proposed Capital Rules on ipitabrequirements.

Deposit InsuranceSubstantially all of the deposits of the Bank asured up to applicable limits by the DIF and argject to deposit
insurance assessments to maintain the DIF. The F&dAamended by the Federal Deposit Insurance iRefot and the Dodd-Frank Act,
requires the FDIC to set a ratio of deposit insoeareserves to estimated insured deposits of th& Bee insured up to applicable limits by the
DIF and are subject to deposit insurance premiuased upon a risk matrix that takes into accoursrk’s capital level and supervisory rating
(“CAMELS rating”). CAMELS ratings reflect the applble bank regulatory agency to applicable limjtéhe DIF and are subject to deposit,
management, earnings, liquidity and sensitivityisk. Assessment rates may also vary for certatititions based on long-term debt issuer
ratings, secured or brokered deposits. Pursuaghet®odd-Frank Act, deposit premiums are basedseata rather than insurable deposits. To
determine its actual deposit insurance premiungsBdmk computes the base amount on its averageltated assets less its average tangible
equity (defined as the amount of Tier 1 capital] @s applicable assessment rate. Assessmentraaigs from 2.5 to 9 basis points on the
broader assessment base for banks in the lowkstaisgory up to 30 to 45 basis points for bankkénhighest risk category.
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Pursuant to an FDIC rule issued in November 2088 Bank prepaid its quarterly risk-based assesserhe FDIC for the fourth quarter of
2009 and for all of 2010, 2011 and 2012 on Decer3theP009. The Bank recorded the entire amourtsqirepayment as a prepaid expense
that bears a zero percent risk weight for risk-Hassmital purposes. Each quarter, the Bank recmdsxpense for its regular quarterly
assessment for the quarter and a corresponding tydébe prepaid assessment until the asset iawestbd. The FDIC will not refund or collect
additional prepaid assessments because of a deaegsowth in deposits over this three year peritalvever, should the prepaid assessmen
not be exhausted after collection of the amountaiudune 30, 2013, the remaining amount of thegyment will be returned to the Bank. The
timing of any refund of the prepaid assessmentnuitlbe affected by the change in the deposit arste assessment calculation discussed
above. The Bank’s FDIC insurance expense total&@ $#dousand in fiscal 2012 and $615 thousand @afig011.

Pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act, FDIC deposit insaeshas been permanently increased from $100,08850,000 per depositor.
Additionally, the Dodd-Frank Act provides temporamylimited deposit insurance coverage for nonirsiebearing transactions accounts
beginning December 31, 2010, and ending Decemhe2@PR. This replaced the FDIC’s Transaction Ac¢dbnarantee Program, which
expired on December 31, 2010.

Under the FDIA, the FDIC may terminate deposit lsige upon a finding that the institution has ergag unsafe and unsound practices,
an unsafe or unsound condition to continue oparatior has violated any applicable law, regulatrafe, order or condition imposed by the
FDIC.

Safety and Soundness Standdide FDIA requires the federal bank regulatory agento prescribe standards, by regulations or ¢jniekg
relating to internal controls, information systeamsl internal audit systems, loan documentatiomicumderwriting, interest rate risk exposure,
asset growth, asset quality, earnings, stock vialuaind compensation, fees and benefits, and sihen operational and managerial standards
as the agencies deem appropriate. Guidelines atibgtthe federal bank regulatory agencies estagksteral standards relating to internal
controls and information systems, internal audétems, loan documentation, credit underwritinggriest rate exposure, asset growth and
compensation, fees and benefits. In general, theiskelines require, among other things, appropsggtems and practices to identify and
manage the risk and exposures specified in theelings. The guidelines prohibit excessive compémsas an unsafe and unsound practice
and describe compensation as excessive when thendésnuaid are unreasonable or disproportionatedséervices performed by an executive
officer, employee, director or principal stockhald@& addition, the federal banking agencies adbpégulations that authorize, but do not
require, an agency to order an institution thatleen given notice by an agency that it is nosgatig any of such safety and soundness
standards to submit a compliance plan. If, afténdpso notified, an institution fails to submit acceptable compliance plan or fails in any
material respect to implement an acceptable comg@iplan, the agency must issue an order direatitign to correct the deficiency and may
issue an order directing other actions of the typashich an undercapitalized institution is subj@eder the “prompt corrective action”
provisions of FDIA. See “—Regulatory Capital Reguirents” above. If an institution fails to complythvsuch an order, the agency may seek
to enforce such order in judicial proceedings aniipose civil money penalties.

Depositor PreferenceThe FDIA provides that, in the event of the “ligaiibn or other resolution” of an insured depositimstitution, the

claims of depositors of the institution, includitige claims of the FDIC as subrogee of insured degssand certain claims for administrative
expenses of the FDIC as a receiver, will have flyi@mver other general unsecured claims againsintéution. If an insured depository
institution fails, insured and uninsured depositafeng with the FDIC, will have priority in paymieahead of unsecured, non-deposit creditors
including depositors whose deposits are payablg amiside of the United States and the parent bafding company, with respect to any
extensions of credit they have made to such insdepository institution.

Real Estate Lending Standards

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvenet requires the federal bank regulatory agentieadopt uniform real estate lending
standards. The Federal Reserve has adopted regslatvhich establish
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supervisory limitations on loan-to-value (“LTV")tias in real estate loans by state-chartered btngtsare members of the Federal Reserve
System, such as the Bank. The regulations reqam&dto establish LTV ratio limitations within oelow the prescribed uniform range of
supervisory limits.

Activities and Investments of Insured State Banks

The powers of a Maine-chartered bank, such as émi,Bnclude provisions designed to provide Maiaaks with competitive equity to the
powers of national banks. GLBA includes a sectibthe FDIA governing subsidiaries of state banka #imgage in “activities as principal that
would only be permissible” for a national bank tmduct in a financial subsidiary. This provisiornmpés state banks, to the extent permitted
under state law, to engage in certain new actsyitiehich are permissible for subsidiaries of aritial holding company. Further, it expressly
preserves the ability of a state bank to retaiexdBting subsidiaries. Because Maine law expjigigtrmits banks chartered by the state to
engage in all activities permissible for federailyartered banks, the Bank is permitted to form islidn$es to engage in the activities authorizec
by GLBA. In order to form a financial subsidiarystate bank must be well-capitalized, and the $§tatd would be subject to certain capital
deduction, risk management and affiliate transaatides.

Consumer Protection Regulation

The Company and the Bank are subject to a numbfedefal and state laws designed to protect consuamal prohibit unfair or deceptive
business practices. These laws include the EqualiCDpportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act, Home @avship Protection Act, the Fair Credit
Reporting Act, as amended by the Fair and AccuCadelit Transactions Act of 2003 (“FACT Act”), GLBAhe Truth in Lending Act, CRA,
the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Real Estatde3nent Procedures Act, the National Flood InsceaAct and various state law
counterparts. These laws and regulations mandeatrtedisclosure requirements and regulate the mrainnwhich financial institutions must
interact with customers when taking deposits, ngkd@ns, collecting loans and providing other sasi Further, the Dodd-Frank Act
established the CFPB, which has the responsilbditynaking rules and regulations under the fedepasumer protection laws relating to
financial products and services. The CFPB alscahH@a®ad mandate to prohibit unfair or deceptive acid practices and is specifically
empowered to require certain disclosures to conssiara draft model disclosure forms. Failure to plymvith consumer protection laws and
regulations can subject financial institutions bdoecement actions, fines and other penalties.Féderal Reserve examines the Bank for
compliance with CFPB rules and enforces CFPB rwid#s respect to the Bank.

Mortgage Reform

The Dodd-Frank Act prescribes certain standardsniwetgage lenders must consider before makingideatial mortgage loan, including
verifying a borrower’s ability to repay such morggaloan. The Dodd-Frank Act also allows borroweradsert violations of certain provisions
of the Truth-in-Lending Act as a defense to forsal@ proceedings. Under the Dodd-Frank Act, pregsympenalties are prohibited for certain
mortgage transactions and creditors are prohilfited financing insurance policies in connectionhadtresidential mortgage loan or home
equity line of credit. The Dodd-Frank Act requirasrtgage lenders to make additional disclosures poithe extension of credit, in each
billing statement and for negative amortizatiomi®and hybrid adjustable rate mortgages. Additigntile DoddFrank Act prohibits mortgag
originators from receiving compensation based enéhms of residential mortgage loans and geneialiis the ability of a mortgage
originator to be compensated by others if compémsad received from a consumer.

Privacy and Customer Information Security

GLBA requires financial institutions to implementligies and procedures regarding the disclosur@apublic personal information about
consumers to nonaffiliated third parties. In gehahe Bank must provide its customers with an ahdiisclosure that explains its policies and
procedures regarding the disclosure of such
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nonpublic personal information and, except as etfser required or permitted by law, the Bank is jilsdbed from disclosing such information
except as provided in such policies and proced@EBA also requires that the Bank develop, implet@rd maintain a comprehensive wril
information security program designed to ensurestwirity and confidentiality of customer infornoati(as defined under GLBA), to protect
against anticipated threats or hazards to the sgaurrintegrity of such information; and to protegainst unauthorized access to or use of suc
information that could result in substantial haminzonvenience to any customer. The Bank is asaired to send a notice to customers
whose “sensitive information” has been compromisedauthorized use of this information is “reasblygpossible.” Most states, including
Maine, have enacted legislation concerning breachdata security and the duties of the Bank ipoese to a data breach. Congress continu
to consider federal legislation that would requiomsumer notice of data security breaches. Pursodhé FACT Act, the Bank must also
develop and implement a written identity theft ppetion program to detect, prevent, and mitigatatitietheft in connection with the opening
of certain accounts or certain existing account&lilonally, the FACT Act amends the Fair CredifpRging Act to generally prohibit a person
from using information received from an affiliaterhake a solicitation for marketing purposes tomsamer, unless the consumer is given
notice and a reasonable opportunity and a reasemalol simple method to opt out of the making ohssdlicitations.

Regulatory Enforcement Authority

The enforcement powers available to the federakibgragencies include, among other things, thetaltd assess civil money penalties, to
issue cease and desist or removal orders anditténinjunctive actions against banking organ@agiand institution-affiliated parties, as
defined. In general, these enforcement actionstmeayitiated for violations of law and regulaticarsd unsafe or unsound practices. Other
actions or inactions may provide the basis for e#ment action, including misleading or untimelgao#s filed with regulatory authorities.
Under certain circumstances, federal and statedawires public disclosure and reports of certaimioal offenses and also final enforcement
actions by the federal banking agencies.

Community Reinvestment Act

Pursuant to the CRA, regulatory authorities reviee/performance of the Bank in meeting the creelitds of the communities it serves. The
applicable regulatory authorities consider comméwith this law in connection with the applicasdior, among other things, approval &
novobranches, branch relocations and acquisitions wk$and bank holding companies. The Bank receivisdtisfactory” rating at its CRA
examination dated April 11, 2011, its most recesine.

Failure of an institution to receive at least atifactory” rating could inhibit such institutiorr ds holding company from undertaking certain
activities, including engaging in activities nevggrmitted as a financial holding company under GI.LBAd acquisitions of other financial
institutions. The Federal Reserve must take intmawt the record of performance of banks in meetiegcredit needs of the entire community
served, including low- and moderate-income neighbods. Current CRA regulations for large banks priiy rely on objective criteria of the
performance of institutions under three key assessmtests: a lending test, a service test andwasiment test. For smaller banks, current ¢
regulations primarily evaluate the performancenstitutions under two key assessment tests: arigrtdst and a community development test.
The Company is committed to meeting the existingrdicipated credit needs of its entire communitgluding low- and moderate-income
neighborhoods, consistent with safe and sound hgrdfperations.

Branching and Acquisitions

The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branchinficiehcy Act of 1994, as amended (“Riegle-Neal"flahe Dodd-Frank Act permit well
capitalized and well managed bank holding compawrigsletermined by the Federal Reserve, to achairks in any state subject to certain
concentration limits and other conditions. RiegleaNalso generally authorizes the interstate mesfanks. In addition, among other things,
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Riegle-Neal and the Dodd-Frank Act permit bankedtablish new branches on an interstate basietsaime extent a bank chartered by the
host state may establish branches. Bank holdingpaaims and banks are required to obtain prior é&eserve approval to acquire more t
5% of a class of voting securities, or substartiall of the assets, of a bank holding companyklmarsavings association.

Anti-Money Laundering and the Bank Secrecy Act

Under the Bank Secrecy Act (“BSA”), a financialtibgion, is required to have systems in placedtedt certain transactions, based on the si:
and nature of the transaction. Financial instingiare generally required to report to the UnitedeS Treasury any cash transactions involvin
more than $10 thousand. In addition, financialiingons are required to file suspicious activigports for transactions that involve more than
$5 thousand and which the financial institutionwspsuspects or has reason to suspect involveslifands, is designed to evade the
requirements of the BSA or has no lawful purpogee Uniting and Strengthening America by Providirgpfopriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (thkSA PATRIOT Act”), which amended the BSA, is designed to deny tetsoaisd others tr
ability to obtain anonymous access to the U.Sniiie system. The USA PATRIOT Act has significamplications for financial institutions
and businesses of other types involved in the fearmé money. The USA PATRIOT Act, together witrettmplementing regulations of various
federal regulatory agencies, has caused finanm@étutions, such as the Bank, to adopt and imptgradditional policies or amend existing
policies and procedures with respect to, amongrdttiegs, anti-money laundering compliance, suspisiactivity, currency transaction
reporting, customer identity verification and cust risk analysis. In evaluating an applicationem@8ection 3 of the BHCA to acquire a bank
or an application under the Bank Merger Act to nedsgnks or affect a purchase of assets and assumgtdeposits and other liabilities, the
applicable federal banking regulator must consideranti-money laundering compliance record of ibéhapplicant and the target.

The United States has imposed economic sanctianaffect transactions with designated foreign ¢aes, nationals and others. These
sanctions, which are administered by the TreastifiggDof Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC"), take madifferent forms. Generally, however,
they contain one or more of the following elemef(ilstestrictions on trade with or investment isanctioned country, including prohibitions
against direct or indirect imports from and expéota sanctioned country and prohibitions on “Uh&sons” engaging in financial transactions
relating to making investments in, or providingéstment-related advice or assistance to, a saectiocountry; and (ii) a blocking of assets in
which the government or specially designated nat®aof the sanctioned country have an interesprbiibiting transfers of property subject to
U.S. jurisdiction (including property in the possies or control of U.S. persons). Blocked assetsdkample, property and bank deposits)
cannot be paid out, withdrawn, set off or trangfdiin any manner without a license from OFAC.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes-Oxley”)

Sarbanes-Oxley implemented a broad range of capgmvernance and accounting measures for pubinpaaies (including publicly-held
bank holding companies such as the Company) designgromote honesty and transparency in corpdyaterica. Sarbanes-Oxley’s principal
provisions, many of which have been interpretedugh regulations released in 2003, provide foriantlide, among other things,

(i) requirements for audit committees, includingependence and financial expertise; (ii) certifarabf financial statements by the principal
executive officer and principal financial officefrthe reporting company; (iii) standards for auditand regulation of audits; (iv) disclosure anc
reporting requirements for the reporting company dinectors and executive officers; and (v) a raoigevil and criminal penalties for fraud
and other violations of securities laws.

Corporate Governance and Executive Compensation

Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the SEC has adopted griasting shareholders a non-binding vote on exezgbmpensation and “golden
parachute” payments. Pursuant to modificationsiefgroxy rules under the
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Dodd-Frank Act, the Company will be required tocthse the relationship between executive pay arahfiial performance, the ratio of the
median pay of all employees to the pay of the ohiefcutive officer, and employee and director heglgictivities. The Dodd-Frank Act also
requires that stock exchanges change their listites to require, among other things, that each bbeerof a listed company’s compensation
committee be independent and that compensation dbeesbe granted the authority and funding tomatadlependent advisors. Pursuant to a
final SEC rule, stock exchanges are required te Htignal listing standards or amendments in compkanith such requirements approved by
the SEC by June 27, 2013. The federal regulatoencigs have proposed new regulations which proimbéntive-based compensation
arrangements that encourage executives and cettan employees to take inappropriate risks.

Federal Home Loan Bank System

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bémoston (the “FHLBB”), which is one of the regimi-ederal Home Loan Banks
comprising the Federal Home Loan Bank System. Eacteral Home Loan Bank provides a central credititia primarily for member
institutions. Member institutions are required ¢gaire and hold shares of capital stock in the FBLBan amount at least equal to the sum of
0.35% of the aggregate principal amount of its ishpasidential mortgage loans and similar obligagiat the beginning of each year and 4.5%
of its advances (borrowings) from the FHLBB. ThenBavas in compliance with this requirement withimvestment in FHLBB stock as of
June 30, 2012 of $4.6 million. The Bank receivesdginds on its FHLBB stock. The FHLBB has recend¢lared dividends equal to an anr
yield of approximately the daily average tt-month LIBOR yield for the quarter for which the @ignd has been declared. Dividend incom
FHLBB stock of $19 thousand was recorded duringntlost recent fiscal year.

Any advances from the FHLBB must be secured byipddypes of collateral, and long-term advances/ibe used for the purpose of
providing funds for residential housing financemeoercial lending and to purchase investments. lteng advances may also be used to hely
alleviate interest rate risk for asset and liapifitanagement purposes. As of June 30, 2012, thk Bathapproximately $42.5 million in
outstanding FHLBB advances.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degsérisk. You should carefully consider the foliog risks and uncertainties, together with
all other information in this prospectus, includimgr consolidated financial statements and relatgds, before investing in our common stock
Any of the risk factors we describe below couldedely affect our business, financial conditiomesults of operations. The trading price of
our voting common stock could decline if one or enof these risks or uncertainties actually occtasising you to lose all or part of your
investment. Certain statements below are forwaottia statements. See “Cautionary Note Regarding/&al-Looking Statements.”

Risks Associated With Our Business
We may not be successful in the implementation of business strategy.

Following our merger with FHB Formation LLC in Deuber 2010, we substantially revised our businessegjy to include the building of a
Loan Acquisition and Servicing Group to grow ouadgportfolio and the introduction of an online affy savings program, known as
“ableBanking,” to grow our core deposits. Our dpito develop and offer new products and servieggedds, in part, on whether we can hire
and retain enough suitably experienced and talesmguloyees, identify suitable loans for purchasattaactive prices, identify enough suitable
deposit customers, successfully build the systerdsostain the other resources necessary for cgedténnew product and service offerings.
We may not be able to do so, or, doing so may b rexpensive, or take longer, than we expect. Qperence with each of these initiative
limited. Since the inception of the Loan Acquisitiand Servicing Group through June 30, 2012, we lpavchased loans with unpaid principal
balances of $125.5 million for aggregate purchasz pf $102.4 million. In addition, in May, 201®e launched the pilot of ableBanking in
the Boston area.
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We are subject to regulatory conditions that cowdnstrain our ability to grow our loan acquisitiobusiness.

In conjunction with the regulatory approvals reeeifor the merger with FHB Formation LLC, we contettto maintain a Tier 1 leverage
ratio of at least 10%, fund 100% of our loans witine deposits, limit purchased loans to 40% of totns and hold commercial real estate
loans (including owner-occupied commercial reahigtto within 300% of total risk-based capital r€deposits, for purposes of this
commitment, are defined as non-brokered non-mgtdeposits and nobrokered insured time deposits. At June 30, 201#2ratio of our loan
to core deposits was 88.3%. Our ability to grow loan portfolio will be dependent on our abilityraise additional core deposit funding. To
the extent our ability to gather core depositsoisstrained by market forces or for any other reaganability to achieve loan growth would be
similarly constrained.

We may not be able to grow our core deposits thioadgleBanking, or doing so may be more expensiveake longer than we expect.

In May, 2012, we launched the pilot of our onliriénéty deposit program, ableBanking, in the Bostmea. We believe that certain features of
ableBanking, including the program’s associatiothwion-profit organizations, will allow us to atttacustomers and provide an additional
channel to obtain core deposits. However, oureggsatvith regard to ableBanking is untested andetisan be no assurance that we will be abls
to grow core deposits through ableBanking at tie g anticipate, or that in obtaining such degosie will not be forced to price products
less advantageous terms to retain or attract sligvttich would adversely affect our profitabiligne of the commitments that we made in
connection with securing the regulatory approvatsolur merger with FHB Formation LLC is that we mfisxd 100% of our loans with core
deposits. To the extent that we are unable to gnamcore deposits, our ability to achieve loan glowould be constrained.

We may not be able to attract and retain qualifiedy employees, which could adversely affect ouribess prospects, including our
competitive position and results of operations.

Our success in implementing our business plan,cédfeour loan purchasing business, is dependpahwur ability to attract and retain hig
skilled individuals. There is significant compaetiti for those individuals with the experience aniisskequired to conduct many of our busin
activities. We may not be able to hire or retaim kiey personnel that we depend upon for successe ur merger with FHB Formation LLC
in December 2010, we have hired ten senior emptoteaork in our Loan Acquisition and Servicing @Gpo The unexpected loss of services
of one or more of these or other key personnelcchalre a material adverse impact on our businessule of their skills, knowledge of the
markets in which we operate, years of industry erpee and the difficulty of promptly finding qutiid replacement personnel. In addition,
must comply with the executive compensation anga@te governance standards applicable to panitspa the TARP Capital Purchase
Program for as long as the U.S. Treasury holdsSaries A preferred stock. The restrictions on duilitg to compensate senior executives may
limit our ability to recruit and retain senior exsives.

If our allowance for loan losses is not sufficiemd absorb actual losses or if we are required tari@ase our allowance, our financial
condition and results of operations could be adwaysaffected.

We are exposed to the risk that our borrowers nedgudt on their obligations. A borrower’s default ibs obligations under one or more loans
of the Bank may result in lost principal and instr@come and increased operating expenses aslagtthe allocation of management time
and resources to the collection and work-out ofltla@. In certain situations, where collection efare unsuccessful or acceptable work-out
arrangements cannot be reached, the Bank may bawité off the loan in whole or in part. In sudtuations, the Bank may acquire real estat
or other assets, if any, that secure the loan tirdoreclosure or other similar available remediesl often the amount owed under the
defaulted loan exceeds the value of the assetsradqu

We periodically make a determination of an allowafar loan losses based on available informatieciuding, but not limited to, our historic
loss experience, the quality of the loan portfotiertain economic conditions,
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the value of the underlying collateral, expecteshcows from purchased loans, and the level ofaceruing and criticized loans. We rely on
our loan quality reviews, our experience and owalgation of economic conditions, among other fagtor determining the amount of provis
required for the allowance for loan losses. Prowisito this allowance result in an expense fop#téod. If, as a result of general economic
conditions, previously incorrect assumptions, oimamease in defaulted loans, we determine thatiaddl increases in the allowance for loan
losses are necessary, we will incur additional asps.

Determining the allowance for loan losses inheyeintiolves a high degree of subjectivity and regsius to make significant estimates of
current credit risks and future trends, all of whinay undergo material changes. At any time, thegdikely to be loans in our portfolio that
will result in losses but that have not been idettias nonperforming or potential problem credit®& cannot be sure that we will be able to
identify deteriorating credits before they becormeaperforming assets or that we will be able totliiméses on those loans that are identified.
We have in the past been, and in the future mayelggiired to increase our allowance for loan loéseany of several reasons. State and
federal regulators, in reviewing our loan portfadi® part of a regulatory examination, may requestwe increase our allowance for loan
losses. Changes in economic conditions affectingolers, new information regarding existing loaidgntification of additional problem loa
and other factors, both within and outside of canmtml, may require an increase in our allowaneddan losses. In addition, if charge-offs in
future periods exceed those estimated in our détetion of our allowance for loan losses, we wékd additional increases in our allowance
for loan losses. Any increases in our allowancddan losses will result in a decrease in our nebine and, possibly, our capital, and could
have an adverse effect on our financial conditiod @@sults of operations.

A significant portion of loans held in our loan pafolio were originated by third parties, and suchdns may not have been subject to
the same level of due diligence that Northeast Baméuld have conducted had it originated the loans.

At June 30, 2012, 23.7% of the loans held in oanlportfolio were originated by third parties, dhdrefore may not have been subject to the
same level of due diligence that Northeast Bankldvbave conducted had it originated the loans. &ltih the Loan Acquisition and Servicing
Group conducts a comprehensive review of all ldhasit purchases, loans originated by third paniey lack current financial information
and may have incomplete legal documentation andated appraisals. As a result, the Loan Acquisigiod Servicing Group may not have
information with respect to an acquired loan whi€known at the time of acquisition, would haveusad it to reduce its bid price or not bid
the loan at all. This may adversely affect ourgieh loans or cause us to increase our provisioloém losses.

Our experience with loans held in our loan portfalithat were originated by third parties is limited.

At June 30, 2012, the 23.7% of the loans held nl@an portfolio that were originated by third pasthad been held by us for 134 days,
calculated on a weighted average basis. Conseguemtlhave had only a relatively short period ofdito evaluate the performance of those
loans and the price at which we purchased thenth&uexperience with these loans may provide uls information that could cause us to
increase our provision for loan losses.

Our loan portfolio includes commercial loans, whicére generally riskier than other types of loans.

At June 30, 2012, our commercial real estate mgegand commercial business loan portfolios comgri2% of total loans. Commercial
loans generally carry larger loan balances andiva higher risk of nonpayment or late payment tresidential mortgage loans. These loans
and purchased loans in particular, may lack statizked terms and may include a balloon payment feafthe ability of a borrower to make or
refinance a balloon payment may be affected bymbmu of factors, including the financial conditiohthe borrower, prevailing economic
conditions and prevailing interest rates. Repayméttiese loans is generally more dependent oe¢bromy and the successful operation of
business. Because of the risks associated with
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commercial loans, we may experience higher rateefafult than if the portfolio were more heavilyiglged toward residential mortgage lo¢
Higher rates of default could have an adverse effeour financial condition and results of opevas.

Environmental liability associated with our lendingctivities could result in losses.

In the course of business, we may acquire, thrdoigdtiosure, properties securing loans we haveraigd or purchased that are in default.
Particularly in commercial real estate lendingyéhis a risk that hazardous substances could bewdised on these properties. In this event, w
might be required to remove these substances fneraffected properties at our sole cost and expdimeecost of this removal could
substantially exceed the value of affected propsrtiVe may not have adequate remedies againstitim@wner or other responsible parties
and could find it difficult or impossible to selie affected properties. These events could haeeleerse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations.

We are subject to liquidity risk.

Liquidity is the ability to meet cash flow needsatimely basis at a reasonable cost. Our liquiditysed principally to originate or purchase
loans, to repay deposit liabilities and other liéibs when they come due, and to fund operatimgcdCustomer demand for non-maturity
deposits can be difficult to predict. Changes imkatinterest rates, increased competition withinmarkets, and other factors may make
deposit gathering more difficult. Disruptions iretbapital markets or interest rate changes may thekierms of wholesale funding sources —
which include Federal Home Loan Bank advanceskdueral Reserve’s Borrower-in-Custody program, isgéesi sold under repurchase
agreements, federal funds purchased and brokergfice¢es of deposit dess favorable and may make it difficult to selbsdties when neede
to provide additional liquidity. As a result, thasea risk that the cost of funding will increaselmat we will not have sufficient funds to meet
our obligations when they come due.

We are subject to security and operational risk$ateng to our use of technology.

Communication and information systems are critiodhe conduct of our business because we use slgst@ms to manage our customer
relationships and process accounting and finaneprting information. Although we have establispeticies and procedures to prevent or
limit the impact of system failures, interrupticensd security breaches, there can be no assurastcgutth events will not occur or that they will
be adequately addressed if they do. In addition,campromise of our security systems could preeestomers from using our website and
online banking services, both of which involve trensmission of confidential information. Althougke rely on security and processing
systems to provide the security and authenticaterressary to securely transmit data, these precautiay not protect our systems from
compromises or breaches of security. The occurrehaay failures, interruptions or security breasbéour information systems could dam
our reputation, result in the loss of businessjexilus to increased regulatory scrutiny or expes# civil litigation and possible financial
liability, including the costs of customer notiftean and remediation efforts. Any of these occucemncould have an adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Damage to our reputation could significantly harmuo business, including our competitive position atisiness prospects.

Our ability to attract and retain customers and leyges could be adversely affected if our reputaisodamaged. Our actual or perceived
failure to address various issues could give gseputational risk that could cause harm to usandusiness prospects. These issues also
include, but are not limited to, legal and regufatequirements; properly maintaining customer amgployee personal information; record
keeping; money-laundering; sales and trading mestiethical issues; appropriately addressing piatawonflicts of interest; and the proper
identification of the legal, reputational, crediguidity and market risks inherent in our produdfailure to appropriately address any of these
issues could also give rise to additional regulatestrictions and legal risks, which could, amaotiger consequences, increase the size and
number of litigation
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claims and damages asserted or subject us to enfert actions, fines and penalties and causeinsuorelated costs and expenses.

Internal controls may fail or be circumvented.

Effective controls over financial reporting are essary to help ensure reliable financial reporéind prevent fraud. Management is respon:
for maintaining an effective system of internal tohand assessing system effectiveness. Our systémternal control is a process designe
provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance thensyobjectives are being met. Failure or circurtivarof the system of internal control co
have an adverse effect on our business, profitpjéind financial condition, and could further réso regulatory actions and loss of investor
confidence.

Our historical operating results may be of limitadse to you in evaluating our historical performan@and predicting our future results

We applied the acquisition method of accountingjescribed in Accounting Standards Codification,#fsiness Combinationgo the merge

of FHB Formation LLC with and into Northeast. Asasult of application of the acquisition methodactounting to our balance sheet, our
financial statements from the periods prior to Delber 29, 2010, the date that the merger was consiteainare not directly comparable to the
financial statements for periods subsequent to Dbee 29, 2010. The lack of comparability arisesfithe assets and liabilities having new
accounting bases as a result of recording theimeatfair values as of the transaction date ratan at historical cost basis. In connection witt
the application of the acquisition method of acdmgnfor the merger, the allowance for loan lossas reduced to zero when the loan portfolic
was marked to its then current fair value. In additthe accretion of fair value adjustments tdaarinterest-bearing assets and liabilities
increased our net income for periods subsequeahttmerger. The lack of comparability means thatgériods being reported in the fiscal yea
June 30, 2011 in the statements and tables atbensime periods as reported for the fiscal yedeedune 30, 2012, and, as a result, our
historical operating results before December 29028re of limited relevance in evaluating our higi@l financial performance subsequent to
December 29, 2010 and predicting our future opagatsults.

Deterioration in the Maine economy could adverselffect our financial condition and results of opetians.

Our Community Banking Division primarily serves imduals and businesses located in western andhsmuttral Maine and southeastern N
Hampshire. As a result, a significant portion of earnings are closely tied to the economy of Madeterioration in the Community Banking
Division’s market in Maine could result in the fmiVing consequences:

e loan delinquencies may increa
e problem assets and foreclosures may incre
e demand for our products and services may dec

» collateral for our loans may decline in value,umtreducing a customer’s borrowing power and reduthe value of collateral
securing a loan; ar

« the net worth and liquidity of loan guarantors naa&gline, impairing their ability to honor commitnisro us.

Our future growth, if any, may require us to raisedditional capital in the future, but that capitahay not be available when we neec

As a bank, we are required by regulatory autharitiemaintain adequate levels of capital to suppartoperations. In addition, in conjunction
with the regulatory approvals received for the reengith FHB Formation
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LLC, we committed to maintain a Tier 1 leverageoraf at least 10% and a total risk-based cap#tibrof at least 15%. We may need to raise
additional capital to support our operations or grawth, if any. Our ability to raise additionalpital will depend, in part, on conditions in the
capital markets and our financial performance at time. Accordingly, we may be unable to raiseitimttal capital, if and when needed, on
acceptable terms, or at all. If we cannot raiseteai@l capital when needed, our ability to furtlesqppand our operations through internal grc
and acquisitions could be materially impaired. didiion, if we decide to raise additional equityital, investors’ interests could be diluted.
Our failure to meet any applicable regulatory glirderelated to our lending activities or any caprequirement otherwise imposed upon us o
to satisfy any other regulatory requirement couwilljsct us to certain activity restrictions or teaiety of enforcement remedies available tc
regulatory authorities, including limitations onrability to pay dividends or pursue acquisitiotig issuance by regulatory authorities of a
capital directive to increase capital and the taation of deposit insurance by the FDIC.

Risks Associated With the Industry
Difficult market conditions and economic trends iihe real estate market have adversely affectediadustry and our business.

We are particularly affected by downturns in th&Ueal estate market. Declines in the real egtatéet over the past several years, with
decreasing property values and increasing delintjgerand foreclosures, may have a negative impatitecredit performance of commercial
and construction, mortgage, and consumer loang@imsfresulting in significant write-downs of assbyy many financial institutions as the
values of real estate collateral supporting maay$chave declined significantly. In addition, geh@ownward economic trends and continuec
high levels of unemployment, among other factoasehled to erosion of customer confidence, a réolud general business activity and
increased market volatility. The resulting econopriessure on consumers and businesses and theflegkfidence in the financial markets
have adversely affected our business, financiatlitiom, results of operations and stock price. Aseming of these economic conditions woulc
likely exacerbate the adverse effects of thesécdiffmarket conditions on us and others in theustdy. Our ability to properly assess the
creditworthiness of customers and to estimatedbgds inherent in our credit exposure is made gwrglex by these difficult market and
economic conditions. Accordingly, if these markenditions and trends continue, we may experienceeases in foreclosures, delinquencies,
write-offs and customer bankruptcies, as well asemestricted access to funds.

Competition in the financial services industry iatense and could result in us losing business opexrencing reduced margins.

Our future growth and success will depend on oiityabo continue to compete effectively in the Comnity Banking Division’s Maine
market, in the markets in which the Loan Acquisitamd Servicing Group invests and in the marketghith ableBanking will operate. We
face aggressive competition from other domesticfarelgn lending institutions and from numerousestproviders of financial services. The
ability of non-banking financial institutions toquide services previously limited to commercial kahas intensified competition. Because
non-banking financial institutions are not subjecthie same regulatory restrictions as banks and baldinly companies, they can often ope
with greater flexibility and lower cost structur&ecurities firms and insurance companies that &ddoecome financial holding companies 1
acquire banks and other financial institutions.sTiiay significantly change the competitive enviremtrin which we conduct our business.
Some of our competitors have significantly grefiteancial resources and/or face fewer regulatonstmints. As a result of these various
sources of competition, we could lose busines®taopetitors or could be forced to price products sendices on less advantageous terms to
retain or attract clients, either of which wouldradsely affect its profitability.
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Changes in interest rates could adversely affect oat interest income and profitability.

The majority of our assets and liabilities are ntanein nature. As a result, our earnings and dnaave significantly affected by interest rates,
which are subject to the influence of economic démas generally, both domestic and foreign, torggeén the capital markets and also to the
monetary and fiscal policies of the United Stated ibss agencies, particularly the Federal Resérkie.nature and timing of any changes in ¢
policies or general economic conditions and thi&ot on us cannot be controlled and are extrerdificult to predict. Changes in interest
rates can affect our net interest income as wdhawsalue of our assets and liabilities. Net iaseincome is the difference between (i) interest
income on interest-earning assets, such as loahseairities, and (ii) interest expense on intébesting liabilities, such as deposits and
borrowings. Changes in market interest rates, abangthe relationships between short-term and-tengp market interest rates, or the yield
curve, or changes in the relationships betweerdifft interest rate indices can affect the intawass charged on interest-earning assets
differently than the interest rates paid on intele=aring liabilities. This difference could resutan increase in interest expense relative to
interest income, and therefore reduce our netésténcome. Further, declines in market interasisrenay trigger loan prepayments, which in
many cases are within our customers’ discretiod,vahich in turn may serve to reduce our net intdreome if we are unable to lend those
funds to other borrowers or invest the funds atstiree or higher interest rates.

We operate in a highly regulated industry, and laasd regulations, or changes in them, could limit pestrict our activities and could
have an adverse impact in our operations.

We are subject to regulation and supervision byFéderal Reserve, and our banking subsidiary, MaghBank, is subject to regulation and
supervision by the Federal Reserve, the Maine Ruoé&inancial Institutions and the FDIC, as thsuirer of Northeast Bank’s deposits. The
Federal Reserve, the FDIC and the Maine Bureaunain€ial Institutions have broad enforcement auth¢o prevent or remedy unsafe or
unsound practices or violations of law by bankgestttto their regulation, including but not limitéalthe power to issue cease and desist o
assess civil money penalties and impose otheramdlcriminal penalties. The Federal Reserve pessesmilar powers with respect to bank
holding companies.

The Dodd-Frank Act comprehensively reformed thesl@ipn of financial institutions, products andsees. Because many aspects of the
Dodd-Frank Act are subject to rulemaking and veike effect over several years, it is difficult twdcast the impact that such rulemaking will
have on us, our customers or the financial industgrtain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act thaeaffdeposit insurance assessments, the
payment of interest on demand deposits and intageghfees could increase the costs associated witth&ast Bank’s deposit-generating
activities, as well as place limitations on thearwes that those deposits may generate. For exawiple the Federal Reserve has issued rule
pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act governing debit d¢atérchange fees that apply to institutions witbager than $10 billion in assets, market
forces may effectively require all banks to adaghiticard interchange fee structures that comptig thiese rules.

Among other things, the Dodd-Frank Act establistiredConsumer Financial Protection Bureau, or thePB,” as an independent bureau of
Federal Reserve. The CFPB has the authority tapbesrules for all depository institutions govemgithe provision of consumer financial
products and services, which may result in rulasragulations that reduce the profitability of sychducts and services or impose greater
costs on us and our subsidiaries. Northeast Bahicovitinue to be examined by the Federal Resaswedmpliance with such rules. The Dodd
Frank Act established new minimum mortgage undeinvgristandards for residential mortgages and thalatory agencies have focused on the
examination and supervision of mortgage lendingsewdicing activities. Over the past year therelieen a heightened regulatory scrutiny of
consumer fees, which may result in new discloseigairements or regulations regarding the feesNbatheast Bank may charge for products
and services.

The federal bank regulatory agencies have propoesedcapital requirements in connection with thelementation of Basel 11l and the Dodd-
Frank Act. These proposed capital requirementeass the minimum
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capital levels and implement new capital requiretsiéor common equity and a capital conservatioridsufdditionally, the proposed capital
requirements would eliminate the Tier 1 capitahtneent of our trust preferred securities over aytsr period and require us to hold more
capital against certain types of assets. The nquirements could limit the manner in which we araftNeast Bank conduct our business and
obtain financing. Furthermore, the imposition gfiidity requirements in connection with the impleraion of Basel Il in the United States,
or otherwise, could result in us and Northeast Baaking to lengthen the term of our funding, restinee our business models, and/or increase
our holdings of liquid assets.

The FDIC's restoration plan and the related incread assessment rate could adversely affect our fiahcondition and results of
operations.

The FDIC insures deposits at FDIC-insured depogsitwstitutions, such as Northeast Bank, up to @aplie limits. As a result of recent
economic conditions and the enactment of the Diedohk Act, the FDIC has increased deposit insurassessment rates. If these increase
insufficient for the deposit insurance fund of #i@IC to meet its funding requirements, there magd#® be further special assessments or
increases in deposit insurance premiums. We arergiynunable to control the amount of premiumga the are required to pay for FDIC
insurance. If there are additional bank or finahicistitution failures, we may be required to page higher FDIC premiums than the recently
increased levels. Any future additional assessmernteases or required prepayments in FDIC insgamemiums may materially adversely
affect results of operations, including by reduaing profitability or limiting our ability to purseicertain business opportunities.

Changes in accounting standards can materially ingp@ur financial statements.

Our accounting policies and methods are fundaméntadw we record and report our financial conditamd results of operations. From time
to time, the Financial Accounting Standards Boartegulatory authorities change the financial actimg and reporting standards that govern
the preparation of our financial statements. Tled®anges can be hard to predict and can matemapgét how we record and report our
financial condition and results of operations. émg cases, we could be required to apply a neevisad standard retroactively, resulting in
our restating prior period financial statements.

Risks Associated With Our Common Stock
Recent market volatility has affected and may cowig to affect the value of our common stock.

The performance of our common stock has been aydcorginue to be affected by many factors, inclgdimlatility in the credit, mortgage
and housing markets, and the markets with respdatdncial institutions generally. Government antand changes in government regulati
such as the Dodd-Frank Act, may affect the valueunfcommon stock. More general market fluctuatiomgustry factors and general
economic and political conditions and events, sagkconomic slowdowns or interest rate changesl@sb cause the value of our common
stock to decrease regardless of our operatingtsesul

Our common stock trading volume may not provide gdate liquidity for investors.

Our voting common stock is listed on the NASDAQ kalbMarket. The average daily trading volume fortNeast voting common stock is
less than the corresponding trading volume fordafmancial institutions. Due to this relativetyw trading volume, significant sales of
Northeast voting common stock, or the expectatfathese sales, may place significant downward pressn the market price of Northe.
voting common stock. No assurance can be giverathabre active trading market in our common stoitkdevelop in the foreseeable future
or can be maintained. There can also be no as®uthatthe offering will result in a material inage in the “float” for our common stock,
which we define as the aggregate market value o¥oting common stock held by shareholders whanateaffiliates of Northeast, because
affiliates may purchase shares of voting commoaoksito the offering.
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There is a limited market for and restrictions ohe transferability of our non-voting common stock

Our non-voting common stock is not and will notliséed on any exchange. Additionally, the non-vgtaommon stock can only be transferrec
in certain limited circumstances set forth in oriicées of incorporation. Accordingly, holders afronon-voting common stock may be requirec
to bear the economic consequences of holding soigtvating common stock for an indefinite periodiaie.

Our participation in the TARP Capital Purchase Progm, which includes restrictions on our ability tpay dividends or repurchase
outstanding common stock, may act to depress thekaiavalue of our common stock.

Because of our participation in the TARP Capitaldhase Program, our ability to declare or pay dimils on shares of common stock is
limited to $0.09 per share per quarter. We are len@abdeclare or pay dividends on shares of comstock if in arrears on the payment of
dividends on the Series A preferred stock. In aotdithe U.S. Treasury’s approval is required fetamake any stock repurchase (other than
purchases of Series A preferred stock or sharesrafnon stock in connection with the administratbdany employee benefit plan in the
ordinary course of business and consistent with pastice) unless all shares of the Series A prediestock have been redeemed or transferre
by the U.S. Treasury to unaffiliated third partissaddition, outstanding shares of common stock na be repurchased if we are in arrear
the payment of Series A preferred stock divideiti® restriction on our ability to pay dividendsrepurchase shares of common stock may
depress the market value of our common stock.

If we defer payments of interest on our outstandijugior subordinated debt securities or if certaohefaults relating to those debt
securities occur, we will be prohibited from deciiag or paying dividends or distributions on, anddm making liquidation payments wit
respect to, our common stock.

As of June 30, 2012, we had outstanding $16.5anilih aggregate principal amount of junior subcati debt securities issued in connectior
with the sale of trust preferred securities byliatis of ours that are statutory business tré§eshave also guaranteed those trust preferred
securities. The indenture under which the junidrosdinated debt securities were issued, togethiér twe guarantee, prohibits us, subject to
limited exceptions, from declaring or paying anyidiénds or distributions on, or redeeming, repusaii@ acquiring or making any liquidation
payments with respect to, any of our capital s{@&luding the Series A preferred stock and our cam stock) at any time when (i) there s
have occurred and be continuing an event of detenger the indenture; (ii) we are in default widspect to payment of any obligations under
the guarantee; or (iii) we have elected to defgnpnt of interest on the junior subordinated delousities. In that regard, we are entitled, at
our option but subject to certain conditions, téedpayments of interest on the junior subordinatebit securities from time to time for up to
five years.

Events of default under the indenture generallysisirof our failure to pay interest on the juniaberdinated debt securities under certain
circumstances, our failure to pay any principabopremium on such junior subordinated debt sdesnivhen due, our failure to comply with
certain covenants under the indenture, and cegia@nts of bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidatioratiig to us.

As a result of these provisions, if we were to eteaefer payments of interest on the junior sdbwted debt securities, or if any of the other
events described in clause (i) or (ii) of the fiparagraph of this risk factor were to occur, weuldde prohibited from declaring or paying any
dividends on the Series A preferred stock and oarrnon stock, from redeeming, repurchasing or ottseracquiring any of the Series A
preferred stock or our common stock, and from ngkiny payments to holders of the Series A prefesteck or our common stock in the
event of our liquidation, which would likely havaraterial adverse effect on the market value ofcounmon stock.
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We are dependent upon our subsidiaries for dividendistributions and other payments.

We are a separate and distinct legal entity frontid@st Bank, and depend on dividends, distribatamd other payments from Northeast E

to fund dividend payments on our common stock arfditd all payments on our other obligations. We Biortheast Bank are subject to laws
that authorize regulatory authorities to blockexuce the flow of funds from Northeast Bank toRisgulatory action of that kind could impede
access to the funds that Northeast needs in cvdaake payments on its obligations or dividend payts In addition, if Northeast Bank’s
earnings are not sufficient to make dividend paytmémus while maintaining adequate capital lewsls may not be able to make dividend
payments to its common and preferred shareholBearther, our right to participate in a distributiohassets upon a subsidiary’s liquidation or
reorganization is subject to the prior claims ofteast Bank’s creditors.

We may not be able to pay dividends and, if we giaydends, we cannot guarantee the amount and fregay of such dividends.

In addition to the restrictions on the ability teotare or pay dividends imposed by the terms oStlges A preferred stock, the continued
payment of dividends on shares of our common stdltidepend upon our debt and equity structureniegs and financial condition, need for
capital in connection with possible future acqinsis, growth and other factors, including econoatnditions, regulatory restrictions, and tax
considerations. We cannot guarantee that we wjlldi@dends or, if we pay dividends, the amount fleduency of these dividends.

We may issue additional shares of common or preéefistock in the future, which could dilute a sharelder’'s ownership of common
stock.

Our articles of incorporation authorize our boafdlicectors, generally without shareholder apprpt@lamong other things, issue additional
shares of common or preferred stock. The issuaharyoadditional shares of common or preferredistmuld be dilutive to a shareholder’s
ownership of our common stock. To the extent thaisgue options or warrants to purchase commoik gidbe future and the options or
warrants are exercised, our shareholders may exyerifurther dilution. Holders of shares of our owon stock have no preemptive rights that
entitle holders to purchase their pro rata shaengfoffering of shares of any class or series tratefore, shareholders may not be permitt
invest in future issuances of Northeast commorrefepred stock. We are required by federal ane stgulatory authorities to maintain
adequate levels of capital to support our operatigecordingly, regulatory requirements and/or detation in our asset quality may require

to sell common stock to raise capital under cirdiamses and at prices that result in substantiatidil.

We may issue debt and equity securities that am@aeto our common stock as to distributions and liquidation, which could
negatively affect the value of our common stock.

In the future, we may increase our capital resaibgeentering into debt or debt-like financing gsting debt or equity securities, which could
include issuances of senior notes, subordinatessnpteferred stock or common stock. In the eveaupliquidation, our lenders and holders
of its debt or preferred securities would receidisaribution of our available assets before disttions to the holders of Northeast common
stock. Our decision to incur debt and issue seearih future offerings will depend on market cdimfis and other factors beyond our control.
We cannot predict or estimate the amount, timingadure of our future offerings and debt financirfgsture offerings could reduce the value
of shares of our common stock and dilute a shadei'slinterest in Northeast.

Our common stock is not insured by any governmerdatity.
Our common stock is not a deposit account or atbgation of any bank and is not insured by thd@®br any other governmental entity.
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Anti-takeover provisions could negatively impactrashareholders.

Federal law imposes restrictions, including regquigaipproval requirements, on persons seekingdaieecontrol over Northeast. Provision:
Maine law and provisions of our articles of incamgiton and by-laws could make it more difficult fothird party to acquire control of us or
have the effect of discouraging a third party frattempting to acquire control of us. We have asifi@sl board of directors, meaning that
approximately one-third of our directors are eldaanually. Additionally, our articles of organiirat authorize our board of directors to issue
preferred stock without shareholder approval aruth gweferred stock could be issued as a defensdasune in response to a takeover prop
Other provisions that could make it more difficigt a third party to acquire us even if an acgigsitmight be in the best interest of our
shareholders include supermajority voting requinetsi¢o remove a director from office without caussstrictions on shareholders calling a
special meeting; a requirement that only directoay fill a board vacancy; and provisions regardhgtiming and content of shareholder
proposals and nominations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
At June 30, 2012, the Company conducted its busifiem its main office in Lewiston, Maine and affice in Boston, Massachusetts. The
Company also conducts business from its ten fullise bank branches and three loan productionesflocated in the state of Maine.

In addition to its Lewiston, Maine and Boston, Madsusetts offices, the Company leases eight otlitsr locations. For information regarding
the Company’s lease commitments, please referdéask Obligations” under Note 16 of the Notes tadbesolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 of this Annual Report.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company was not involved in any legal procegslimther than routine legal proceedings occurrnintpé ordinary course of business.
Management believes that those routine legal prboge involve, in the aggregate, amounts thatrareaterial to the Company'’s financial
condition and results of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

(a) The Company’s voting common stock currentigéson the NASDAQ under the symbol “NBN.” Theradsestablished public trading
market for the Company’s nareting common stock. As of the close of businesSeptember 1, 2012, there were approximately 4distere
shareholders of record.

The following table sets forth the high and lowsitgy sale prices of the Company’s voting commoalstas reported on NASDAQ, and
quarterly dividends paid on the Company’s votind aon-voting common stock during the periods indida

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2( High Low Div Pd
Jul 1 — Sep 30 $14.0( $ 9.4t $.09C
Oct 1- Dec 31 14.6¢ 11.1¢ .09C
Jan 1- Mar 31 14.2¢ 11.6( .09C
Apr 1-Jun 30 11.7¢ 8.0C .09C
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2( High Low Div Pd
Jul 1 — Sep 30 $13.2¢ $12.0( $.09C
Oct 1-Dec 31 17.8( 12.2¢ .09C
Jan 1- Mar 31 16.5( 14.5( .09C
Apr 1-Jun 30 15.2¢ 13.5( .09C

On September 21, 2012, the last reported sale pfide Companys voting common stock, as reported on NASDAQ wa8%%Holders of th
Company’s voting and non-voting common stock atéled to receive dividends when and if declaredhry Board of Directors out of funds
legally available. The amount and timing of futdieidends payable on the Company’s voting and naiimg common stock will depend on,
among other things, the financial condition of @@mpany, regulatory considerations, and other facithe Company is a legal entity separat
from the Bank, but its revenues are derived prilp&mom the Bank. Accordingly, the ability of theo@pany to pay cash dividends on its stock
in the future generally will be dependent upondgbeings of the Bank and the Bank’s ability to gdagdends to the Company. The payment o
dividends by the Bank will depend on a number ofdes, including capital requirements, regulatamyitations, the Bank’s results of
operations and financial condition, tax considersj and general economic conditions. National ingnllaws regulate and restrict the ability
the Bank to pay dividends to the Company. See “ltefBusiness—Supervision and Regulation.”
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The following graph compares the performance ofGbepany’s voting common stock (or for periods ptthe Merger, the Company’s
common stock) (assuming reinvestment of dividemdt) the total return for companies within the S&80 Index and the Philadelphia KBW
Bank Index. The calculation of total cumulativeuretassumes a $100 investment was made at maoset ch June 30, 2007.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Northeast Bancorp, the S8P 500 Index, and Philadelphia KBEW Bank Inde:s
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*$100 irwvested on &DIVDT in stock orindex, including reinv estment of dividends
Fiscal year ending June 30

Copyright® 2012 S&P, & divisian af The MeGraw-Hill Companies Ins, Al ights resarved

The following table provides information about Bempany’s voting common stock that may be issuethubpe exercise of stock options
under the Company’s equity compensation plansfaceés of June 30, 2012.

Equity Compensation Plai
(@ (b) (©)
Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation pl
exercise price of
issued upon exercise of outstanding option (excluding securities
outstanding options, referenced in
Plan categor warrants and right warrants and right column (a))
Equity compensation plan approved by
security holder®) 796,04¢ $ 13.9¢ 97¢
Equity compensation plan not approved by
security holder: 0 $ 0.0C 0

(1) Includes information related to the Northeaah8orp Stock Option and Incentive Plan Stock Opfitan approved by the shareholders ir
2010 (the “2010 Plan)The 2010 Plan provide for a proportionate adjustn@the number of shares reserved for issuantieeievent o
any stock dividend, stock split, combination, ratajzation, or similar even

(b) Not applicable.

(c) Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities.
None.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The following table sets forth our selected finahaind operating data on a historical basis. The skt forth below does not purport to be compléhould be read in conjunction with, and
is qualified in its entirety by, the more detailatbrmation, including the Company’s Consolidatédahcial Statements and related notes, appearsegvbere herein.

Successor Compar(®) Predecessor Compa(?)
Twelve Month:  Twelve Month:  Twelve Month: ~ Twelve Month:

Twelve Month:

184 Days 181 Days Ended June 3 Ended June 3 Ended June 3 Ended June 3
Ended Ended Ended
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 Dec. 28, 201 2010 2009 2008 2007

(Dollars in thousands
Selected operations da

Interest and dividend incon $ 27,01« $ 13,30« $ 14,37¢ $ 31,26. $ 33,76t $ 3539% $ 35,68:
Interest expens 6,317 3,20 5,87 13,31« 16,71¢ 20,78¢ 20,03:
Net interest incom 20,69’ 10,09° 8,50! 17,94¢ 17,04¢ 14,60¢ 15,65(
Provision for loan losse 94¢€ 707 91z 1,86¢ 2,10¢ 83€ 98¢
Noninterest incom(®) 8,59( 18,98: 4,21¢ 5,701 4,64( 5,121 5,53¢
Net securities gains Slosss 1,111 1,20( 17 (18) 26¢ 29¢ 42
Noninterest expens 28,25t 17,14¢ 9,45¢ 19,47¢ 18,59¢ 17,10¢ 17,118
Income before income tax 1,19 12,42: 2,365 2,29¢ 1,25¢ 2,08¢ 3,12¢
Income tax expense (benet 181 (83) 69¢ 782 13C 39¢ 81C
Net income from continuing operatio 1,01¢ 12,507 1,661 1,517 1,12¢ 1,69( 2,31¢
Net income (loss) from discontinued operati 1,147 45 12¢ 207 (16S) 241 (42¢
Net income $ 2,16  $ 12,55 $ 1,79%¢ $ 1,71¢ $ 95¢ §$ 1931 $ 1,881
Net income available to common stockholc $ 1,771 $ 12,35¢ $ 1,677 $ 1,47¢ $ 82F $ 1,931 $ 1,887
Consolidated per share da
Earnings:
Basic:
Continuing operation $ 0.1t  $ 351 $ 0.6¢€ $ 05t $ 0.4: $ 0.7z  $ 0.94
Discontinued operatior 0.2€ 0.01 0.0¢€ 0.0¢ (0.07) 0.1C (0.17)
Net income $ 041 $ 35z $ 0.7z  $ 0.6 $ 03 $ 08z $ 0.77
Diluted:
Continuing operation $ 0.1t  $ 3.4¢ $ 0.6¢6 $ 054  $ 0.4: $ 0.7z  $ 0.94
Discontinued operatior 0.2€ 0.01 0.0t 0.0¢ (0.07) 0.1C (0.1¢)
Net income $ 041 $ 347 $ 071  $ 0.6 $ 03 $ 08z $ 0.7€
Cash dividend $ 03¢ $ 0.1 $ 0.1 $ 03¢ $ 03 $ 03€ $ 0.3€
Book value 11.0% 17.3% 19.7¢ 20.0¢ 18.6: 17.4C 16.6¢
Selected balance sheet d:
Total asset $ 669,19t $ 596,39: $ 627,98 $ 622,600 $ 598,14 $ 598,27: % 556,80:
Loans 356,25¢ 309,91: 367,28:¢ 382,30¢ 393,65: 409,19: 425,57
Deposits 422,18t 401,11¢ 374,61 384,19 385,38t 363,37: 364,55¢
Borrowings 120,85¢ 126,70t 199,32 183,02! 162,38¢ 186,83( 147,56¢
Total stockholder equity 119,13 64,95« 50,36¢ 50,90¢ 47,31; 40,27 40,85(
Other ratios
Return on average ass 0.36% 4.0% 0.57% 0.28% 0.1€% 0.3%% 0.34%
Return on average equi 3.02% 38.2% 7.03% 3.47% 2.14% 4.62% 4.5%
Efficiency ratio 92.95% 56.6% 74.2¢% 82.4(% 84.71% 85.4(% 80.62%
Average equity to average total as¢ 11.9(% 10.6%% 8.1¢% 8.1(% 7.35% 7.22% 7.31%
Common dividend payout rat 71.2¢% 5.02% 25.02% 56.62% 101.1% 44.1(% 46.7%
Tier 1 leverage capital rat 19.91% 10.31% N/A 8.4(% 8.12% 7.31% 9.07%
Total risk-based capital rati 33.3% 18.9% N/A 14.09% 13.23% 11.9% 13.9%

(1) *“Successor Compa” means Northeast Bancorp and its subsidiary afeeclitsing of the merger with FHB Formation LLC oad@mber 29, 201!

(2) “Predecessor Compe” means Northeast Bancorp and its subsidiary befierelbsing of the merger with FHB Formation LLCDacember 29, 201(

(3) Includes primarily fees for deposits, investiemkerage services to customers, and gains oselleeof loans. In the 184 days ended June 30, 204 total further includes a bargain
purchase gain $15.4 millio

(4) Includes salaries, employee benefits, occupancyegnibment, and other expenses. In the 184 daysdehde 30, 2011, the total includes merger exgeansaing $3.2 million
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

The Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fir@r€ondition and Results of Operations, which fako presents a review of the
consolidated operating results of Northeast Bandoip (the “Company”) for the fiscal year endedd80, 2012 (“fiscal 2012"), the 184-day
period ended June 30, 2011, and the 181-day periddd December 28, 2010. This discussion and asddyistended to assist you in
understanding the results of our operations arahfiral condition. You should read this discussmgether with your review of the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and related motéother statistical information included in tréport. Certain amounts in the periods prio
to fiscal 2012 have been reclassified to conforrinéofiscal 2012 presentation.

Financial Presentation

On December 29, 2010, the merger (the “MergerthefCompany and FHB Formation LLC, a Delaware kabiliability company (“FHB”),
was consummated. As a result of the Merger, theéxsog company received a capital contribution @6$® million (in addition to the
approximately $13.1 million in cash considerati@idpto former shareholders), and the former memdieF$1B collectively acquired
approximately 60% of our outstanding common stdtle Company applied the acquisition method of anting, as described in Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 80Business Combinatiof$ASC 805") to the Merger, which represents an ésitjon by FHB of Northeast,
with Northeast as the surviving company (the “Sssoe Company”). In the application of ASC 805 tis tihansaction, the following was
considered:

Identify the Accounting Acquir: FHB was identified as the accounting acquirerBFt#hich was incorporated on March 9, 2009, acqlae
controlling financial interest of approximately 6G8the Successor Company’s total outstanding gadimd non-voting common stock in
exchange for contributed capital and cash congidera

In the evaluation and identification of FHB as #ueounting acquirer, it was concluded that FHB aasbstantive entity involved in signific:
pre-merger activities, including the following: saig capital; incurring debt; incurring operatingenses; leasing office space; hiring staff to
develop the surviving company’s business planjmitg professional services firms; and identifymnuisition targets and negotiating
potential transactions, including the Merger.

Determine the Acquisition Da: December 29, 2010, the closing date of the Mengas the date that FHB gained control of the combi
entity.

Recognize assets acquired and liabilities assu: Because neither Northeast Bancorp, the Predec€ssopany (the acquired company), nor
FHB (the accounting acquirer) exist as separatéemafter the Merger, a new basis of accountinfgiavalue for the Successor Company’s
assets and liabilities was established in the dafsed financial statements. At the acquisitiotedéhe Successor Company recognized the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilitiesuased based on their then fair values in accordaitbeASC Topic 820Fair Value
Measuremen(*ASC 820”) . The Successor Company recognized a bargain purgaaseas the difference between the total purchése and
the net assets acquired.

As a result of application of the acquisition metlud accounting to Northeast Bancorp after the meom December 29, 2010, the Company’s
financial statements from the periods prior tottla@saction date are not directly comparable tdittancial statements for periods subsequent
to the transaction date. To make this distincttba,Company has labeled balances and results oditapes prior to the transaction date as
“Predecessor Company” and balances and resultseshtions for periods subsequent to the transadadm as “Successor Company.” The lacl
of comparability arises from the assets and lisédihaving new accounting bases as a result ofdety them at their fair values as of the
transaction date rather than at historical cosisb@®s denote this lack of comparability, a healgch line has been placed between the
Successor Company and
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Predecessor Company columns in the ConsolidatexhEial Statements and in the tables in the notd#et€onsolidated Financial Statements
and the discussion herein.

In connection with the transaction, as part ofrémulatory approval process the Company made nestanmitments to the Board of Govern
of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Rejawd the Maine Bureau of Financial Institutiotise(“Bureau”), the most significant of
which are, (i) maintain a Tier 1 leverage ratiabfeast 10%, (ii) maintain a total risk-based tapatio of at least 15%, (iii) limit purchased
loans to 40% of total loans, (iv) fund 100% of empany’s loans with core deposits (defined asmaturity deposits and non-brokered
insured time deposits), and (v) hold commercial estate loans (including owner-occupied commergal estate) to within 300% of total risk-
based capital. The Company is currently in compkawith all commitments to the Federal ReservetaadBureau.

As a result of the sale of the Company’s insuraagency business in the first quarter of fiscal 284 discontinuation of further significant
business activities in the insurance agency segrttenCompany has classified the results of itareasce agency division as discontinued
operations in the Company’s consolidated finanstialements and discussion herein.

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are those that invadignificant judgments and assessments by manageamehthat could potentially result in
materially different results under different asstionqs and conditions. Northeast considers the fiahg to be its critical accounting policies:

Loans

Loans are carried at the principal amounts outstandr amortized acquired fair value in the calaaguired loans, adjusted by partial charge
offs and net of deferred loan costs or fees. Le&s ind certain direct origination costs are defeand amortized into interest income over the
expected term of the loan using the level-yieldhndt When a loan is paid off, the unamortized paorts recognized in interest income.
Interest income is accrued based upon the daihcjpal amount outstanding except for loans on nomeat status.

All loans purchased by the Company in the secondearket by the Loan Acquisition and Servicing GrdtipASG”) are accounted for under
ASC 310-30Receivables — Loans and Debt Securities Acquirdu Deteriorated Credit Quality*ASC 310-30"). At acquisition, the effective
interest rate is determined based on the discat@tinat equates the present value of the Compasiirmate of cash flows with the purchase
price of the loan. Prepayments are not assumedterrdining a purchased loareffective interest rate and income accretion. dpydication o
ASC 310-30 limits the yield that may be accretedtenpurchased loan, or the “the accretable yiatdihe excess of the Company’s estimate,
at acquisition, of the expected undiscounted ppisi¢interest, and other cash flows over the Corypganitial investment in the loan. The
excess of contractually required payments recedvabér the cash flows expected to be collectedheraan represents the purchased loan’s
“nonaccretable difference.” Subsequent improvemienéxpected cash flows of loans with nonaccretdifferences result in a prospective
increase to the loan’s effective yield through @assification of some, or all, of the nonaccregatiifference to accretable yield. The effect of
subsequent declines in expected cash flows of pgezhloans are recorded through a specific allmtati the allowance for loan losses.

Loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status Wiey are past due 90 days as to either prinocipaiterest, or when in management’s
judgment the collectability of interest or principé the loan has been significantly impaired. Leaccounted for under ASC -30 are place
on nonaccrual when it is not possible to reachaaaeable expectation of the timing and amount sif dlows to be collected on the loan. Wi

a loan has been placed on nonaccrual status, psdyiaccrued and uncollected interest is revergathat interest on loans. A loan is returned
to accrual status when collectability of princigateasonably assured and the loan has performedrémasonable period of time.
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In cases where a borrower experiences financifitdifies and the Company makes certain concessjanadifications to contractual terms,
the loan is classified as a troubled debt restringu(“TDR"). Modifications may include adjustmerttsinterest rates, extensions of maturity,
and other actions intended to minimize economis & avoid foreclosure or repossession of codlatiionaccrual loans that are restructured
remain on nonaccrual for a minimum period of sixnthg to demonstrate that the borrower can meeaetteuctured terms. If the restructured
loan is on accrual status prior to being modified reviewed to determine if the modified loaroshd remain on accrual status. If the
borrower’s ability to meet the revised payment sicie is not reasonably assured, the loan is cladsifs a nonaccrual loan. Loans classified a
TDRs remain classified as such until the loan id p#.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established agtoare estimated to have occurred through a wovisr loan losses charged to earnings.
Loan losses are charged against the allowance miaeagement believes the uncollectibility of a Ibafance is confirmed. Subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses consists of genspalcific, and unallocated reserves and reflectsagement’s estimate of probable loan losses
inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sliet¢. Management uses a consistent and systegunatiess and methodology to evaluate the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on atelyabasis. The calculation of the allowance fman losses is segregated by portfolio
segments, which include: commercial real estateneercial business, consumer, and residential statee Loans purchased by the LASG are
further segregated from the aforementioned segmBigk characteristics relevant to each portfoigraent are as follows:

Residential real estate: The Company generally doesriginate loans with a loan-to-value ratioages than 80 percent and does not
grant subprime loans. All loans in this segmentcaltateralized by residential real estate and yapt is primarily dependent on the
credit quality of the individual borrower. The oa#ithealth of the economy, particularly unemployineres and housing prices, has a
significant effect on the credit quality in thisgseent. For purposes of the Company’s allowancéofm loss calculation, home equity
loans and lines of credit are included in residdméal estate.

Commercial real estate: Loans in this segment iam@apily income-producing properties. For ownerggied properties, the cash flows
are derived from an operating business, and thenyidg cash flows may be adversely affected beudetation in the financial conditic
of the operating business. The underlying cashdlgenerated by non-owner occupied properties magbersely affected by increased
vacancy rates. Management periodically obtainsnalst, with which it monitors the cash flows oetfe loans. Adverse developments in
either of these areas will have an adverse effethe credit quality of this segment. For purpasfethe allowance for loan losses, this
segment also includes construction loans.

Commercial business: Loans in this segment are realdesinesses and are generally secured by teesadghe business. Repayment is
expected from the cash flows of the business. Wiasiknal or regional economic conditions, and altaat decrease in consumer or
business spending, will have an adverse effechertedit quality of this segment.

Consumer: Loans in this segment are generally sdcand repayment is dependent on the credit guwdlihe individual borrower.
Repayment of consumer loans is generally baseteoadrnings of individual borrowers, which may Heeasely impacted by regional
labor market conditions.

Purchased: Loans in this segment are secured bynecrial real estate, multi-family residential reatate, or business assets and have
been acquired by the LASG. Loans acquired by th8GAare, with limited exceptions, performing loahthe date of purchase. Loans in
this segment acquired with specific material crddterioration since origination are identifiedpaschased credit-impaired (“PCI”).
Repayment of loans in this segment is largely dépenon cash flow from the successful operatiothefproperty, in the case of non-
owner occupied property, or operating businesthércase of owner-occupied property. Loan
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performance may be adversely affected by factdestifig the general economy or conditions spetdfithe real estate market such as
geographic location or property type. Loans in #ggment are evaluated for impairment under ASG3810rhe Company reviews
expected cash flows from purchased loans on aeqhatbasis. The effect of a decline in expected dbsvs subsequent to the acquisit
of the loan is recognized through a specific alfimeain the allowance for loan losses.

The general component of the allowance for loasdsss based on historical loss experience adjtistepialitative factors stratified by loan
segment. The Company considers its loss experinzgequent to the Merger in its quantitative histbtoss analysis. The Company does no
weight periods used in that analysis to deterntieealverage loss rate in each portfolio segmens Historical loss factor is adjusted for the
following qualitative factors:

e Levels and trends in delinquenc
e Trends in the volume and nature of lo

» Trends in credit terms and policies, including umdéing standards, procedures and practices, la@@xperience and ability of
lending management and st

» Trends in portfolio concentratic

* National and local economic trends and conditi

» Effects of changes or trends in internal risk rggi

»  Other effects resulting from trends in the valuatid underlying collatere

There were no changes in the Company’s policiesethodology pertaining to the general componethefallowance for loan losses during
fiscal year 2012.

The allocated component of the allowance for lamsés relates to loans that are classified as igthdmpairment is measured on a loan-by-
loan basis for commercial business and commere#lastate loans by either the present value afaggd future cash flows discounted at the
loan’s effective interest rate or the fair valuetluoé collateral if the loan is collateral depend&ar impaired loans that are collateral dependen
the Company obtains or conducts an appraisal ofdHateral within 90 days of initial impairment.

An allowance is established when the discountel fitaws (or collateral value) of the impaired loariower that the carrying value of that
loan. Large groups of smaller-balance homogeneamarss| such as consumer and residential real déstate are collectively evaluated for
impairment based on the group’s historical losseence adjusted for qualitative factors. Accortiinthe Company does not separately
identify individual consumer and residential lodmisindividual impairment and disclosure. Howevadt,loans modified in troubled debt
restructurings are individually reviewed for impaant.

For all loans segments except the purchased laanes® a loan is considered impaired when, basedioent information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be unable to colteetscheduled payments of principal or interestmiue according to the contractual terms
of the loan agreement. Loans that experience iifgignt payment delays and payment shortfalls gaheare not classified as impaired.
Management determines the significance of paymelatyd and payment shortfalls on a case-by-cass, ltaking into consideration all of the
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borraweluding the length of the delay, the reasomgtie delay, the borrower’s prior payment
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relatiothe principal and interest owed. For the puselddoan segment, a loan is considered
impaired when, based on current information anch&syet is probable that the Company will be undblesalize cash flows as estimated at
acquisition. Loan impairment of purchased loamaéasured based on the decrease in expected cashfifton those estimated at acquisition,
excluding changes due to decreases in interesindites, discounted at the loan’s effective rasuaned at acquisition. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payrstius, collateral value, and the probabilityhaf collecting scheduled principal and
interest payments when due.

39



Table of Contents

The Company periodically may agree to modify thetactual terms of loans. When a loan is modified a concession is made to a borrowel
experiencing financial difficulty, the modificatida considered a TDR. The Company considers afidaaodified in a TDR as impaired loans.
By policy, loans classified as TDRs remain classifas such until the loan is paid off.

The unallocated component of the allowance refitanargin of imprecision inherent in the undertyassumptions used in the
methodologies for estimating allocated and gerressrves in the portfolio.

Business Combination Accounting

The application of the acquisition method of acdmgfor a business combination, in accordance WHBE 805, requires the use of significant
estimates and assumptions in the determinationeofdir value of assets acquired and liabilitiesuased in order to properly allocate purchase
price consideration. The Company considers accogmlicies related to these fair value measuresenbe critical because they are
important to the portrayal of the Company’s finahciondition and results subsequent to the Meagsat they require subjective and complex
judgment as a result of the need to make estinaditest the effects of matters that are inherentiyediain. The Compar's estimates of the fair
values of assets and liabilities acquired are baped assumptions believed to be reasonable, ard wpropriate, include assistance from
independent third-party appraisal firms.

Loans acquired were recorded at fair value in atanace with the fair value methodology prescribed8C 820. The fair value estimates
associated with acquired loans include estimatasekto expected prepayments and the amount muirgtiof undiscounted expected princiy
interest and other cash flows. Loans acquired byCtbmpany through the Merger that have experieaagsterioration in credit quality from
origination for which it is probable that the aaguiwill be unable to collect all contractually teged payments receivable, including both
principal and interest, are accounted for under 83C-30. In the assessment of credit quality detation, the Company must make numerou:
assumptions, interpretations and judgments usitegrial and third-party credit quality informatiamdetermine whether it is probable that the
Company will be able to collect all contractualgquired payments. This is a point in time assessamhinherently subjective due to the
nature of the available information and judgmembimed.

This discussion has highlighted those accountirigips that management considers to be criticaléwer all accounting policies are
important, and therefore the reader is encourageeview each of the policies included in Note th® Consolidated Financial Statements to
gain a better understanding of how Northeast'snfiiel performance is measured and reported.

Overview

Northeast Bancorp is a Maine corporation and a tmhding company registered with the Federal Resander the Bank Holding Compa

Act of 1956. The Company also is a registered Mémencial institution holding company. The FeddRalserve is the primary regulator of the
Company, and the Company is also subject to rdgnland examination by the Superintendent of thin®8ureau of Financial

Institutions. Northeast Bancorp’s principal assehi capital stock of Northeast Bank (the “Bank"Maine state-chartered universal

bank. Accordingly, the Company’s results of openagiare primarily dependent on the results of fferations of the Bank.

The Company'’s financial and strategic highlightsffscal 2012 include the following:

» Purchased commercial loans totaling $101.8 millaond earned an average yield on the purchasedlodf 16.3%, a result that
includes regularly scheduled interest and accretiod accelerated accretion and fees recognizéshorpayoffs. The Company
also monitors the “total return” on its purchasealn portfolio, a measure that includes gains oassafl purchased loans, as well as
interest, scheduled accretion and acceleratedtamtiand fees. On this basis, the purchased lodiofio earned a total return of
18.6% for fiscal 2012
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» Raised $52.7 million of capital in May through tede of shares of common stock in a public offer

* Launched ableBanking, an online affinity deposétfarm in late fiscal 2012. As of June 30, 2012¢Blnking had deposits totali
$2.8 million.

* Sold substantially all assets of Northeast's insceadivision, yielding a pre-tax gain of $1.6 nuilliand increasing tangible equity
by $8.4 million.

» Earned net income of $1.0 million from continuingecations, or $0.15 per diluted she

Results of Operations — Continuing Operations
General
Successor Company

As noted earlier, the results of operations forytear ended June 30, 2012 are not directly comfmtatthe prior year period due to the
application of acquisition accounting in connectieith the Merger. Nonetheless, the discussionftibiws will compare, to the extent
appropriate and useful, certain results for eactoge

Net income from continuing operations for the yeaded June 30, 2012 was $1.0 million. Items ofig@mce affecting the Compa’s
earnings included:

* Anincrease in the net interest margin, which gre\8.69%, compared to 3.58% for the 184 days edded 30, 2011, principally
due to growth in the Company’s purchased loan pliotfThe following table summarizes interest ineand related yields
recognized on the Compé¢'s purchased and originated loa

Interest Income and Yield on Loa

Year Ended June 30, 20 184 Days Ended June 30, 2C
Average Interest Average Interest
Balance Income Yield Balance Income Yield
(Dollars in thousands
Loans- originated $300,62¢  $18,35¢ 6.11% $337,63( $11,54:  6.7&%
Loans- purchaset 39,02: 6,37¢ 16.3%% 0 0 0.0%
Total $339,64(  $24,73: 7.26% $337,63( $11,54¢ 6.78%

The yield on purchased loans was increased by edsitdd loan payoffs during the period, which re=iliin immediate recognition of the
prepaid loans’ discount in interest income. The @any also realized gains on the sale of purchasats! In total, the Company recognized
$3.5 million in “transactional income” during fidc2012, resulting from a total of eleven transatsioTransactional income includes
accelerated discount accretion and fees realizddaonpayoffs and gains on sales of purchased I@dresfollowing table details the “total
return” on purchased loans, based on regularlycidbd interest and accretion and transactionalnmecearned.

Total Return on
Purchased Loar
Year Ended June 30,

2012
Income Return
(Dollars in thousands

Regularly scheduled interest and accre $ 3,76 9.64%
Transactional income

Gains on loan sale 86¢ 2.22%

Accelerated accretion and fees recognized on lagoffs 2,611 6.71%

Total $7,24] 18.51%
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* Net gains on residential mortgage loan sales & 8gllion.

» Security gains totaling $1.1 milliol

* Increased noninterest expenses, principally regpftom increased staffing and infrastructure cosisessary to execute the
Compan’s loan purchasing stratec

For the 184 days ended June 30, 2011, the Comegoayted net income from continuing operations &.$million, or $3.46 per diluted sha
The significant factors affecting the Compaspet income from continuing operations for the @8¢s ended June 30, 2011 included two it
recorded in connection with the Merger: a bargaircpase gain of $15.4 million and merger-relatgoeases of $3.2 million.

Predecessor Compal

For the 181 days ended December 28, 2010, the Gompported net income from continuing operation$107 million, or $0.66 per diluted
share. Financial highlights for the 181 days erdedember 28, 2010 included gains on sales of fiagglresidential mortgages of $1.9 milli
investment commission income of $1.2 million, aed interest income of $8.5 million.
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Net Interest Income

The following table sets forth average balance tshewerage yields and costs, and certain othermdtion for the periods indicated:

Assets:

Interes-earning asset:
Investment securitie®
Loans®®)

Regulatory stocl
Shor-term investment(®)
Total interes-earning asse!

Cash and due from ban
Other norinterest earning asse

Total asset

Liabilities & Stockholder’ Equity:
Interes-bearing liabilities:

NOW account:

Money market accoun

Savings accoun

Time deposit:

Total interes-bearing deposit

Shor-term borrowing<”

Borrowed funds

Junior subordinated debentu
Total interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities of discontinued operatic®
Nonr-interest bearing liabilities
Demand deposits and escrow accol
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

Net interest incom

Interest rate spre¢
Net interest margi®

(1) “Successor Company” means Northeast Bancorptamsdibsidiary after the closing of the mergetvifHB Formation LLC on

December 29, 201

Successor Compai(®)

Year Ended June 30, 20

184 Days Ended June 30, 2(

Average Average
Interest Interest
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate
(Dollars in thousands
$138,70¢ $ 2,01¢ 1.4€% $143,89: $ 1,64 2.32%
339,64 24,73« 7.28%  337,63( 11,54 6.7¢%
5,67: 72 1.27% 5,55( 28 1.00%
76,217 18¢ 0.25% 75,08( 9C 0.24%
560,24¢ 27,01« 4.82% 562,15: 13,30¢ 4.71%
2,91( 3,43
36,80¢ 43,66¢
$599,95¢ $609,25
$ 55216 $ 212 0.3% $ 56,38¢ $ 16C 0.5€%
44,69: 17¢ 0.3<% 52,23¢ 13t 0.51%
32,79¢ 67 0.2(% 34,79¢ 67 0.3&%
223,78. 2,971 1.3%% 207,25: 1,30z 1.25%
356,49: 3,42¢ 0.9¢%  350,67: 1,66¢ 0.94%
1,07t 21 1.95% 19,76¢ 7€ 0.7€%
112,81. 2,11¢ 1.87% 115,79¢ 1,101 1.8%
8,02¢ 751 9.3%% 7,921 36¢ 9.14%
478,40t 6,31 1.32% 494,15 3,20 1.2¢%
271 2,13
45,93: 43,76:
3,93 4,07¢
528,54; 544,12
71,41 65,12;
$599,95¢ $609,25:
$20,69: $10,09:
3.5(% 3.42%
3.6% 3.58%

(2) “Predecessor Company” means Northeast Bangutjita subsidiary prior to the closing of the mergéh FHB Formation LLC on

December 29, 201!

(3) Interestincome and yield are stated on a full-equivalent basis using a 34% tax r:

(4) Includes loans held for sal
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(5) Nonaccrual loans are included in the computatioavefrage, but unpaid interest has not been incltatquirposes of determining inter
income.

(6) Short term investments include FHLB overnight dégsaand other intere-bearing deposits

(7) Short term borrowings include securities sold undpurchase agreements and sweep accc

(8) The average balance of borrowings associatdddiscontinued operations has been excluded frdendst expense, interest rate spread,
and net interest margi

(9) Netinterest margin is calculated as net interestine divided by total intere-earning asset:

Predecessor Compa(?)
181 Days Ended

December 28, 201 Year Ended June 30, 20
Average Average
Interest Interest
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate
(Dollars in thousands
Assets:
Interes-earning asset:
Investment securitie® $161,89: $ 3,111 3.9¢% $163,60. $ 7,62¢ 4.6€%
Loans® 385,28t 11,21( 5.81% 392,39¢ 23,80: 6.07%
Regulatory stocl 5,48¢ 18 0.6€% 5,48¢ 36 0.6€%
Shor-term investment®) 39,21 39 0.2(% 8,761 12 0.14%
Total interes-earning asse! 591,87¢ 14,37¢ 492% 570,24t 31,47« 5.52%
Cash and due from ban 3,34( 5,967
Other norinterest earning asse 34,72« 35,25
Total asset $629,94. $611,46!

Liabilities & Stockholder’ Equity:
Interes-bearing liabilities:

NOW account: $ 5378 $ 18¢ 0.69% $ 4827. $ 37¢ 0.7%
Money market accoun 55,95¢ 21: 0.7%% 43,97« 532 1.21%
Savings accoun! 38,30: 99 0.52% 29,36¢ 181 0.62%
Time deposit: 196,31¢ 2,301 2.3% 224,39 6,02: 2.68%
Total interes-bearing deposit 344,35¢ 2,79¢ 1.64%  346,01( 7,11¢ 2.0€%
Shor-term borrowing<” 53,87 37¢ 1.41% 42,94( 654 1.52%
Borrowed funds 117,68t 2,36t 4.05%  116,16( 4,78¢ 4.12%
Junior subordinated debentu 16,49¢ 34C 4.1€% 16,49¢ 75¢ 4.6(%

Total interes-bearing liabilities 532,41: 5,871 22% 521,60t 13,31« 2.55%

Interes-bearing liabilities of discontinued operatic® 2,462 2,84:

Nonr-interest bearing liabilities

Demand deposits and escrow accol 37,94 34,18¢

Other liabilities 5,57¢ 3,33

Total liabilities 578,39: 561,96t

Stockholder equity 51,55( 49,49¢

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $629,94. $611,46!
Net interest incom $ 8,501 $18,16(

Interest rate spree 2.6% 2.9%

Net interest margi(® 2.92% 3.1&%

(1) “Successor Company” means Northeast Bancorptsusdibsidiary after the closing of the mergetvdtHHB Formation LLC on
December 29, 201!
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(2) “Predecessor Company” means Northeast Bancatpits subsidiary prior to the closing of the mengé&h FHB Formation LLC on
December 29, 201!

(3) Interestincome and yield are stated on a full-equivalent basis using a 34% tax r:

(4) Includes loans held for sal

(5) Nonaccrual loans are included in the computatioavefrage, but unpaid interest has not been incltatguurposes of determining inter
income.

(6) Short term investments include FHLB overnight dégand other intere-bearing deposit:

(7) Short term borrowings include securities sold undpurchase agreements and sweep accc

(8) The average balance of borrowings associatdddiscontinued operations has been excluded frdendst expense, interest rate spread,
and net interest margi

(9) Net interest margin is calculated as net interestine divided by total intere-earning asset:

Rate and volume variance analyses allocate thegehiarinterest income and expense between theopdttat is due to changes in the rates
earned or paid for specific categories of asseaddiahilities and the portion that is due to chamgethe average balances between the two
periods. However, the successor and predecessodgén fiscal 2011 are not comparable to fiscdl28ue to the significant effect of
acquisition accounting adjustments, and thus redwvalume variance analysis is provided for thesépgs.

Successor Company

For the period, the 3.69% net interest margin ehwes 11 basis points higher than that earnechio84 days ended June 30, 2011. The net
interest margin improved during fiscal year 201idgipally due to the 16.35% yield earned on the @any’s purchased loans, offset in part

a decline in the effect of accretion of Merger-tethfair value adjustments and a reduction in fetyearned on investment securities. The
decrease in the yield on securities was the resalizing gains on the portfolio during the yeard aeinvesting sale proceeds at lower yields.

The following table summarizes interest income aaidted yields recognized on the Company’s purahase originated loans.

Interest Income and Yield on Loa

Year Ended June 30, 20 184 Days Ended June 30, 2C
Average Interest Average Interest
Balance Income Yield Balance Income Yield
(Dollars in thousands
Loans- originated $300,62¢ $18,35¢ 6.11%  $337,63( $11,54¢ 6.7¢%
Loans- purchaset 39,02: 6,37¢ 16.35% 0 0 0.0(%
Total $339,64¢ $24,73¢ 7.28%  $337,63! $11,54+ 6.7¢%
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The yield on purchased loans was increased by edsitdd loan payoffs during the period, which re=iliin immediate recognition of the
prepaid loans’ discount in interest income. The @any also realized gains on the sale of purchasats| The Company recognized

$3.5 million in transactional income during fis€8l12, resulting from a total of eleven transactidrtge following table details the “total return”
on purchased loans, based on regularly scheduleckst and accretion, accelerated accretion, drat otcome recognized upon unscheduled

loan payoffs or sales.

Total Return on
Purchased Loar

Year Ended
June 30, 201
Income Return
(Dollars in thousands
Regularly scheduled interest and accre $ 3,76 9.64%
Transactional income

Gains on loan sale 86¢ 2.22%
Accelerated accretion and fees recognized on lagoffs 2,617 6.71%
Total $7,24i 18.51%

The following table summarizes the effects of atoreof fair value adjustments on the net intematgin, for the periods indicated:

Noncash Accretion (Amortization) of Fair Value Adjments from the Mergt

Year Ended June 30, 20 184 Days Ended June 30, 2(
Effect Effect
on on
Yield / Yield /
Average Income Average Income
Balance (Expense Rate Balance (Expense Rate

(Dollars in thousands

Interes-earning asset:

Investment securities - -
$138,70¢ $ (100 0.07% $143,89: $ (742) 1.02%

Loans 339,64t 713 0.21% 337,63l 1,42 0.84%

Other interest earning ass 81,89( 0 0.0(% 80,63( 0 0.0(%
Total interes-earning assel $560,24t $ 61% 0.11%  $562,15: $ 68C 0.24%
Interes-bearing liabilities:

Interes-bearing deposit 356,49: 1,292 0.3€% 350,67 882 0.5(%

Shor-term borrowings 1,07t 0 0.0(% 19,76¢ 0 0.0(%

Borrowed funds 112,81: 2,29¢ 2.04% 115,79¢ 1,167 2.0(%

Junior subordinated debentures - -

8,02¢ (129) 1.61% 7,921 (68) 1.7(%

Total interes-bearing liabilities $478,40t $ 3,46 0.7%  $494,15 $ 1,981 0.8(%
Total effect of noncash accretion (amortization)

Net interest incom $4,07¢ $ 2,661

Net interest margi 0.7% 0.94%

The cost of funding was little changed when comqgfiscal 2012 to the 184 days ended June 30, 2&i2g 3 basis points to 1.32% in fiscal
2012 from 1.29% in the earlier period.

Predecessor Compal

The net interest margin for the 181 days ended Dbee 28, 2010 was 2.92%. The yield on earning asga$ 4.92%, which included higher
yielding investment securities, compared to mar&ggs for such instruments
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fiscal 2012. The cost of interest- bearing lial@Btwas 2.23% for the period, higher than comparedies in fiscal 2012. As noted above, the
results of the prior period is not directly comgdeawith those of the current periods as a redith® accretion of fair value adjustments in the
current periods.

Provision for Loan Losses

Quarterly, the Company determines the amount @flliésvance for loan losses adequate to providéokses inherent in the Company’s loan
portfolios, with the provision for loan losses deted by the net change in the allowance for leases. For acquired loans accounted for
under ASC 310-30, a provision for loan losses é@rded when estimates of future cash flows are dkan had been previously expected.

The provision for loan losses for periods subsetiteethe Merger reflects the impact of adjustingrs to their then fair values, as well as the
elimination of the allowance for loan losses in@dance with the acquisition method of account®igbsequent to the Merger, the provision
for loan losses has been recorded based on estiofateherent losses in newly originated loans fandhcremental reserves required for pre-
merger loans based on estimates of deterioratelit cueality post-merger.

Successor Company

The provision for loan losses for the fiscal yemded June 30, 2012 was $946 thousand. This comfmasegrovision for loan losses of

$707 thousand for the 184 days ended June 30, 20T1ine 30, 2012 and 2011, the allowance for loases stood at $824 thousand and
$437 thousand, respectively, and the ratio of aloee for loan losses to total loans was 0.23% at4P®, respectively. The allowance for loan
losses at June 30, 2012 reflects provisions fardaaiginated post-Merger, and the effect of amditrdeterioration in the Company’s pre-
Merger loan portfolio. Management’s analysis of @@mpany’s purchased loans detected no creditidedéion since the dates of the loans’
purchase, and accordingly no provision for loasésswas recorded for the purchased portfolio gafi2012. Net chargeffs for the fiscal yea
ended June 30, 2012 totaled $559 thousand, repireg@pproximately 0.17% of the Compasyverage portfolio loan balance during the fi
year.

Predecessor Compal

The provision for loan losses for the 181 days dridecember 28, 2010 was $912 thousand. As indiaiede, the allowance for loan losses
was eliminated at the time of the Merger. Loan$iwitlicators of deteriorated credit quality at timee of the Merger were recorded at fair
value and assigned a nonaccretable differenceghttedower level of overall loan loss provisiossaciated with the Successor Company
during the current year periods.

For additional information on the allowance forddasses, see “Asset Quality.”

Noninterest Income
Successor Company

Noninterest income for the fiscal year ended Juhe2812 totaled $9.7 million. During the fiscal yeihie Company realized $1.1 million
security gains, investment commissions of $2.8iomjland produced total gains on loan sales of 88ll&n, of which $2.8 resulted from sales
of residential mortgage loans. During the fiscary¢he Company originated residential mortgagtditg $136.3 million, of which

$123.9 million were sold into the secondary mari&ins on portfolio loan sales totaled $1.1 milliprincipally resulting from the sale of
loans acquired by the LASG.

Noninterest income for the 184 days ended Jun2QL totaled $20.2 million, which includes a -recurring bargain purchase gain of
$15.4 million resulting from the application of thequisition method of accounting in connectiorhwvtite Merger. During the period, the
Company also realized net securities gains totaling
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$1.2 million, investment commission totaling $1.4lion, and gains on sales of residential mortgkgas of $945 thousand. The remaining
noninterest income earned in the period totaled@ Biillion.

Predecessor Compal

Noninterest income for the 181 days ended Dece@®e2010 totaled $4.2 million. Significant itemsluded gains on sales of residen
mortgage loans totaling $1.9 million, and investtm@mmissions totaling $1.2 million.

Noninterest Expense
Successor Company

Noninterest expense for the fiscal year ended 3002012, was $28.3 million. The level of noningtrexpense for the period includes
significant staffing and infrastructure costs nsegg to execute the Company’s loan purchasingeglyaits online affinity deposit program, as
well as the resources necessary to increase thalbvapacity of the organization in the areasigif management, financial management, and
operations.

When compared to the pre-Merger operations of ag@any, the most significant areas of increaseidel

» Salaries and employee benefits expense, which ®&$ $nillion for fiscal 2012 compared to $4.9 naillifor the 181-day pre-
Merger period. The Company’s employees, on a fuiktequivalent basis, totaled 203 at June 30, 2242y 12.2% higher than the
181 employed by the Predecessor Company prioretd/Mérger. The increase is the result of an incread& employees in the
Company’s Loan Acquisition and Servicing Groupjraarease of 3 employees related to ableBankingyedisas additions to
executive management, risk management, financebaci-office operations

» Occupancy and equipment expense, which totaledrliBn in fiscal 2012 compared to $1.4 millionrfthe 181-day pre-Merger
period. The increase was principally due to add#laent and occupancy costs associated with timep@ny’s Boston office, as we
as depreciation and maintenance associated widsiments in new business initiativ

» Professional fees, which were $1.7 million for §62012, compared to $509 thousand for the 181pdesMerger period. The
Company'’s increased professional fees during fi26aP were principally due to consulting and legzdts associated with the
implementation of the Compa’s loan purchasing and online affinity banking sigats.

» Intangible asset amortization, which was $1.2 onillin fiscal 2012, resulting from a core deposiaingible asset of $6.4 million
recorded in connection with the Merger, and whiheing amortized on an accelerated basis overe@rs. No intangible asset
amortization was recorded in the -day pre-Merger period

Noninterest expense for the 184 days ended Jur203@,was $17.1 million, and includes two -recurring items: $3.2 million of non-
recurring merger related expenses and $450 thousfaetiention payments paid in connection with Merger.

Predecessor Compal

Noninterest expense for the 181 days ended Dece28@010 totaled $9.5 million. With the exceptafmrmerger expenses of $94 thous:
during the 181 days ended December 28, 2010, revesttexpenses in the prior year period refleataboperations of the Predecessor
Company, and are therefore not directly compartbthe current year periods, given the additioneifess initiatives undertaken by the
Successor Company.
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Income Taxes
Successor Company

Income tax expense for the fiscal year ended JOn2@L2 totaled $181 thousand, representing 15fl8¢etax income. The effective tax rate
for the period reflects the level of pretax incoimeelation to nontaxable income, principally bamkned life insurance (“BOLI") income
totaling $501 thousand, and low-income housingctaxlits totaling $118 thousand.

The income tax benefit for the 184 days ended 30n@011 totaled $83 thousand, representing 0.7ptetéx income. Within the operating
results for the 184-day period ended June 30, 20dth, the bargain purchase gain and Merger-rekextpdnses are not subject to Federal
income tax. The Company’s BOLI income ($258 thod3amd municipal interest income ($76 thousandjése non-taxable. The income tax
benefit of $83 thousand recorded for the 184 dagee June 30, 2011 reflects the exclusion of titesss, as well as the recognition of

$91 thousand of low-income housing tax credits.

Predecessor Compal

Income tax expense recorded for the 181 days eDdedmber 28, 2010 was $698 thousand. The Compafigtive tax rate of 29.5% for the
181 days ended December 28, 2010 differed fromitstat rates principally as a result of tax exengausity income and BOLI income, in
addition to low-income housing tax credits. Theseffof these items were partially offset by memgrenses, which are not deductible for
income tax purposes.

Results of Operations — Discontinued Operations
Overview

In the first quarter of fiscal 2012, the Companiddntangible assets (principally customer lists)l @ertain fixed assets of Northeast Bank
Insurance Group (“NBIG”) to local insurance agerdietwo separate transactions. The Varney Agemecy,of Bangor, Maine purchased the
assets of nine NBIG offices in Anson, Auburn, Augui8ethel, Livermore Falls, Scarborough, SouthsPahomaston and Turner, Maine. The
NBIG office in Berwick, Maine, which now operatesder the name of Spence & Matthews, was acquireamgmber of NBI’s senior
management team. In connection with the transaat@enCompany also repaid borrowings associateld MBIG totaling $2.1 million.
Customer lists and certain fixed assets of indi@ldNBIG agency offices were also sold in fiscal 2@Ghd 2010.

The Company no longer conducts any significant ajg@ns in the insurance agency business, and tirerbas classified the operating results
of NBIG, and the associated gain on sale of thisidin, as discontinued operations in the consdididinancial statements.

Successor Company

Net income from discontinued operations for thedisyear ended June 30, 2012 was $1.1 millionpa&per diluted share, which include
pre-tax gain on the sale of NBIG intangibles andaie fixed assets, net of expenses, of $1.6 millithe Company also recorded pre-tax
income associated with operations of $186 thougaiad to the asset sale. Income tax expense assdaiath discontinued operations for the
year ended June 30, 2012 was $605 thousand or 3#.5%-tax income.

For the 184 days ended June 30, 2011, the Comegoyted net income from discontinued operatior4afthousand, or $0.01 per diluted
share.

Predecessor Compal

For the 181 days ended December 28, 2010, the Gompported net income from discontinued operatafr&l 29 thousand, or $0.05 per
diluted share. Net income from discontinued operstifor the period includes a
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$105 thousand gain on sale of customer lists aedifassets associated with the Company’s JackmainglMinsurance agency office.

Financial Condition
Overview

The Company’s total assets grew to $669.2 milliodume 30, 2012, representing an increase of $7lli®n, or 12.2%, compared to $596.4
million at June 30, 2011. This increase was priaitypattributable to growth in the Company’s loasrtfolio and to the Compang’public stocl
offering in May 2012. Net of expenses, the pubffeiing increased capital by $52.7 million throutje sale of 6,875,917 shares of common
stock. At June 30, 2012, common shares outstardtated 10,383,441.

Significant changes in the Company’s balance st@@ponents include:
* a$44.3 million, or 52.8%, increase in cash andh eggiivalents, principally resulting from the afoientioned capital rais

» loan growth of $51.0 million, or 16.2%, principaliyie to net growth of $83.8 million in the Companpurchased loan portfolio,
offset in part by amortization and payoffs from theginated loan portfolio of $32.8 millio

» an $8.6 million, or 65.8%, decrease in intangildsess, resulting primarily from the sale of insweagency division asse

* a$21.1 million, or 5.3%, increase in depositsadithrough the Community Banking Division and alaleBng, the Bank’s online
affinity deposit platform

* a$54.2 million, or 83.4%, change in total stockleot’ equity, principally due to $52.7 million irihproceeds received from the
May 2012 common stock offering and retained eashiog fiscal 2012. At June 30, 2012, the Comparijer one leverage ratio &
total risk-based capital ratio were 19.91% and 33.34%, reispigctcompared to 10.35% and 18.99% at June 301 2@spectively

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents increased $44.3 mibios2.8%, to $128.3 million at June 30, 2012 aspanad to $83.9 million at June 30, 2011.
This increase was the result of new capital recktheough the May 2012 common stock offering, améase in deposits, and a decrease in
investment securities.

Investments Securities

The available-for-sale securities portfolio totafi83.3 million and $149.0 million at June 30, 2@t2l 2011, respectively. The year over yeat
decrease of $15.7 million, or 10.5%, was primadlie to the principal amortization of mortgage-bakc&ecurities and the sale of securities
during the year. Mortgage-backed securities and @dvernment-sponsored enterprise bonds totali2gbhillion were pledged for
outstanding borrowings at June 30, 2012.
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At June 30, 2012, the Company investment portfwls comprised entirely of U.S. Government-sponsergdrprise bonds and mortgage-
backed securities guaranteed by government aget@éerally, funds retained by the Company asutreSincreases in deposits or decrease
in loans, to the extent not immediately deployedh®yBank, are invested in securities held inntestment portfolio, which serves as a source
of liquidity for the Company. The composition oBtEompany’s securities portfolio at the dates iatdid follows.

Successor Compat | Predecessor Compa
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 ] June 30, 201

Amortized Amortized Amortized

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value J Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands

U.S. Government agency securit $ 45,82: $ 4580¢ $ 48,827 $ 48,737 |$ 858 $ 8,64¢
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 86,81¢ 87,45¢ 99,63} 99,55¢ 126,53° 133,86
Municipal bonds 0 0 0 0 11,90¢ 12,001
Corporate bond 0 0 0 0 994 1,03(
Collateralized mortgage obligatio 0 0 0 0 7,331 7,42
Trust preferred securitie 0 0 46€ 451 584 441
Equity securitie: 0 0 19z 21€ | 1,04¢ 77€
$132,64( $133,26: $149,120 $148,96: | $156,97¢ $164,18t

The table below sets forth certain information regsy the contractual maturities and weighted ayergelds of the Company’s securities
portfolio at June 30, 2012. Actual maturities ofrtgage-backed securities will differ from contraadtmaturities due both to scheduled
amortization and prepayments.

Within One After One Year After Five Years

Year Through Five Year Through Ten Year After Ten Years Total
Amount  Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
(Dollars in thousands
U.S. Government agency securit $ 0 0.0(% %$45,80¢ 1.52% $ 0 0.0(% $ 0 0.0(% $ 45,80¢ 1.52%
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 0 0.0(% 0 0.00% 12,01: 2.8% 7544« 3.0%  87,45¢ 3.06%

»

0 0.0% $4580¢ 1.52% $12,01: 2.8¢% $7544: 3.0¢% $133,26: 2.5%

Management reviews the portfolio of investment&nrongoing basis to determine if there have begrotrer-than-temporary declines in
value. No other-than-temporary impairment expenas recognized during fiscal 2012. No impairmentegge was recognized for the 181 day
period ended December 28, 2010 and $7 thousamdpafiiment expense was recognized for the 184 dagdended June 30, 2011.
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Loans

Loans, including loans held-for-sale, totaled $264illion at June 30, 2012, compared to $315.lionlat June 30, 2011. The increase of
$51.0 million, or 16.2%, at June 30, 2012, was@pially due to a net increase of $63.0 million anunercial real estate loans, offset by
decreases in all other categories. During fiscdP2the LASG purchased $101.8 million in loans,sisting principally of commercial real
estate loans. At June 30, 2012, purchased loaagdo$84.5 million, of which $80.5 million or 95.34ere commercial real estate loans.

The composition of the Company’s loan portfoliodlexiing loans held-for-sale) at the dates indicadeas follows:

Successor Compat i Predecessor Compa
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 i June 30, 201 June 30, 200 June 30, 200
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
Amount of Total Amount of Total J Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
(Dollars in thousands

Originated portfolio

Residential real esta  $133,64(  37.51% $145,47° 46.94% | $155,61. 40.7(% $138,90( 35.29% $140,42¢ 34.3:%

Commercial real esta  100,19¢ 28.1%% 117,12« 37.7% | 121,17* 31.7(% 120,73( 30.6% 111,05¢ 27.1%%

Constructior 1,187 0.3% 2,01t 0.65% 5,52¢ 1.45% 6,38¢ 1.62% 4,537 1.11%

Commercial busines 19,61: 5.51% 22,22: 7.17% 30,21« 7.9(% 29,21 7.42% 33,59 8.21%

Consumer and othi 17,14¢ 4.81% 22,43t 7.28% 69,78. 18.2%% 98,42t 25.0(% 119,58. 29.22%

Total originated
portfolio: 271,78 76.2%% 309,27¢ 99.7% | 382,30¢ 100.0% 393,65. 100.0% 409,19: 100.0%

Purchased portfoli®:

Residential real esta 3,931 1.1(% 0 0.0(% 0 0.0(% 0 0.0(% 0 0.0(%

Commercial real esta 80,53¢ 22.61% 637 0.21% 0 0.0(% 0 0.0(% 0 0.0(%

Total purchased
portfolio: 84,47( 23.71% 637 0.21% 0 0.0(% 0 0.0(% 0 0.0(%
Total loans 356,25« 100.00% 309,91: 100.00% | 382,30¢ 100.006 393,65. 100.0% 409,19 100.00%
Less: Allowance for loan
losses 824 437 5,80¢ 5,76¢ 5,65¢

Net Loans $355,43( $309,47! $376,50: $387,88° $403,53¢
(1) The purchased loan portfolio consists of loans sedwon a nationwide basis by the Comf’s LASG.
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The following table summarizes the scheduled migtofithe Company’s loan portfolio at June 30, 20D2mand loans, loans having no state
repayment schedule, and overdraft loans are repaddeing due in less than one year.

Scheduled Loan Repaymel

Within After One Year After Five Years After Ten
One Yeal Through Five Yeal Through Ten Yea Years Total
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgages
Residential
Originated $ 6,91« $ 13,15: $ 24,63: $ 88,94 $133,64(
Purchasei 0 383 0 3,54¢ 3,931
Commercial
Originated 5,35¢ 11,88« 13,62 69,33 100,19¢
Purchase! 8,09: 23,90° 10,357 38,18: 80,53¢
Constructior 84¢ 33¢ 0 0 1,18:
Non-mortgage loans
Commercia 9,06¢ 8,761 1,60¢ 17¢ 19,61:
Consumer and othi 47% 3,07( 5,597 8,00¢ 17,14¢
Total loans $30,75: $ 61,49¢ $ 55,81« $208,19. $356,25¢
Loans Due After One Year, by Interest Rate T
Predetermine
Floating or
rate Adjustable Total
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgages
Residential
Originated $ 70,06¢ $ 56,65¢ $126,72t
Purchase! 38¢ 3,54¢ 3,931
Commercial:
Originated 7,02¢ 87,81: 94,84:
Purchase! 42,52 29,91¢ 72,44¢
Constructior 0 33¢ 33¢
Non-mortgage loans
Commercia 6,47¢ 4,07( 10,54«
Consumer and otht 16,64 34 16,67¢
Total $ 143,12. $182,38( $325,50:

The Company continues to sell most originated firee residential real estate loans into the semgnoharket. A summary of residential real
estate loans originated during the years ended 3o,n2012 and 2011 follow.

2012 2011
Percent Percent
Amount of Total Amount of Total
(Dollars in thousands
Sold $123,91¢ 90.92% $143,66¢ 94.81%
Retainec 12,36¢ 9.08% 7,86¢ 5.1%%
Total originations $136,28! 100.0(% $151,53: 100.0(%

Of total portfolio loans at June 30, 2012, appraatiety 56.3% were variable rate products, compareégd 3% at June 30, 2011. This decrease
in the percentage of variable rate products regydtacipally from a decrease in home equity linésredit.
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The Merger was accounted for under ASC 805, whecjuires the use of the acquisition method of actwegnAll identifiable assets acquired,
including loans, were recorded at fair value athefdate of the merger. No allowance for loan Issstated to the acquired loans was recorde
on the acquisition date because the fair valub@tdans acquired incorporated assumptions regaoiadit risk. Loans acquired were recor

at fair value in accordance with the fair value moefology prescribed in ASC 820. The fair valuereates associated with acquired loans
include estimates related to expected prepaymexitshe amount and timing of undiscounted expectagtipal, interest and other cash flows.
The fair value adjustments recorded at Decembe2@B) in connection with loans acquired throughNtezger follow:

Predecessi
Fair Value Successor
Company Adjustmen Company
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgage loans
Residentia $ 99,88t $ (37 $ 99,85!
Commercia 118,60: (1,549 117,05:
Constructior 9,311 (18¢) 9,12:
Home equity 52,30¢ (500 51,80¢
280,10¢ (2,279 277,83
Other loans
Commercial busines 27,52¢ (1,815 25,71«
Consume 59,64 (1,45%) 58,19:
Total $367,28! $ (5,549 $361,74.

At June 30, 2012, the remaining discount resultiom fair value adjustments recorded at the Medgee totaled $2.1 million.

Certain loans acquired through the Merger, andretaequired subsequently, were identified as hagindence of credit deterioration since
their origination, and it was probable that the @amy would not collect all contractually requirathpipal and interest payments. Purchased
credit-impaired (“PCI”) loans identified at the #nof the acquisition are accounted for using thasueement provisions set forth in ASC 310-
30. PClI loans were recorded at fair value at the dhacquisition and the historical allowancedoedit losses related to these loans was not
carried over.

A nonaccretable difference was established in a&tipn accounting for PCI loans to absorb lossgxeeted at that time on those loans. Losse:
absorbed by the nonaccretable difference do nettffie income statement or the allowance for loases.

All of the Company’s PCI loans are accounted foindsvsidual loans. The following table details PiGans identified at the Merger date of
December 29, 2010.

Commercial
real estate ar
Residential
real estate Commercial
and Consumt busines Total
(Dollars in thousands

Contractually required payments receive $ 3,67 $ 6,06¢€ $9,74:
Nonaccretable differenc (93¢) (2,410 (3,349
Cash flows expected to be collec 2,73¢ 3,65¢ 6,39¢
Accretable yielc (1,209 (486 1,69(
Fair value of loans acquire $ 1,53t $  3,17(C $ 4,70¢
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The following tables present a summary of PCI conumaéreal estate loans acquired by the LASG dutiregyear ended June 30, 2012 (dollar
in thousands):

Contractually required payments receive $35,45¢

Nonaccretable differenc (8,76%)

Cash flows expected to be collec 26,69(

Accretable yielc (8,58¢)

Fair value of loans acquire $18,10:
Other Assets

The cash surrender value of the Company’s BOLItassereased $501 thousand, or 3.6%, to $14.3anibit June 30, 2012, compared to
$13.8 million at June 30, 2011. BOLI assets arested in the general account of three insuranceanias and in separate accounts of a fq
insurance company. A general account policy’s caslender value is supported by the general ass#ts insurance company. A separate
account policy’s cash surrender value is suppdijedssets segregated from the general assets iofsth@nce company. Standard and Poor’s
rated these companies A+ or better at June 30,.20tE2est earnings, net of mortality costs, insesthe cash surrender value. These interest
earnings are based on interest rates that redetyeac, and are subject to minimum guaranteed.ratesse increases in cash surrender vall
recognized in other income and are not subjeaidome taxes. Borrowing on or surrendering a patiay subject the Company to income tax
expense on the increase in cash surrender valu¢hése reasons, management considers BOLI anidlasset. BOLI represented 11.5% of
the Company’s total risk-based capital at June28Q2.

Intangible assets totaled $4.5 million and $13.lioni at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, respeygtivhe $8.6 million reduction was the
result of the sale of $7.4 million of intangiblesats (principally customer lists) in connectionhtiie insurance agency transaction in the first
quarter of fiscal 2012, as well as amortizationhaf core deposit intangible asset recorded in catijon with the Merger.

Deposits

The Company'’s principal source of funding is itsecdeposit accounts. At June 30, 2012, core depyadgitich the Company defines as non-
maturity accounts and certificates of deposit wiifiances less than $250 thousand, represented @7 @4l deposits.

Total deposits increased $21.1 million to $422.Riom as of June 30, 2012 from $401.1 million aslohe 30, 2011. The increase was the r
of a $27.2 million increase in certificate accouwnffset by a $6.1 million decrease in non-matuaitgounts. The reduction in non-maturity
accounts was principally due to the decrease imeercial loans at the Community Banking Divisionddhe deposit relationships linked to
those loans. The increase in certificate accouatsachieved, in part, through deposit listing ®wj which the Bank used primarily to obtain
5-year funding. At June 30, 2012, the Bank had ##IBon in deposits through its online affinity pesit program, ableBanking.
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The following tables set forth certain informatiaiative to the composition of the Company’s averdgposit accounts and the weighted

average interest rate on each category of defositse periods indicated:

Successor Compar

Year Ended June 30, 20 184 Days Ended June 30, 2(

Weightec Percent Weightec Percent

of Total of Total

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Balance Rate Deposits Balance Rate Deposits

(Dollars in thousands

Nonr-interest bearing demand deposits and escrow acc $ 45,93 0.0(% 11.4%  $ 43,76 0.0(% 11.1(%
Regular saving 32,79¢ 0.2(% 8.15% 34,79¢ 0.3t% 8.82%
NOW accountt 55,21¢ 0.3% 13.7%% 56,38¢ 0.56% 14.3(%
Money market accoun 44,69 0.3% 11.19% 52,23¢ 0.51% 13.2%%
Time deposit: 223,78. 1.3%% 55.61% 207,25: 1.25% 52.5%
Total average deposi $402,42: 0.85% 100.0%  $394,43! 0.84% 100.0%

Predecessor Compa

181 Days Ended Year Ended
December 28, 201 June 30, 201
Weightec Percent Weightec Percent
of Total of Total
Average Average Average Average
Amount Rate Deposits Amount Rate Deposits
(Dollars in thousands
Nonr-interest bearing demand deposits and escrow acc $ 37,94: 0.0(% 9.92%  $ 34,18¢ 0.0(% 8.9%%
Regular saving 38,30: 0.52% 10.02% 29,36¢ 0.62% 1.7%
NOW accountt 53,78( 0.6% 14.0% 48,27 0.7% 12.7(%
Money market accoun 55,95¢ 0.7%% 14.6%% 43,97« 1.21% 11.5%
Time deposit: 196,31t 2.3% 51.3%% 224,39¢ 2.68% 59.02%
Total average deposi $382,29° 1.47% 100.006  $380,19¢ 1.8 100.0(%

As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate amount of audstg certificates of deposit in amounts greatantbr equal to $100 thousand was

approximately $141.3 million. The scheduled mayunit these deposits is set forth below (dollarthiousands).

3 months or les

Over 3 through 6 montt
Over 6 through 12 montt
Over 12 month:

Total time certificates $100 and o\

$ 11,61(
18,04
9,847
101,84
$141,34!

As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate amount of qwdstg certificates of deposit in amounts greatantar equal to $250 thousand was

approximately $8.7 million. The scheduled matudfythese deposits is set forth below (dollars mugands).

3 months or les

Over 3 through 6 montt

Over 6 through 12 montt

Over 12 month:

Total time certificates $250 and o\
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Borrowed Funds

Short-term borrowings, FHLB advances, Federal ResBiscount Window Borrower-in-custody advancesjcttired repurchase agreements
and junior subordinated debentures have been thgp&ay’s sources of funding other than depositfistral 2012, total borrowed funds
decreased by $3.6 million, or 2.9%, to $120.9 onili

Advances from the FHLB were $43.5 million and $4@lion at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, resmdy, a decrease of $472 thousand,
or 1.1%. At June 30, 2012, the Company had pledgesstment securities having a fair value of $I8illion for outstanding FHLB
borrowings. In addition, pledges of residential estate loans, certain commercial real estateslazud certain FHLB deposits free of liens or
pledges are required to secure outstanding advamckavailable additional borrowing capacity frdme FHLB. Structured repurchase
agreements were $66.2 million and $68.0 milliodwate 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. At June @022he Company had pledged
investment securities having a fair value of $#@illion and cash of $360 thousand for outstandingcsured repurchase agreements.

Short-term borrowings, consisting of sweep accqumése $1.2 million and $2.5 million at June 3012@&nd 2011, respectively. At June 30,
2012, sweep accounts were secured by $2.0 milfidetters of credit issued by the FHLB.

The table below sets forth certain information gtibe Company’s short-term borrowings for the pgsiondicated:

Successor Compat

Year Ended 184 Days Ended
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
Weightec Weightec
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands
Balance at period er $1,20¢ 2.0(% $ 2,51¢ 1.52%
Average outstanding during peri 1,07t 1.95% 19,76 0.7€%
Maximum outstanding at any peri 1,83¢ 62,03
Predecessor Compa
181 Days Ended Year Ended
December 28, 201 June 30, 201
Weighte( Weightec
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands
Balance at period er $62,73" 1.13% $46,16¢ 1.4%
Average outstanding during peri 53,87« 1.41% 42,93¢ 1.52%
Maximum outstanding at any peri 62,73’ 47,82:

There were no balances outstanding at June 30,&@1.2011, respectively, for advances under thefaé&eserve Discount Window
Borrower-in-custody program. The available creditier the program was $369 thousand and $1.0 métigtune 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011,
respectively.

The Company had junior subordinated debenturesdssuaffiliated trusts totaling $8.1 million anl.8 million at June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. See “Capital” below for more inforisaton our junior subordinated debentures andiatiid trusts.
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Asset Quality
Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel llnat management considers adequate to progidardébable loan losses based upon
evaluation of known and inherent risks in the Ipantfolio. The allowance is increased by providingloan losses through a charge to expt
and by recoveries of loans previously charged-off @ reduced by loans being charged-off.

The allowance for loan losses for periods subsedgoethe Merger reflects the impact of adjustingris to their then fair values, as well as the
elimination of the allowance for loan losses in@dance with the acquisition method of account®igbsequent to the Merger, the provision
for loan losses has been recorded based on estiofatéherent losses in newly originated loans fandncremental reserves required for pre-
merger loans based on estimates of deterioratelit cueality post-Merger.
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As of June 30, 2012, the allowance for loan losstded $824 thousand, or 0.23% of total loansoaspared to $437 thousand, or 0.14% of
total loans, at June 30, 2011. The year over yeaease in the Company’s allowance for losses wasipally the result of loan originations
and net-charge offs related to pre-merger loansat©annualized basis, gross chaoffs-in all but the residential real estate segnaetined it
comparison to the 184 days ended June 30, 201lin€rease in residential real estate was pringifilie to two charge-offs totaling

$104 thousand. The following table sets forth digtin Company’s allowance for loan losses for pegiods indicated.

Successor Compat Predecessor Compa
184 Days Ende 181 Days Ende

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 J Dec. 28, 201( June 30, 201 June 30, 20( June 30, 20C
(Dollars in thousands

Allowance at beginning of peric $ 437 $ 0 $ 5,80¢ $ 5,76¢ $ 5,65¢ $ 5,75¢
Loans charge-off during the period
Residential real esta 24¢ 42 61 237 271 70
Commercial real esta 26 27 281 412 257 184
Commercial busines 17 21 14t 50¢ 28t 237
Consumer and othi 352 21€ | 372 827 1,401 632
Total loans charge-off 642 30¢€ 85¢ 1,98¢ 2,21« 1,127
Recoveries on loans previously char-off:
Residential real esta 3 0 5] 34 3 —
Commercial real esta 0 8 4 12 49 6
Commercial busines 44 2 26 23 77 134
Consumer and othi 37 26 | 25 94 93 47
Total recoverie: 84 36 | 10¢ 162 22z 187
Net loans charged off during the per 55¢ 27C 751 1,82 1,992 93€
Provision for loan losse 94¢€ 707 | 912 1,86¢ 2,10( 83€
Allowance at end of perio $ 824 $ 437 18 5,967 $ 5,80¢ $ 5,76¢ $ 5,65¢
Total loans at end of peri((l) $ 356,25: $ 309,91: $ 367,28: $ 382,30¢ $ 393,65 $ 409,19:
Average loans outstanding during the pe\(l) 333,05: 332,68: 375,87¢ 388,70( 404,12: 413,79:
Allowance as a percentage of total lo 0.23% 0.1%% 1.62% 1.52% 1.4€% 1.38%
Ratio of net charc-offs to average loans outstand 0.17% 0.08% 0.2(% 0.47% 0.4% 0.23%
Allowance as a percentage of I-performing loan: 13.4¢% 5.4%% 67.4%% 65.61% 58.2(% 73.4%

(1) Amounts and resulting ratios exclude loan heldsie

The following table allocates the allowance fomdasses by loan category and the percent of lmaeach category to total loans at the dates
indicated below.

Successor Compat Predecessor Compa
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 200 June 30, 200
Percent of Loar Percent of Loar Percent of Loar Percent of Loar Percent of Loar

Amoun' _to Total Loans ~ Amoun _to Total Loans J Amouni _to Total Loans ~ Amoun _to Total Loans ~ Amouni _to Total Loans
(Dollars in thousands

Residential real esta $ 214 3861% $ 34 46.9% | $ 1,56¢ 40.7% $ 1,08: 35.29 $ 1,34¢ 34.3%
Commercial real esta® 93 51.09% 147 38.65% 1,46 33.1096  1,81¢ 3229% 1,611 28.25%
Commercial busines 292 5.51% 23¢ 7.17% 1,051 7.9(% 81¢ 7.42% 94( 8.21%
Consumer and oth 22t 4.81% 18 7.2 1,46 18.25%  2,04: 25.0% 1,65 29.2%
Unallocatec 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 267 0.00% = 0.00% 10¢ 0.00%
Total $ 824 100.0% $ 437 100.00 | $ 5,80¢ 100.0% $ 5,76¢ 100.0% $ 5,65¢ 100.0%

(1) Includes construction loans for purposes of thewadhce for loan loss¢
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The following table reflects the annual trend dtalelinquencies 30 days or more past due, ascapage of total loans at June 30:

Successor Compat Predecessor Compa
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Past due loans to total loans 1.95% 2.41% 2.84% 3.42% 3.05%

Non-performing Assets
The table below sets forth the amounts and categafithe Company’s non-performing assets at thesdadicated:

Successor Compar J Predecessor Compa
June 30 June 30 June 30, June 30, June 30
2012 2011 J 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Nonperforming loans
Originated portfolio

Residential real esta $3,09( $2,19¢ $ 2,681 $ 1,54: $1,22¢

Commercial real esta 417 3,601 3,27( 4,10( 2,181

Constructior 0 121 44F 275 31z

Home equity 22C 20¢ 30z 78 12¢

Commercial busines 1,00¢ 55¢ 1,74:% 3,32 3,21¢

Consume 324 527 i 394 574 641
Total originated portfolic 5,05¢ 7,20¢ 8,841 9,89/ 7,70z
Purchased portfolic

Residential real esta 0 0 0 0 0

Commercial real esta 1,05¢ 0 0 0 0

Commercial busines 0 0 i 0 0 0
Total purchased portfoli 1,05¢ 0 ] 0 0 0
Total nonperforming loan 6,11¢ 7,20¢ 8,841 9,89¢ 7,70¢
Repossessed collate 834 69C ] 1,292 673 67¢
Total nonperforming asse $6,94¢ $7,89¢ ] $10,13¢ $10,56" $8,381
Nonperforming loans that are currt $ 377 $3,067 ] $ 3,19¢ $ 3,35: $2,51(
Non-performing loans to total loar 1.72% 2.3% 2.31% 2.51% 1.8¢%
Non-performing assets to total ass 1.0 1.32% 1.65% 1.77% 1.41%

At June 30, 2012, the Company had $6.1 millionafperforming loans, or 1.72% of total loans, coregan $7.2 million, or 2.33% of total
loans, as of June 30, 2011. This decrease wasgallycdue to a $2.1 million decrease in commercial estate loans, the result of active asse
management and loan sales.

Loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status Wiey are past due 90 days as to either prinocipaiterest, or when in management’s
judgment the collectability of interest or principé the loan has been significantly impaired. Wiadinan has been placed on nonaccrual st
previously accrued and uncollected interest isnsaagainst interest on loans. A loan can benmetuto accrual status when collectability of
principal is reasonably assured and the loan hdisrpeed for a reasonable period of time. Loansctassified as impaired when it is probable
that the Company will not be able to collect allamts due according to the contractual terms ofdhe agreement. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payrattus and collateral value.
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Nonperforming loans are returned to accrual sthmperiod of satisfactory repayment performanas been met and doubt no longer e»
surrounding the ultimate collectability of all anmisi contractually due. Generally, the Company awsrsisix months of regular repayment as
satisfactory performance. TDRs are initially cléissi as nonperforming until satisfactory repaymgstformance has occurred under the loan’:
restructured terms.

TDRs represent performing loans for which concessi{guch as extension of repayment terms or rexhgetif interest rates to below market
rates) are granted due to a borrower’s financiatlt@mn. Such concessions may include reductiorintefest rates to below-market terms
and/or extension of repayment terms. The balanweépayment status of TDRs follow:

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
On Oon On
On Nonaccrue Accrua Nonaccrue
Accrual
Status Status Total Status Status Total
(Dollars in thousands
Originated portfolio
Residential real esta $ 92 $ 13¢ $ 231 $ 93 $ 0 $ 93
Home equity 2C 0 2C 0 0 0
Commercial real esta 1,05: 0 1,05: 0 85¢ 85¢
Constructior 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial busines 0 0 0 0 0 0
Consume 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total originated portfolic 1,16 13¢ 1,30¢ 93 85¢ 952
Purchased portfolic
Residential real esta 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial real esta 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total purchased portfoli 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total $1,16¢ $ 13¢ $1,30¢ $ 93 $ 85¢ $952

At June 30, 2012, the Company had repossessedetallamounting to $834 thousand, compared to $#6@@sand at June 30, 2011, an
increase of $144 thousand. At June 30, 2012, regseed collateral consisted principally of othet estate owned. The real estate and person
property collateral for commercial and consumen#oare written down to fair value upon transfeatquired assets. Revenues and expenses
are recognized in the period when received or ieclion other real estate and in substance forael®sGains and losses on disposition are
recognized in noninterest income.

We continue to focus on asset quality issues dondadé significant resources to credit policy, lsaview, asset management, collection, and
workout functions. Despite this ongoing effort,rinean be no assurance that adverse changesreaihestate markets and economic
conditions will not result in higher non-performiagsets levels in the future and negatively impactesults of operations through higher
provision for loan losses, net loan charge-offgreased accrual of income and increased nonintexpsinses.
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Potential Problem Loans

Commercial real estate and commercial loans afedieally evaluated under a ten-point rating syst@trese ratings are guidelines in
assessing the risk of a particular loan. The Combad $2.5 million and $10.1 million of loans ratdstandard or worse at June 30, 201z
June 30, 2011, respectively. The decrease wasipaifycdue to active asset management and impromésie commercial relationships
previously experiencing weaknesses. A summarys@tnated loans follows:

June 30, 201
Originated Portfolic
Commercia Commercie Purchase
Real Estat Constructiol Business Portfolio
(Dollars in thousands
Loans rated - 6 $ 96,96: $ 1,181 $ 18,22: $83,41:
Loans rated 1,88¢ 0 25C 1,05¢
Loans rated ! 1,34 0 1,13¢ 0
Loans rated ! 0 0 0 0
Loans rated 1/ 0 0 0 0
$100,19¢ $ 1,181 $ 19,617 $84,47(
June 30, 201
Originated Portfolic
Commercie Commercie Purchase
Real Estat Constructiol Business Portfolio
(Dollars in thousands

Loans rated - 6 $106,71 $ 2,01t $ 18,201 $ 637
Loans rated 3,13: 0 1,16¢ 0
Loans rated ! 7,27¢ 0 2,85¢ 0
Loans rated ! 0 0 0 0
Loans rated 1! 0 0 0 0
$117,12- $ 2,01 $ 22,22t $ 637

Risk Management

Management and the Board of Directors of the Compaaognize that taking and managing risk is funelatal to the business of banking.
Through the development, implementation and moinigoof its policies with respect to risk manageméme Company strives to measure,
evaluate and control the risks it faces. The Baawdl management understand that an effective rislageament system is critical to the
Company’s safety and soundness. Chief among tke faged by us are credit risk, market risk (inahgdnterest rate risk), liquidity risk, and
operational (transaction) risk.

Credit Risk

The Company considers credit risk to be the mggtiitant risk we face, in that it has the greafmstential to affect the financial condition and
operating results of the Company. Credit risk isiaged through a combination of policies and lirggablished by the Board, the monitoring
of compliance with these policies and limits, ahe periodic evaluation of loans in the portfoliogluding those with problem characteristics.
The Company also utilizes the services of an indéeet third-party to provide loan review servioghjch consist of a variety of monitoring
techniques after a loan is purchased or originated.

In general, Northeast's policies establish limitstbe maximum amount of credit that may be gratdesisingle borrower (including affiliates),
the aggregate amount of loans outstanding by typelation to total assets and
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capital, and concentrations of loans by size, ptyggpe, and geography. Underwriting criteria, Is@as collateral and debt service coverage
ratios and approval limits are also specified emlgolicies. The Comparg/policies also address the performance of perididit reviews, th
risk rating of loans, when loans should be placedi@n-performing status and factors that shoulddresidered in establishing the Bank’s
allowance for loan losses. For additional inforroatirefer to “Asset Quality” and “Business—Lendifgtivities.”

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss due to adverse ¢gjeann market prices and rates, and typically empas®ses exposures such as sensitivity to
changes in market interest rates, foreign currexcpange rates, and commodity prices. The Compasyb exposure to foreign currency
exchange or commodity price movements. Becausmteeéest income is our primary source of revenoeerest rate risk is a significant market
risk to which the Company is exposed.

Interest rate risk can be defined as the expodutdure net interest income to adverse movemenisterest rates. Net interest income is
affected by changes in interest rates as well dgiibguations in the level, mix and duration of iempany’s assets and liabilities. Over and
above the influence that interest rates have oimtezest income, changes in rates also affectoheme of lending activity, the ability of
borrowers to repay loans, the volume of loan prepayts, the flow and mix of deposits, and the mavkéie of the Company’s assets and
liabilities.

The Company’s management has established an Asdglity Management Committee (“ALCQ”), which isggonsible for managing the
Company’s interest rate risk in accordance withged and limits approved by the Board of Directa®th regard to management of market
risk, the ALCO is charged with managing the Companyix of assets and funding sources to producalteethat are consistent with the
Company’s liquidity, capital adequacy, growth, gmdfitability goals.

Exposure to interest rate risk is managed by Naghthrough periodic evaluations of the currergriest rate risk inherent in its rate-sensitive
assets and liabilities, coupled with determinatiohthe level of risk considered appropriate gitlem Company’s capital and liquidity
requirements, business strategy, and performarjeetokes. Through such management, Northeast deekgigate the potential volatility in i
net interest income due to changes in interess iata manner consistent with the risk appetitat#ished by the board of directors.

The ALCO's primary tool for measuring, evaluatiagd managing interest rate risk is income simufatioalysis. Income simulation analysis
measures the interest rate risk inherent in thef2oryls balance sheet at a given point in time lowshg the effect of interest rate shifts on ne
interest income over defined time horizons. Théseilgtions take into account the specific reprigimgturity, prepayment and call options of
financial instruments that vary under differeneistst rate scenarios. The ALCO reviews simulatisults to determine whether the exposu

a decline in net interest income remains withirkelished tolerance levels over the simulation lwrizand to develop appropriate strategies tc
manage this exposure. The Company considers ayafigpecified rate scenarios, including instaetars rate shocks, against static (or flat)
rates when measuring interest rate risk, and eteduasults over two consecutive twelve-month pisrid\ll changes are measured in
comparison to the projected net interest incomewttoaild result from an “unchanged” scenario, whaterest rates remain stable over the
measured time horizon(s). As of June 30, 2012int@me simulation analysis (as noted in the tablew) for the first twelve-month period
indicated that exposure to changing interest fafésvithin the Company’s policy levels of toleranc

While the ALCO reviews simulation assumptions tsume they are reasonable, and back-tests simulasarits on a periodic basis as a
monitoring tool, income simulation analysis may abtays prove to be an accurate indicator of then@any’s interest rate risk or future
earnings. There are inherent shortcomings in inceimelation, given the number and variety of asstimng that must be made to perform it.
For example, the

63



Table of Contents

projected level of future market interest rates #nedshape of future interest rate yield curveshawmajor impact on income simulation results
Many assumptions concerning the repricing of finanastruments, the degree to which non-maturépaskits react to changes in market rates
and the expected prepayment rates on loans, me+gaked securities, and callable debt securitiealaeinherently uncertain. In addition,
income simulation analysis assumes that the Compéayance sheet will remain static over the sirtiotahorizon, the results do not reflect
the Company’s expectations for future balance sfpemtth, nor changes in business strategy thaCtirapany could implement in response to
rate shifts to mitigate its loss exposures. As satthough the analysis described above providésdication of the Company’s sensitivity to
interest rate changes at a point in time, thesmatds are not intended to and do not provide eiggdorecast of the effect of changes in me
interest rates on the Company’s net interest incantewill differ from actual results.

Assuming a 200 basis point increase and 100 basis gecrease in interest rates starting on Jup2G@IR2, we estimate that our net interest
income in the following 12 months would increase3biQ% if rates increased by 200 basis points &ededise by 0.18% if rates declined by
100 basis points. These results indicate a modest bf asset sensitivity in our balance sheet,idyart to the relatively high level of interest-
sensitive short-term liquidity on the Company’sdrale sheet at June 30, 2012. An asset-sensititiopdadicates that there are more rate-
sensitive assets than rate-sensitive liabilitigsiceng or maturing within specific time horizonghich would generally imply a favorable
impact on net interest income in periods of ridimgrest rates and a negative impact in periodallfig rates. A liability-sensitive position
would generally imply a negative impact on netiiest income in periods of rising rates and a pegsitinpact in periods of falling rates.

Up 200 Basis Poin Down 100 Basis Poir
June 30, 2012 3.1%% -0.1&%

Up 200 Basis Poin Down 100 Basis Poir
June 30, 2011 -0.41% 0.32%

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk associatedhwan organization’s ability to meet current antlifa financial obligations of a short-term
nature. Northeast uses its liquidity on a regulsidto fund existing and future loan commitmetatgay interest on deposits and on
borrowings, to fund maturing certificates of depasid borrowings, to fund other deposit withdrawtdsnvest in other interest-earning assets
to make dividend payments to shareholders, ancetet wperating expenses. The Company’s primary eswtliquidity consist of deposit
inflows, borrowed funds, and the amortization, psgpent and maturities of loans and securities. 84theduled payments from the
amortization and maturities of loans and investnsecurities are relatively predictable sourcesuafis, deposit flows and loan and investmen
prepayments can be greatly influenced by genetailant rates, economic conditions and competitinaddition to these regular sources of
funds, the Company may choose to sell portfolim$éoand investment securities to meet liquidity deasa

We monitor and forecast our liquidity position. Thare several interdependent methods used by tisi$qurpose, including daily review of
Federal Funds positions, monthly review of balastoeet changes, monthly review of liquidity ratigsarterly review of liquidity forecasts and
periodic review of contingent funding plans. Usthgse methods, the Company actively manages itslity position under the direction of t
ALCO, which meets weekly.
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The following is a summary of the unused borrowdagacity of the Company at June 30, 2012 availabfeeet our short-term funding needs
(dollars in thousands):

Brokered time deposi $163,58:  Subject to policy limitation of 25% of total ass
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston 9,265 Unused advance capacity subject to eligible andifapca
collateral
Federal Discount Window Borrow-in-Custody 36€  Unused credit line subject to the pledge of indigado loan:
Total unused borrowing capac 173,21!
Unencumbered investment securi 40,74,
Total sources of liquidit $213,96:

Retalil deposits and other core deposit sourceadim) deposit listing services are used by the Bankanage its overall liquidity position.
While we currently do not seek wholesale fundinghsas FHLB advances and brokered deposits, thigyabilraise them remains an important
part of our liquidity contingency planning. Whileevelosely monitor and forecast our liquidity pasitj it is affected by asset growth, deposit
withdrawals and meeting other contractual obligatiand commitments. The accuracy of our forecasiragtions may increase or decrease
overall available liquidity. To utilize the FHLB adnce capacity, the purchase of additional capitadk in the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Boston may be required. At June 30, 2012, the Bek$214.0 million of immediately accessible offdmee sheet liquidity, defined as cash
that the Bank reasonably believes could be raisgdnw7 days through collateralized borrowings ookered deposits. This position
represented 32.0% of total assets. Further, at3an2012, the Company had $128.3 million of cash@ash equivalents. This level of balance
sheet liquidity is intended, in part, for futurerpliases of commercial real estate loans and ty €@ million of structured repurchase
agreements maturing within 90 days.

On a parent company only basis, commitments antisggbice requirements at June 30, 2012 considtpohior subordinated debentures
issued to NBN Capital Trust Il, NBN Capital Trufitdnd NBN Capital Trust IV with a contractual repaent obligation of $16.5 million. See
Note 20 of the Notes to the Consolidated Finarfgsiatements for carrying values, maturity datesthadise of purchased interest rate caps
swaps to hedge the interest expense in periodsinfjinterest rates. Based on the interest ratésree 30, 2012, the annual aggregate payr
to meet the debt service of the junior subordinaielsentures is approximately $451 thousand. Inetyttie impact of the interest rate swap
associated with NBN Capital Trust IV subordinatethéintures, annual payments are expected to totél thbusand.

The principal sources of funds for the Company &etparent-only obligations are dividends fromBagk, which are subject to regulatory
limitations, and borrowings from public and privataurces. For information on the restrictions anpiayment of dividends by Northeast Bank
see Note 11 of the Notes to the Company’s Congelileinancial Statements in this Annual Report.

On December 12, 2008, in connection with the Comijsgparticipation in the federal government’s TriathAsset Relief Program (“TARP”)
Capital Purchase Program, the Company issued 4}2&es of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Pref&tedk, Series A, liquidation
preference $1,000 per share (the “Series A Prefteck”), and a warrant to purchase 67,958 stafrtee Company’s common stock (the
“TARP Warrant”) to the U.S. Department of the Tnags(the “Treasury”) for aggregate proceeds of $4ilion. For more information on the
Series A Preferred Stock and the TARP Warrant s$o¢he Treasury in connection with the TARP Caldfurchase Program, see Note 21 of
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemantsded in this Annual Report.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk, which we define as the risk gfslédrom failed internal processes, people and systand external events, is inherent in all of
our business activities. The principal ways in whice manage operational risk include the estabkstiraf departmental and business-specific
policies and procedures, internal controls and tooinig requirements. Some specific examples inctugdenformation security program,
business continuity planning and testing, our vemdanagement program, reconciliation processesemerprise risk assessment process, an
new product and/or system introduction processesoic internal audits provide an important indegent check on adherence to policies,
procedures and controls designed to mitigate riglosure.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contraual Obligations

The Company is a party to financial instrumenthwiff-balance sheet risk in the normal course Gifmss to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments include citments to extend credit, unused lines of credit standby letters of credit. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elemehtsedit and interest-rate risk in excess of th@ants recognized in the condensed
consolidated balance sheet. The contract or ndtamaunts of these instruments reflect the extétiie Company’s involvement in particular
classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the egénbnperformance by the other party to the finahicistrument for commitments to extend
credit, unused lines of credit and standby lettérredit is represented by the contractual amotititose instruments. Commitments to extend
credit are agreements to lend to a customer asdsttlgere is no violation of any condition estdidid in the contract. Commitments generally
have fixed expiration dates or other terminaticausks and may require payment of a fee. Since wiahg commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total comnditsénounts do not necessarily represent future regighirements. To control the credit risk
associated with entering into commitments and igsiétters of credit, the Company uses the sanwtayeality, collateral policies, and
monitoring controls in making commitments and lestef credit as it does with its lending activities

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitisé@ssued by the Company to guarantee the perfaenaina customer to a third party. The
credit risk involved in issuing letters of creditessentially the same as that involved in extenkbians to customers.

Unused lines of credit and commitments to exteedittypically result in loans with a market intsteate.
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A summary of the amounts of the Company’s contedabligations, and other commitments with off-ela sheet risk, both at June 30, 2012
follows:

Payments Du- By Period

Less Thal
After 5
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Years
(Dollars in thousands
Contractual obligation:
FHLB advance:! $ 42,50( $15,00( $12,50( $10,00( $ 5,00(
Structured repurchase agreeme 65,00( 40,00( 15,00( 10,00( 0
Junior subordinated debentu 16,49¢ 0 0 0 16,49¢
Capital lease obligatio 2,34¢ 264 52¢ 60¢ 944
Other borrowing: 1,20¢ 1,20¢ 0 0 0
Total debt 127,55( 56,47: 28,02¢ 20,60¢ 22,44(
Operating lease obligatiol 10,02( 73¢ 2,081 1,991 5,21(
Total contractual obligatior $137,57( $57,21: $30,10¢ $22,60( $27,65(
Amount of Commitment Expirin- By Period
Less Thal
1-3 4-5 After 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
(Dollars in thousands
Commitments with otbalance sheet ris

Commitments to extend cred @) $ 6,271 $ 6,271 $ O $ O $ 0
Commitments related to loans held for <@ 5,64¢ 5,64¢ 0 0 0
Unused lines of cred® «4) 36,43¢ 17,42t 3,41( 3,36¢ 12,23]
Standby letters of crec® 602 601 1 0 0
Total commitment: $48,95¢ $29,94: $3,411 $3,36¢€ $12,23"

(1) Represents commitments outstanding for residemgidlestate, commercial real estate, and commdoaint.

(2) Commitments of residential real estate loans thihbe held for sale

(3) Loan commitments and unused lines of credit form@mtial and construction loans that expire or algext to renewal in twelve mont
or less.

(4) Represents unused lines of credit from commerciaistruction, and home equity loa

(5) Standby letters of credit generally expiring in lweemonths

The Company also has written options limited testhmesidential real estate loans designated feriisahe secondary market and subject to a
rate lock. These rate-locked loan commitments aeel fior trading activities, not as a hedge. Thevaue of outstanding was not significant at
June 30, 2012.

Capital

Total stockholders’ equity totaled $119.1 milliomds$65.0 million at June 30, 2012 and 2011, re$pelgt an increase of $54.1 million, or
83.2%. The change in stockholders’ equity was direjpally due to the issuance of 6.9 million slsaoé common stock through the
Company’'s May 2012 public offering, which resultadb52.7 million in new capital. See Note 11 of thetes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for information on capital ratios. Ratprly capital ratios for the Company and the Bamkently exceed all applicable
requirements, including the commitments made td-dgaeral Reserve and the Bureau in connectiontivigiMerger to maintain minimum Tier
1 leverage and total risk-based capital ratios08bland 15%, respectively.

Under the terms of the Series A Preferred Stoakedsdy the Company under the TARP Capital PurcRasgram, the Company must have the
consent of the U.S. Treasury to redeem, purchasgquire any shares of

67



Table of Contents

our common stock or other equity or capital se@msgjtother than in connection with benefit planssistent with past practice and certain othe
circumstances specified in the Purchase Agreerfenther, under the terms of the TARP Capital Puselarogram, any quarterly dividends
paid to the holders of common stock of the Compameylimited to the per share dividends paid ingharter ended September 30, 2008, or
$0.09 per share.

Impact of Inflation

The consolidated financial statements and relatéelsrhave been presented in terms of historic doléthout considering changes in the
relative purchasing power of money over time dumfiation. Unlike industrial companies, substatyiall of the assets and virtually all of the
liabilities of the Company are monetary in nats.a result, interest rates have a more significapact on the Company’s performance than
the general level of inflation. Over short peri@ddime, interest rates may not necessarily mowbaénsame direction or in the same magnitude
as inflation.

Impact of New Accounting Standards

Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Finandiateédnent includes the FASB and the SEC issuedhstaiis and interpretations affecting
Company.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and AnalysiEmancial Condition and Results of Operations—kR¥#anagement” and accompanying
table set forth therein for quantitative and qaaiNte disclosures about market risk.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

SHATSWELL, MacLEOD & COMPANY, P.C.

| CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors
Northeast Bancor
Lewiston, Maine

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Northeast Bancorp and Subsidiary dsraf 30, 2012 and 2011
(Successor) (1) and the related consolidated seatsnof income, comprehensive income, change®akisblders’ equity and cash flows for
the year ended June 30, 2012 (Successor), forafedofrom December 29, 2010 through June 30, Z8Ltcessor), and the period from
July 1, 2010 through December 28, 2010 (PredecepiThese consolidated financial statementgtaeesponsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheotisolidated financial statements are free
of material misstatement. The Company is not reguio have, nor were we engaged to perform, an afiids internal control over financial
reporting. Our audit included consideration of intd control over financial reporting as a basisdesigning audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tinppse of expressing an opinion on the effectivenéshe Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nolsopinion. An audit includes examining, on a testib, evidence supporting the amounts
disclosures in the consolidated financial statesief audit also includes assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbeersolidated financial statement presentatioe. MWglieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial
position of Northeast Bancorp and Subsidiary atuoie 30, 2012 and 2011 (Successor), and the cdatadiresults of their operations and t
cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2012 (Ssocegd$or the period from December 29, 2010 throdigie 30, 2011 (Successor), and the
period from July 1, 2010 through December 28, 2@Pr@decessor), in conformity with U.S. generallgegated accounting principles.

Shatavett Gy acbed + anu% fe.
SHATSWELL, MacLEOD & COMPANY, P.C

West Peabody, Massachusetts
September 10, 2012

(1) “Successor Company” means Northeast Bancorptsusdibsidiary after the closing of the mergetwAtHB Formation on LLC on
December 29, 201

(2) “Predecessor Company” means Northeast Bancutita subsidiary before the closing of the merggin FHB Formation LLC on
December 29, 201!

B3 PINE STREET * WEST PEABODY, MASSACHUSETTS 01960-3835 = TELEPHOME (978) 535-0206 » FACSIMILE (978) 535-0008
smo@shatswall.com wiwrw. shatawell, com
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NORTHEAST BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per slzeg d

Assets

Cash and due from ban
Shor-term investment

Total cash and cash equivale
Available-for-sale securities, at fair vali
Loans held for sal
Loans
Less: Allowance for loan loss:

Loans, ne
Premises and equipment, |
Repossessed collateral, |
Accrued interest receivab
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at c
Federal Reserve Bank stock, at ¢
Intangible assets, n
Bank owned life insuranc
Other asset

Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity

Liabilities
Deposits:
Noninterest bearin
Interest bearin:
Total deposit:
Federal Home Loan Bank advanu
Structured repurchase agreeme
Shor-term borrowings
Junior subordinated debentures issued to affilitiests
Capital lease obligatio
Other borrowing:
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholder' equity

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 1,000,000 shard®rized; 4,227 shares issued and outstanding at
June 30, 2012 and 2011; liquidation preferencelgd® per shar

Voting common stock, $1.00 par value, 13,500,0G0ehauthorized; 9,307,127 and 3,312,173 issued and
outstanding at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 201deatgely

Non-voting common stock, $1.00 par value, 1,500 §ltdyres authorized; 1,076,314 and 195,351 issuwek
outstanding at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 20]deateely

Warrants to purchase common st

Additional paic-in capital

Unearned restricted sto

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive income (li
Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetheasolidated financial statements.
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June 30, June 30,
2012 2011
$ 2,53¢ $ 3,22i
125,73t 80,70
128,27 83,93
133,26:¢ 148,96

9,88: 5,17¢
356,25¢ 309,91:
824 437
355,43( 309,47t
9,20¢ 8,271
834 69C
1,84( 1,24¢
4,60z 4,88¢
871 871
4,487 13,13:
14,29t 13,79«
6,217 5,95¢
$669,19¢ $596,39:
$ 45,32 $ 48,21¢
376,86! 352,90:
422,18t 401,11¢
43,45( 43,92:
66,18 68,00¢
1,20¢ 2,51¢
8,10¢ 7,95
1,911 2,07t

0 2,22¢

7,01( 3,61¢
550,05 531,43
4 4

9,301 3,31:
1,07¢ 19t
40¢€ 40¢€
96,08( 49,70(
(127) (169
12,23¢ 11,72¢
15¢ (226)
119,13¢ 64,95«
$669,19¢ $596,39:
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NORTHEAST BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per slse d

Interest and dividend incom
Interest on loan
Interest and dividends on availe-for-sale securitie
Dividends on regulatory stoc
Other interest and dividend incor
Total interest and dividend incor
Interest expenst
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank advan
Structured repurchase agreeme
Shor-term borrowings
Junior subordinated debentures issued to affiliaitests
Obligation under capital lease agreem:
Total interest expens
Net interest and dividend income before provisimmidan losse
Provision for loan losse
Net interest and dividend income after provisionlé@an losse:
Noninterest income
Fees for other services to custorr
Net securities gair
Gain on sales of loans held for s
Gain (loss) on sales of portfolio loa
Investment commissior
Bank-owned life insurance incon
Bargain purchase ga
Other noninterest incon
Total noninterest incom

Noninterest expens
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy and equipment expe
Professional fee
Data processing fet
Marketing expens
FDIC insurance premiun
Intangible asset amortizatic
Merger expens
Other noninterest expen
Total noninterest expen:
Income from continuing operations before incomeeepense (benefi
Income tax expense (benet
Net income from continuing operatio
Income from discontinued operatic
Gain on sale of discontinued operatic
Income tax expens
Net income from discontinued operatic
Net income

Net income available to common stockholc

Weighte-average shares outstandi
Basic
Diluted
Earnings per common sha
Basic:
Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operatio

Net income
Diluted:

Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operatic

Net income

(1) *“Successor Compa” means Northeast Bancorp and its subsidiary afeeclitsing of the merger with FHB Formation LLC oad@mber 29, 201!
(2) *“Predecessor Compe” means Northeast Bancorp and its subsidiary bef@erelbsing of the merger with FHB Formation LLCD@acember 29, 201/

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements.

Successor Compai(l)

Year Ended
June 30, 201

$ 24,73¢
2,01¢

72

18¢

27,01«

3,42¢
1,02¢
991

21

751
10C
6,317
20,697
94¢€
19,75:

1,38:¢
1,111
2,761
1,071
2,782
501

0

92

9,701

15,63«
3,82¢
1,70¢
1,08¢

691

482

1,19¢

0

3,62¢

28,25t

1,197

181

1,01¢

18€
1,56¢
605
1,147

$ 1,771

* A

4,277,771
4,291,35:

$ 0.1f
0.2¢€

$ 0.41

$ 0.1f
0.2¢€

$ 0.41

184 Days Ende

June 30, 201

$

$
$

11,544
1,642
28

90

13,304

36t

3,207
10,09:
707
9,39(

67¢
1,20(
94F

(115)
1,43¢

68

23
45

12,55:

12,35¢

3,492,93
3,548,16:

3.51
0.01

3.52

3.4¢€
0.01

3.47

Predecessor Compa
ey ~omP

181 Days Ended
December 28, 201

$ 11,21C
3,111

18

39

14,37¢

2,79¢
91¢
1,392
37¢
34C
55
5,871
8,501
91z
7,58¢

69¢
17
1,861
0
1,174
25C

0

22t

4,231

4,94¢
1,35

50¢

521

23C

34€

0

94

1,45¢

9,45¢

2,36¢

69¢

$ 1,667
$ 94
108

70

12¢

$ 1,79¢
$ 1,67

2,330,19
2,354,38!

$ 0.6€
0.0¢€

$ 0.72
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NORTHEAST BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in thousands)

Successor Compan(®)

Year Ended

June 30, 201

Net income $ 2,168
Other comprehensive income, net of t

Unrealized gain (loss) on availa-for-sale securities, n 51¢

Unrealized loss on purchased interest rate capswag, ne (139

Total other comprehensive income (lo 384

Comprehensive income (los $ 254

184 Days Ende

June 30, 201
$ 12,55
(106)
(120
(226)

$  12,32¢

Predeces(sz())r Compa

181 Days Ended
December 28, 201

$ 1,79¢
(1,869)

(10)

(1,879

$ @

(1) “Successor Company” means Northeast Bancorptsusdibsidiary after the closing of the mergetvdtHB Formation LLC on

December 29, 201!

(2) Predecessor Company” means Northeast Bancarjisasubsidiary before the closing of the mergiéh WHB Formation LLC on

December 29, 201!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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NORTHEAST BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per slse d

Unearnes
Voting Common Non- - Accumulated
Preferred Stoc Stock voting Common Stoc Additional . . Other . Total ,
Restricter  Retainer  Comprehensiv  Stockholders
Warrants
to Purchase Paid-in
Predecessor Compar(2) Share Amouni Shares  Amoun Shares Amount Common Stoc _ Capital Stock  Earning: Income (Loss Equity
Balance at June 30, 2010 4,227 $ 4 2,323,833 $ 2,32 0 $ 0 $ 13z $ 6,761 $ 0 $37,33¢ $ 434¢ $ 50,90¢
Net income for 181 day
ended December 28, 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,79¢ 0 1,79¢
Other comprehensive loss, |
of tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1,879 (1,879
Dividends on preferred stot 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (10€) 0 (10€)
Dividends on common stock
at $0.18 per shai 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (419) 0 (419)
Stock options exercise 0 0 7,50( 8 0 0 0 54 0 0 0 62
Accretion of preferred stoc 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 (16) 0 0
Balance at December 28, 2( 4,227 $ 4 2,331,33 $ 2,332 ($ (G 13: $ 6831 $ 0 $3859 $ 2470 $ 50,36¢
Unearnel
Voting Common Non- - Accumulated
Preferred Stoc Stock voting Common Stoc Additional . . Other . Total ,
Restricter  Retainer  Comprehensiv  Stockholders
Warrants
to Purchase Paid-in
Successor Comparl)  Share  Amount Shares  Amount Shares Amount Common Stoc Capital Stock Earning: Income (Loss Equity
Balance at December 29,
2010 4227 $ 4 2,331,33 $ 2,33 0 3 03 40€ $ 3368 $ 0 3 0 3 0 $ 36,427
Net income for the 184 da
ended June 30, 20: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,55: 0 12,55:
Other comprehensive loss
net of tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (22¢) (22€)
Dividends on preferred
stock 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (20%) 0 (205)
Dividends on common
stock at $0.18 per sha 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (631) 0 (631)
Restricted stock awal 0 0 13,02¢ 13 0 0 0 16¢ (181) 0 0 0
Issuance of common sto 0 0 965,81! 96t 195,35: 19t 0 15,01¢ 0 0] 0 16,17¢
Exercise of stock optior 0 0 2,00( 2 0 0 0 24 0 0 0 26
Stocl-based compensatic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19z 18 0 0 21C
Accretion of preferred stoc 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 90 0 (90) 0 0
Modification of stock
appreciation right 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52€ 0 0 0 52€
Balance at June 30, 20 4,227 $ 4 331217 $ 3,31Z 19535, $ 19t $ 40€ $ 49,70 $ (163 $11,72¢ $ (22¢) $ 64,95«
Net income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,16:¢ 0 2,168
Other comprehensive
income, net of ta: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 384 384
Issuance of common sto 0 0 5,994,95 5,99 880,96 881 0 45,79: 0 0] 0 52,667
Dividends on preferred
stock 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (212) 0 (212
Dividends on common
stock at $0.36 per sha 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1,267) 0 (1,267)
Stocl-based compensatic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40¢ 36 0 0 44E
Accretion of preferred sto« 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18C 0 (180) 0 0
Balance at June 30, 20 4,227 $ 4 9,307,12° $ 9,307 1,076,31. $ 1,07¢ $ 40€ $ 96,08( $ (127) $12,23! $ 15¢ $ 119,13
(1) *“Successor Compa” means Northeast Bancorp and its subsidiary afeeclitsing of the merger with FHB Formation LLC oad@mber 29, 201!

@

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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NORTHEAST BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashduis) provided by operating activitie
Provision for loan losse
Loss on sale or impairment of repossessed collatest
Accretion of fair value adjustmer—loans
Accretion of fair value adjustmer—deposits
Accretion of fair value adjustmer—borrowings
Originations of loans held for se
Net proceeds from sales of loans held for
Gain on sales of loans held for s
(Gain) loss on sales of portfolio loa
Amortization of intangible asse
Bank-owned life insurance incon
Depreciation of premises and equipm
Loss (gain) on disposal of premises and equipt
Net gain on sale of availal-for-sale securitie
Deferred income tax provision (bene
Stocl-based compensatic
Gain on sale of assets of insurance divi
Amortization of securities, n
Bargain purchase ga
Changes in other assets and liabilit
Interest receivabl
Decrease in prepaid FDIC assessn
Other assets and liabilitit
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from sales of availe-for-sale securitie
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie
Proceeds from maturities and principal paymentavailable-for-sale securitie
Loan purchase
Loan originations and principal collections,
Proceeds from sales of portfolio loe
Purchases of premises and equipn
Proceeds from sales of premises and equip
Proceeds from sales of repossessed colle
Proceeds from redemption of regulatory st
Purchases of regulatory stc
Proceeds from sale of assets of insurance div
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net increase (decrease) in depo
Net (decrease) increase in skterm borrowings
Dividends paid on preferred sto
Dividends paid on common sto
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Repayment of other borrowin
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank adva
Repayment of capital lease obligat
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

Supplemental schedule of cash flow informati
Interest paic
Income taxes paid, n
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding activities
Transfers from loans to repossessed colla
Transfers from acquired assets to lo

(1) *“Successor Compa” means Northeast Bancorp and its subsidiary afeeclitsing of the merger with FHB Formation LLC oad@mber 29, 201!
(2) “Predecessor Compe” means Northeast Bancorp and its subsidiary befierelbsing of the merger with FHB Formation LLCDacember 29, 201(

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statemer
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Successor Compai(t)

184 Days Ende

Year Ended

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
$ 2,16 $ 12,55:
94€ 707

13 76
(3,647 (1,422)
(1,299 (882)
(2,15)) (1,24¢)
(126,13() (48,716
124,18! 52,33¢
(2,767) (945)
(1,077) 115
1,26¢€ 1,08(
(501) (25¢)

1,29¢ 571
4 4
(1,11) (1,199
1,827 554

44E 21C

(1,56¢6) 0
1,671 88C
0 (15,44))

(596) 71€

54¢ 302
(512) (1,379
(6,96¢6) (1,379
179,04! 195,66¢
(185,99) (206,777)
22,86¢ 15,61
(101,779 (637)
50,33 16,59¢
8,28¢ 36,87«
(2,56%) (945)

162 16

81¢ 24C

287 0
0 (274

9,88¢ 0
(18,647 56,37:
22,36: 23,477
(1,30¢) (60,529
(212) (20%5)
(1,267) (631)
52,667 16,20:
(2,129 0
0 (8,000
(164) (79)
69,95¢ (29,66%)
44,34 25,33:
83,93: 58,59¢

$ 128,27: $ 83,93:
$ 9,77¢ $ 3,47¢
321 28

$ 1,01¢ $ 137
44 96

Predecessor
Company®

181 Days Ended
December 28, 20:

$ 1,79¢

91z
91
0
0
0
(87,97)
96,23
(1,86)
0

344
(250
52C

(6)
(17)

172
(19,00)
26,80¢

0

14,29:

0
(509)

36

217

0

0

147

22,16

(9,580
16,87t
(106)
(419)
62
(496)
0

@

6,25¢

38,16:

20,43

$ 58,50t

$ 5,80(
84¢

$ 124
14z



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of North&estcorp and Subsidiary (“Company” or “Northeastihtorm to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of AmgfiG®AAP”) and conform to practices within the findakservices industry.

Busines:

The Company is a Maine corporation and a bank hgldompany registered with the Federal Reserve BaBloston (“FRB”) under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956. The Company providdgllarange of banking services to individual aratporate customers throughout south.
central and western Maine and conducts loan puirastivities nationwide through its wholly-ownedbsidiary, Northeast Bank (the
“Bank”), a Maine state-chartered universal bank amdember of the Federal Reserve Bank of Bostora vesult, the Bank is subject to the
joint regulatory oversight by the FRB and the Stdt®Maine Bureau of Financial Institutions. The Ras also subject to the regulations of
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). Benk faces competition from banks and other firgnstitutions.

Business Combination Accounti

On December 29, 2010, the Company merged with Fethktion LLC (the “Merger”). The Company applie@ thcquisition method of
accounting to this business combination, whichespnted an acquisition by FHB Formation LLC (“FHBf)Northeast, with Northeast as the
surviving company. Under the acquisition method,ahquiring entity in a business combination recemthe assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at their acquisition date fair values. idangent utilizes valuation techniques appropriatéHe asset or liability being measured in
determining these fair values. Any excess of threlpase price over amounts allocated to assetsracdgimcluding identifiable intangible
assets, and liabilities assumed is recorded asvgtholth the Merger, amounts allocated to assetpuaed and liabilities assumed were greater
than the purchase price, which resulted in thegeition of a bargain purchase gain. Acquisitioratetl costs were expensed as incurred.

Principles of Consolidatio

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiaentade the accounts of Northeast Bancorp, andfitslly-owned subsidiary, Northeast
Bank (including the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiajieAll significant intercompany transactions aradiances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

NBN Capital Trust II, NBN Capital Trust Ill and NBRapital Trust IV are considered affiliates and @eeonsolidated pursuant to crite
established by Accounting Standards Codificatigk§C”) 810,Consolidation(*ASC 810”). The investments in these affiliatesrave
$496 thousand in aggregate and are included i aeets.

Reclassification:
Certain previously reported amounts have beenssifiled to conform to the current year's preseatati

Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared iroowmitfy with GAAP. In preparing the financial statents, management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities and the discisficontingent assets and liabilities as of the
date of the statement of financial condition armbme and expenses for the period. Actual resuliidddiffer significantly from those
estimates.
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Material estimates that are particularly suscegtiblsignificant change relate to the determinadibtihe allowance for loan losses, the
determination of fair values in conjunction wittethpplication of acquisition accounting, and thegoing evaluation of assets for potential
impairment.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company’s business activity is withtonsers located within the State of Maine. Howeteg, Company’s loan purchasing
activities are diversified across the country.linegions, the Company has emphasized the originand purchase of commercial real estate
loans. Repayment of loans is expected to come &ash flows of the borrower. Losses on secured laem$imited by the value of the
collateral upon default of the borrowers. The Comypadoes not have any significant concentratiorepone industry or customer.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of presentation in the consolidat&gstents of cash flow, cash and cash equivalentsistof cash and due from banks and
short-term investments. The Company is requireddtain a certain reserve balance in the formashor deposits with other financial
institutions. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, such keskalances totaled $3.8 million and $1.1 millimspectively.

Investment Securitie

Securities for which the Company has the posititerit and ability to hold to maturity are clasgifiés held to maturity and carried at amort
cost. Those securities held for indefinite periofisme but not necessarily to maturity are clasdifas available for sale. Securities held for
indefinite periods of time include securities thenagement intends to use as part of its assdiffiabquidity, or capital management
strategies and may be sold in response to chandeterest rates, maturities, asset/liability ntigquidity needs, regulatory capital needs or c
business factors. Securities available for saleamged at estimated fair value with unrealizethg@nd losses reported on an after-tax basis i
stockholders’ equity as accumulated other comprgikierincome or loss.

Interest and dividends on securities are recoraeith® accrual method. Premiums and discounts arrities are amortized or accreted into
interest income by the level-yield method overrdmmaining period to contractual maturity, adjudtadthe effect of actual prepayments in the
case of mortgage-backed securities. These estimipFepayment assumptions are made based upaetin@ performance of the underlying
security, current interest rates, the general niaxisesensus regarding changes in mortgage intextest the contractual repayment terms of th
underlying loans, the priority rights of the invast to the cash flows from the mortgage securéies other economic conditions. When
differences arise between anticipated prepayments@etual prepayments, the effective yield is madated to reflect actual payments to date
and anticipated future payments. Unamortized prenoudiscount is adjusted to the amount that whialde existed had the new effective y
been applied since purchase, with a correspondiarge or credit to interest income.

Security transactions are recorded on the trade Baalized gains and losses are determined usingpecific identification method and are
recorded in non-interest income.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-oeanp impairment on a periodic basis. Factors a®rsid in determining whether an
impairment is other-than-temporary include: (1) regth of time and the extent to which the failueahas been less than cost, (2) the financic
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer(@nthe intent and ability of the Company to htild investment for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recoveryfair value. If the Company intends to sell an iingé security, the Company records an other
than-temporary loss in an amount equal to theedtfference between the fair value and amortized. df a security is determined to be other
than-temporarily impaired but the Company doesimtend to sell the
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security, only the credit portion of the estimaliesk is recognized in earnings, with the otheriporof the loss recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bankk:

The Company owns investments in the stock of thB BRd the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston (“FHLBBIo ready market exists for
these stocks, and they have no quoted market vatiREs stock is redeemable at par; therefore, faue equals cost. The Bank, as a memb
the FHLBB, is required to maintain investmentsha tapital stock of the FHLBB equal to their mensb@ base investments plus an activity-
based investment determined according to the Bdek& of outstanding FHLBB advances. The Compawemws its investments in FHLBB
and FRB stock periodically to determine if othearitemporary impairment exists. The Company revieagsnt public filings, rating agency
analysis and other factors, when making the detextian.

Loans Held for Sale and Loan Servic

Residential real estate mortgage loans are desig@et held for sale based on intent, which is detexd when loans are underwritten. Loans
originated and held for sale in the secondary naatecarried at the lower of cost or fair valueafzed gains and losses on sales of loans ar
determined using the specific identification methbitect loan originations costs and fees relateldans held for sale are deferred upon
origination and are recognized on the date of sale.

In its mortgage banking activities, the Companysdekns both on a servicing released and servigtained basis. The Company recogniz:
separate assets the rights to service mortgage foanthers, and performs an assessment of dapifainortgage servicing rights for
impairment based on the current fair value of thiagets. The Company capitalizes mortgage servidigigts at their allocated cost (based on
the relative fair values of the rights and the teldoans) upon the sale of the related loans. d4ge servicing rights are amortized over the
estimated weighted average life of the loans. Thm@any’s assumptions with respect to prepaymertghnaffect the estimated average life
of the loans, are adjusted periodically to reflmatrent circumstances. The Company evaluates thmated life and fair value of its servicing
portfolio based on data that is disaggregatedfteatenote rate, type, and term on the underlyoank.

Loans

Loans are carried at the principal amounts outstandr amortized acquired fair value in the calaaguired loans, adjusted by partial charge
offs and net of deferred loan costs or fees. Le&s ind certain direct origination costs are defeand amortized into interest income over the
expected term of the loan using the level-yieldhndt When a loan is paid off, the unamortized paorts recognized in interest income.
Interest income is accrued based upon the daihcjpal amount outstanding except for loans on nomeat status.

All loans purchased by the Company in the secondearket by its Loan Acquisition and Servicing GrdUipASG”) are accounted for under
ASC 310-30Receivables — Loans and Debt Securities Acquirdu Deteriorated Credit Quality*ASC 310-30"). At acquisition, the effective
interest rate is determined based on the discat@tinat equates the present value of the Compasiiimate of cash flows with the purchase
price of the loan. Prepayments are not assumedtermining a purchased loareffective interest rate and income accretion. dppication o
ASC 310-30 limits the yield that may be accretedt@npurchased loan, or the “the accretable yiatdihe excess of the Company’s estimate,
at acquisition, of the expected undiscounted ppimiginterest, and other cash flows over the Compganitial investment in the loan. The
excess of contractually required payments recedvabér the cash flows expected to be collectedheraan represents the purchased loan’s
“nonaccretable difference.” Subsequent improvemienéxpected cash flows of loans with nonaccretdbiferences result in a prospective
increase to the loan’s effective yield through @assification of some, or all, of the nonaccregatiifference to accretable yield. The effect of
subsequent declines in expected cash flows of pgezhloans are recorded through a specific allmtati the allowance for loan losses.
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Loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status Wiey are past due 90 days as to either prinoip@terest, or when in management’s
judgment the collectability of interest or princifpé the loan has been significantly impaired. Leaccounted for under ASC -30 are place
on nonaccrual when it is not possible to reachaaaeable expectation of the timing and amount sif dlows to be collected on the loan. Wi
a loan has been placed on nonaccrual status, pyiaccrued and uncollected interest is revergathat interest on loans. A loan is returned
to accrual status when collectability of princigateasonably assured and the loan has performedrémsonable period of time.

In cases where a borrower experiences financifitdifies and the Company makes certain concessjanadifications to contractual terms,
the loan is classified as a troubled debt restringu(“TDR"). Modifications may include adjustmerttsinterest rates, extensions of maturity,
and other actions intended to minimize economis @&l avoid foreclosure or repossession of codatBionaccrual loans that are restructured
remain on nonaccrual for a minimum period of sixnthg to demonstrate that the borrower can meeattteuctured terms. If the restructured
loan is on accrual status prior to being modified reviewed to determine if the modified loaroshd remain on accrual status. If the
borrower’s ability to meet the revised payment sicie is not reasonably assured, the loan is cladsifs a nonaccrual loan. Loans classified a
TDRs remain classified as such until the loan id p#.

Allowance for Loan Losse

The allowance for loan losses is established agtoare estimated to have occurred through a wovisr loan losses charged to earnings.
Loan losses are charged against the allowance miaeagement believes the uncollectibility of a Ibafance is confirmed. Subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses consists of genspalcific, and unallocated reserves and reflectsagement’s estimate of probable loan losses
inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sliet¢. Management uses a consistent and systegunatiess and methodology to evaluate the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on atelyabasis. The calculation of the allowance fman losses is segregated by portfolio
segments, which include: commercial real estateneercial business, consumer, and residential statee Loans purchased by the LASG are
further segregated from the aforementioned segmBigk characteristics relevant to each portfoigraent are as follows:

Residential real estate: The Company generally doeseriginate loans with a loan-to-value ratioajez than 80 percent and does not
grant subprime loans. All loans in this segmentcaltateralized by residential real estate and yapnt is primarily dependent on the
credit quality of the individual borrower. The oa#ithealth of the economy, particularly unemployineres and housing prices, has a
significant effect on the credit quality in thisgseent. For purposes of the Company’s allowancéofm loss calculation, home equity
loans and lines of credit are included in residdmial estate.

Commercial real estate: Loans in this segment iamgapily income-producing properties. For ownerggied properties, the cash flows
are derived from an operating business, and theriyidg cash flows may be adversely affected bydetation in the financial conditic
of the operating business. The underlying cashdlgenerated by non-owner occupied properties magbersely affected by increased
vacancy rates. Management periodically obtainsnalst, with which it monitors the cash flows oetfe loans. Adverse developments in
either of these areas will have an adverse effethe credit quality of this segment. For purpasfethe allowance for loan losses, this
segment also includes construction loans.

Commercial business: Loans in this segment are realdesinesses and are generally secured by teesadghe business. Repayment is
expected from the cash flows of the business. Wiasiknal or regional economic conditions, and altest decrease in consumer or
business spending, will have an adverse effechertedit quality of this segment.

Consumer: Loans in this segment are generally ed¢cand repayment is dependent on the credit gulihe individual borrower.
Repayment of consumer loans is generally baseteoadrnings of individual borrowers, which may Heeasely impacted by regional
labor market conditions.
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Purchased: Loans in this segment are secured bgneocial real estate, multi-family residential reatate, or business assets and have
been acquired by the LASG. Loans acquired by th8GAare, with limited exceptions, performing loahtha date of purchase. Loans in
this segment acquired with specific material credierioration since origination are identifiedpaschased credit-impaired (“PCI").
Repayment of loans in this segment is largely dépenon cash flow from the successful operatiothefproperty, in the case of non-
owner occupied property, or operating businesthércase of owner-occupied property. Loan perfocaanay be adversely affected by
factors affecting the general economy or conditispecific to the real estate market such as gebgrégcation or property type. Loans
this segment are evaluated for impairment under A8G30. The Company reviews expected cash floara fiurchased loans on a
quarterly basis. The effect of a decline in expgc@sh flows subsequent to the acquisition of ¢he is recognized through a specific
allocation in the allowance for loan losses.

The general component of the allowance for loasdess based on historical loss experience adjfistaqlialitative factors stratified by loan
segment. The Company considers its loss expergnzsequent to the Merger in its quantitative histbioss analysis. The Company does no
weight periods used in that analysis to deterntieealverage loss rate in each portfolio segmens Historical loss factor is adjusted for the
following qualitative factors:

* Levels and trends in delinquenc
e Trends in the volume and nature of lo

e Trends in credit terms and policies, including umdéing standards, procedures and practices, a@@xperience and ability of
lending management and st

e Trends in portfolio concentratic

» National and local economic trends and conditi

» Effects of changes or trends in internal risk rggi

»  Other effects resulting from trends in the valuatid underlying collatere

There were no changes in the Company’s policiesethodology pertaining to the general componetefallowance for loan losses during
fiscal year 2012.

The allocated component of the allowance for lamsés relates to loans that are classified as igthdmpairment is measured on a loan-by-
loan basis for commercial business and commere#dlastate loans by either the present value afatzd future cash flows discounted at the
loan’s effective interest rate or the fair valualté collateral if the loan is collateral dependémt allowance is established when the discounte
cash flows (or collateral value) of the impairedrds lower that the carrying value of that loaarde groups of smaller-balance homogeneou:s
loans, such as consumer and residential real detate are collectively evaluated for impairmergdzhon the group’historical loss experien
adjusted for qualitative factors. Accordingly, tiempany does not separately identify individualstoner and residential loans for individual
impairment and disclosure. However, all loans niedifn troubled debt restructurings are individya#tviewed for impairment.

For all loans segments except the purchased laanesg a loan is considered impaired when, basedioent information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be unable to colteetscheduled payments of principal or interestmiue according to the contractual terms
of the loan agreement. Loans that experience iifgignt payment delays and payment shortfalls gaheare not classified as impaired.
Management determines the significance of paymelatyd and payment shortfalls on a case-by-cass, ltaking into consideration all of the
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borraweluding the length of the delay, the reasomgte delay, the borrower’s prior payment
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relatiothe principal and interest owed. For the puselddoan segment, a loan is considered
impaired when, based on current information anchesyet is probable that the Company will be undblesalize cash flows as estimated
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at acquisition. Loan impairment of purchased Idamaeasured based on the decrease in expecteflmashrom those estimated at
acquisition, excluding changes due to decreasigdrest rate indices, discounted at the loan'satiffe rate assumed at acquisition. Factors
considered by management in determining impairrmatide payment status, collateral value, and tbéability of the collecting scheduled
principal and interest payments when due.

The Company periodically may agree to modify thetactual terms of loans. When a loan is modified a concession is made to a borrowel
experiencing financial difficulty, the modificatida considered a TDR. The Company considers afidaaodified in a TDR as impaired loans.
By policy, loans classified as TDRs remain classifas such until the loan is paid off.

The unallocated component of the allowance refitanargin of imprecision inherent in the undertyassumptions used in the
methodologies for estimating allocated and gerressrves in the portfolio.

Premises and Equipme

Premises and equipment are stated at cost lesmatated depreciation. Depreciation is computedhaystraight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Premisegquigpment under capital leases are amortized beeedtimated useful lives of the assets o
respective lease terms, whichever is shorter. Maarice and repairs are charged to expense ased@nd the cost of major renewals and
betterments are capitalized.

Intangible Asset

Identifiable intangible assets subject to amoritiwaare amortized over the estimated lives of titerigibles using a method that approximates
the amount of economic benefits that are realizethb Company. Identifiable intangible assets avewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceygmount of the assets may not be recoverable.

Repossessed Collatel

Assets in control of the Company or acquired thiofayeclosure or repossession are held for saleaemahitially recorded at fair value less
cost to sell at the date control is establishesljlting in a new cost basis. The amount by whiehrétorded investment in the loan exceeds the
fair value (net of estimated cost to sell) of theetlosed asset is charged to the allowance forllmsses. Subsequent declines in the fair value
of the foreclosed asset below the new cost basiseaorded through the use of a valuation allowandhrough a direct write-off. Subsequent
increases in the fair value may be recorded asctixhs to the valuation allowance. Rental reveraoeived on foreclosed assets is included in
other noninterest income, whereas operating exgearset changes in the valuation allowance relatirfgrieclosed assets are included in other
noninterest expense.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets, includirenpses and equipment, for impairment whenever swanthanges in business
circumstances indicate that the remaining usefeiliniay warrant revision or that the carrying amafrthe long-lived asset may not be fully
recoverable. The Company performs undiscounted ftastanalyses to determine if impairment existémpairment is determined to exist,
any related impairment loss is calculated basefhiowalue. Impairment losses on assets to be digpof, if any, are based on the estimated
proceeds to be received, less costs of disposal.
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Bank Owned Life Insuranc

Increases in the cash surrender value of life Brsee policies, as well as death benefits receie¢dfnany cash surrender value, are recorded
other noninterest income, and are not subjectdornire taxes. The cash surrender value of the psliwé previously endorsed to participants
are recorded as assets of the Company. Any amowsd to participants relating to these policiesramorded as liabilities of the Company.
The Company reviews the financial strength of tisurance carriers prior to the purchase of lifariasce policies and no less than annually
thereafter.

Income Taxe

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfeethe future tax consequences attributable tiedihces between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabiliied their respective tax bases. Deferred tax saaset liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable incomeernytars in which those temporary differences apeeted to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities ofange in tax rates is recognized in the periotlitttdudes the enactment date. The Company’s
policy is to recognize interest and penalties agskon tax positions in income tax expense.

Advertising Expens
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

StockBased Compensation

The Company’s stock-based compensation plans prduidawards of stock options, restricted stock ather stock-based compensation to
directors, officers and employees. The cost of eyg® services received in exchange for awardswfyeimpstruments is based on the grant-
date fair value of those awards. Compensationisastognized over the requisite service period esmponent of compensation expense.

Discontinued Operation

During the first quarter of fiscal 2012, substalhiall of the assets of the Company’s insuranaasitin, Northeast Bank Insurance Group, Inc.
(“NBIG”) were sold in two separate transactionseThsults of NBIG are classified as discontinueeragions in the statements of income for
each period presented. The Company has elimin#itedeacompany transactions related to discontihaperations for each period presented.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income aret attmprehensive income. Other comprehensive inéoohgdes unrealized gains and
losses on securities available for sale, unrealiassks related to factors other than credit on sieturities, unrealized gains and losses on ca:s
flow hedges and deferred gains on hedge accoutiingactions.

Earnings Per Shar

Basic earnings per share is calculated using tbectass method. The two-class method is an ear@ithgsation formula under which earnings
per share is calculated from common stock andqipating securities according to dividends declared participation rights in undistributed
earnings. Under this method, all earnings distetdwtnd undistributed, are allocated to particigasiecurities and common shares based on
their respective rights to receive dividends. Uteeshare-based payment awards that contain négitédnle rights to dividends are considerec
participating securities (i.e. unvested restricttk), not subject to performance based measBasic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing net income available to common sharehader
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by the weighted average number of common sharasamaling (inclusive of participating securities)lubed earnings per share have been
calculated in a manner similar to that of basio@ays per share except that the weighted averagdauof common shares outstanding is
increased to include the number of additional comistmares that would have been outstanding if aérg@lly dilutive common shares (such
as those resulting from the exercise of stock ogtiar the attainment of performance measures) issued during the period, computed using
the treasury stock method.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are carried at fair valu¢hie Company’s financial statements. The accourfinghanges in the fair value of a
derivative instrument is determined by whetherais been designated and qualifies as part of a mgdelationship, and further, by the type of
hedging relationship. For those derivative instroteehat are designated and qualify as hedginguim&nts, the Company designates the
hedging instrument, based upon the exposure beidgdd, as either a fair value hedge or a cashtknge. For derivative instruments that are
designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge liezlging the exposure to variability in expectedifatcash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk), the effective portion of the gainloss on the derivative instrument is reported @omponent of other comprehensive income
net of related tax, and reclassified into earningke same period or periods during which the kddgansactions affect earnings. The
remaining gain or loss on the derivative instrumergxcess of the cumulative change in the pressoe of future cash flows of the hedged
item (i.e., the ineffective portion), if any, iscagnized in current earnings during the period. deaivative instruments designated and
qualifying as a fair value hedge (i.e., hedgingekposure to changes in the fair value of an asdébility or an identified portion thereof that
is attributable to the hedged risk), the gain gslon the derivative instrument, as well as theetfing gain or loss on the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk, are recognizezliment earnings during the period of the chandaiimvalues. For derivative instruments not
designated as hedging instruments, the gain otidaggognized in current earnings during the meabchange. At the inception of a hedge,
Company documents certain items, including butlinuted to the following: the relationship betweleedging instruments and hedged items,
Company risk management objectives, hedging sietegnd the evaluation of hedge transaction é¥fereéss. Documentation includes link
all derivatives designated as fair value or castv thedges to specific assets and liabilities orbdance sheet or to specific forecasted
transactions.

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively wiig¢m derivative is no longer highly effectivedfisetting changes in the fair value or cash
flow of a hedged item, (2) a derivative expiressosold, (3) a derivative is de-designated as gégdecause it is unlikely that a forecasted
transaction will occur, or (4) it is determinedttdasignation of a derivative as a hedge is nodoagpropriate.

As part of its mortgage banking activities, the @amy originates residential mortgage loans to i foe sale. In connection with these loans,
the Company often offers interest rate lock comraiita to prospective borrowers. The Company martaiemterest rate risk by entering ir
offsetting forward sale agreements with third pamtyestors for certain funded loans and loan commiitts. Both the interest rate lock
commitments and forward sale agreements are cdhloalsheet commitments that are considered torbatiees. The Company records
unfunded commitments intended for sale and forwsatds agreements at fair value with changes irvédire recorded in noninterest income.

Transfer of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted feakes when control over the assets has been sareshdControl over transferred assets is
deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets kanddwlated from the Company, (2) the transfeleains the right (free of conditions that
constrain it from taking advantage of that riglatptedge or exchange the transferred assets, atlde(€ ompany does not maintain effective
control over the transferred assets through areawgat to repurchase them before their maturity.
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Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In April 2011, the Financial Accounting StandardsaBl (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Upda#eSt”) No. 2011-02Receivables
(Topic 310): A Creditors Determination of WhethedReastructuring is a Troubled Debt Restructurifiis update provides guidance and
clarification to help creditors in determining whet a creditor has granted a concession and whettieltor is experiencing financial
difficulties for purposes of determining whetheareatructuring constitutes a troubled debt restmiregu The amendments in this update are
effective for the first interim or annual periodgirening on or after June 15, 2011 and should béiexppetrospectively to the beginning of the
annual period of adoption. The adoption of thisdguice did not result in the identification of newtypaired loans for which impairment was
previously measured under ASC 48ntingencies

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-03ansfers and Servicing (Topic 860): ReconsideratibEffective Control for Repurchase
AgreementsThe main provisions in this amendment remove froeassessment of effective control (1) the criterequiring the transferor to
have the ability to repurchase or redeem the fimshassets on substantially the agreed terms, ievélie event of default by the transferee, and
(2) the collateral maintenance implementation gugarelated to that criterion. Eliminating the sfamor’s ability criterion and related
implementation guidance from an entiydssessment of effective control should improeeatttounting for repos and other similar transast
The guidance in this update is effective for thstfinterim or annual period beginning on or afdecember 15, 2011 and should be applied
prospectively to transactions or modifications xiféng transactions that occur on or after thedff’e date. The adoption of this guidance did
not have a material impact on the consolidatechfifed statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-Bdir Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmentsctieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.Re#l IFRSsThe amendments in this update are a result of tir by the FASB and
the International Accounting Standards Board toettgy common requirements for measuring fair vahetfar disclosing information about
fair value measurements in accordance with GAAPIatatnational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFR$he amendments change the
wording used to describe many of the requirememt$.5. GAAP for measuring fair value and for disitg information about fair value
measurements. For many of the requirements, théBF®s not intend for these amendments to resaltcimange in the application of the
requirements of Topic 820. The amendments are appbed prospectively. The amendments are effectiving interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoptiahigfguidance did not have a material impact orctiesolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011@&mprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentationah@rehensive IncomASU 2011-
05") . The objective of this update is to improve the camapility, consistency, and transparency of finah@porting and to increase the
prominence of items reported in other comprehensie@me. The amendments in this update requireathabn-owner changes in
stockholders’ equity be presented either in aslsiogntinuous statement of comprehensive income two separate but consecutive
statements. The amendments are to be applied ptosge. The amendments are effective during imeaind annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. ddheption of this guidance did not have a matémalact on the consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011Bhlance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about GffgpAssets and Liabilities

(“ASU 2011-11"). The update requires entities tscthise information about offsetting and relatedmgements of financial instruments and
derivative instruments. The amendments requirererdthdisclosures by requiring improved informatidaout financial instruments and
derivative instruments that are either (i) offseaiccordance with current literature or (2) subjean enforceable master netting arrangeme
similar agreement, irrespective of whether theyddiget in accordance with current literature. AZUL1-11 is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning omier January 1, 2013. The Company does not patieithat the adoption of this guidance
will have a material impact on the consolidatedficial statements.

83



Table of Contents

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011ctdimprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of tffedfive Date for Amendments to
the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items @u{ccumulated Other Comprehensive Income in AdooyStandards Update No. 2011-05.
The amendments in this update defer those changeSW 2011-05 that relate to the presentation dfssifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income on the components of net isa@md other comprehensive income for all periodsguted. All other requirements in
ASU 2011-05 are not affected by this update. Theratments are effective during interim and annuabgds beginning after December 15,
2011. The adoption of this guidance did not hawgaterial impact on the consolidated financial stegets.

2. Merger

On December 29, 2010, the merger of the CompanyratgiFormation LLC, a Delaware limited liability mgpany, was consummated. As a
result of the merger, the surviving company reagizeapital contribution of $16.2 million (in addit to the approximately $13.1 million in
cash consideration paid to former shareholders) ttae former members of FHB collectively acquirgpm@ximately 60% of the Company’s
outstanding common stock. The Company applied ¢theisition method of accounting, as described ilfC/85,Business Combinations
(“ASC 805") to the merger, which represents an &itjon by FHB of Northeast, with Northeast as sugviving company (the “Successor
Company”). In the application of ASC 805 to thiartsaction, the following was considered:

Identify the Accounting Acquir: FHB was identified as the accounting acquirerBFt#hich was incorporated on March 9, 2009, acquae
controlling financial interest of approximately 6@3the Successor Company’s total outstanding gaaimd non-voting common stock in
exchange for contributed capital and cash congidera

In the evaluation and identification of FHB as #ueounting acquirer, it was concluded that FHB aasbstantive entity involved in signific:
pre-merger activities, including the following: saig capital; incurring debt; incurring operatingenses; leasing office space; hiring staff to
develop the surviving company’s business planjmitg professional services firms; and identifymgnuisition targets and negotiating
potential transactions, including the merger.

Determine the Acquisition Da: December 29, 2010, the closing date of the mewgas the date that FHB gained control of the comdbi
entity.

Recognize assets acquired and liabilities assu: Because neither Northeast Bancorp, the Predec€ssopany (the acquired company), nor
FHB (the accounting acquirer) exist as separatéieafter the merger, a new basis of accountirigiavalue for the Successor Company’s
assets and liabilities was established in the dafsed financial statements. At the acquisitiotedéhe Successor Company recognized the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilitiesuased based on their then fair values in accordaitbeASC Topic 820Fair Value
Measuremer(“ASC 820") . The Successor Company recognized a bargain purgaasas the difference between the total purchase and
the net assets acquired.

As a result of application of the acquisition metlud accounting to Northeast Bancorp after the meom December 29, 2010, the Company’s
financial statements from the periods prior tottla@saction date are not directly comparable tdittancial statements for periods subsequent
to the transaction date. To make this distincttba,Company has labeled balances and results oditopes prior to the transaction date as
“Predecessor Company” and balances and resultseshtions for periods subsequent to the transadabm as “Successor Company.” The lacl
of comparability arises from the assets and lisbdihaving new accounting bases as a result ofdery them at their fair values as of the
transaction date rather than at historical cosisb@®s denote this lack of comparability, a healgch line has been placed between the
Successor Company and Predecessor Company colartires Consolidated Financial Statements and inatbles in the notes to the stateme

84



Table of Contents

In connection with the transaction, as part ofrégulatory approval process the Company made nertanmitments to the Board of Govern
of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Rejawd the Maine Bureau of Financial Institutiotise(“Bureau”), the most significant of
which are, (i) maintain a Tier 1 leverage ratiabfeast 10%, (ii) maintain a total risk-based tapatio of at least 15%, (iii) limit purchased
loans to 40% of total loans, (iv) fund 100% of Bempany’s loans with core deposits (defined asmaturity deposits and non-brokered
insured time deposits), and (v) hold commercial estate loans (including owner-occupied commergal estate) to within 300% of total risk-
based capital. The Company is currently in compkawith all commitments to the Federal ReservetaadBureau.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the Gamy assets acquired and liabilities assumed aceded at their respective fair values as
of the transaction date. In connection with thegeerthe consideration paid, and the assets actaieé liabilities assumed recorded at fair
value on the date of acquisition, are summarizéoMb&ollars in thousands).

Consideration

FHB investor’ purchase of 937,933 existing Northeast sharesl&038 per Surviving Company shz $ 13,06t
Existing Northeast sharehold’ retention of shares in Surviving Company, 1,393,88&es at $13.93 per sh 19,41(
Total consideratior $ 32,47t
Net Assets Acquirec
Assets:
Cash and shc-term investment $ 58,59¢
Available-for-sale securitie 153,31!
Loans hel-for-sale 7,864
Loans 361,74:
Premises and equipme 7,90¢
Bank-owned life insuranc 13,53¢
Core deposit intangibl 6,34¢
Other identifiable intangible 7,86t
Other asset 14,40¢
Total Assets Acquire 631,58!
Liabilities and Preferred Equit
Deposits 378,52
Overnight borrowing: 63,04
Term borrowings 125,62
Jr. subordinated debentures issued to affiliatests 7,88¢
Other liabilities 4,49;
Preferred stoc 4,09t
Total Liabilities and Preferred Equity Assunm 583,66
Net Identifiable Assets Acquire $ 47,91¢
Bargain purchase gain recorded in incc $ 15,44:

In this transaction, the estimated fair valueshef Companys net assets were greater than the purchase phiseresulted in a bargain purch:
gain of $15.4 million in the 184 day period endade) 30, 2011. The transaction resulted in a ganctipally because intangible asset fair
values were identified totaling $14.2 million, wénthe consideration paid was principally basechenGompany’s tangible book value as of
September 30, 2009. Direct costs associated wétimterger were expensed by the Company as incurred.
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Through June 30, 2011, those expenses, princifeghl, accounting and investment banking fees, ateaito $3.8 million, of which
$3.3 million was incurred in the year ended June28Q.1.

On the merger date, the fair value of the loanfpliotwas $369.6 million, and included $4.6 milliofiloans with evidence of deterioration in
credit quality since origination for which it wasopable, as of the transaction date, that the Casnpauld be unable to collect all
contractually required payments receivable. In eg@mace with ASC 310-30, this resulted in a non-etatrle difference of $1.9 million, which
is defined as the loan’s contractually requirednpagts in excess of the amount of its cash flow®etea to be collected. The Company
considered factors such as payment history, codlat@lues, and accrual status when determininglveinéhere was evidence of deterioratio
a loan’s credit quality at the transaction datee TGompanys previously established allowance for loan losgas eliminated at the merger d:

The core deposit intangible asset recognized d@op#ie transaction is being amortized over itinested useful life of 9.5 years.

Other identifiable intangibles of $7.9 million caésted principally of the Company’s insurance ageaggtomer lists, which were appraised by
an insurance valuation specialist. Existing gooldwstaling $4.1 million, recorded in conjunctionttviprevious insurance agency acquisitions,
was eliminated when determining the fair value eff assets.

The fair value of savings and transaction accowats assumed to approximate their carrying valumeesihese deposits have no stated maturi
and are payable upon demand.

The fair values of certificates of deposit, termrbwings and junior subordinated debentures issoiedfiliate trusts were determined by
discounting their contractual cash flows at curreatket rates.

3. Available-for-sale Securities

Securities available-for-sale at amortized costangroximate fair values are summarized below:

June 30, 201 June 30, 201

Amortized Amortized

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands

U.S. Government agency securit $ 45,82« $ 45,80¢ $ 48,82 $ 48,73;
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 86,81t 87,45¢ 99,63’ 99,55¢
Equity securitie: 0 0 19z 21¢€
Trust preferred securitie 0 0 46€ 451
$132,64( $133,26: $149,12: $148,96.

The gross unrealized gains and unrealized lossevatable-for-sale securities are as follows:

June 30, 201 June 30, 201

Gross Gross Gross Gross
Unrealize: Unrealize( Unrealize: Unrealize(

Gains Losses Gains Losses

(Dollars in thousands

U.S. Government agency securit $ 5 $ 21 $ 7 $ 97
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 64C 0 212 291
Equity securitie: 0] 0 23 0
Trust preferred securitie 0 0 8 23
$ 64F $ 21 $ 25C $ 411
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When securities are sold, the adjusted cost o§pleeific security sold is used to compute the gailoss on sale. The following table
summarizes realized gains and losses on availablsale securities.

184 Days Ende

Year Ended
Successor Compat June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(Dollars in thousands
Gross realized gair $ 1,17¢ $ 1,42
Gross realized losst 67 227
Net security gain $ 1,111 $ 1,20(

181 Days Ended

Predecessor Compa

December 28, 201

(Dollars in thousand

Gross realized gair $ 17
Gross realized losst 0
Net security gain $ 17

At June 30, 2012, investment securities with afalue of approximately $92.5 million were pledgegicollateral to secure outstanding

structured repurchase agreements and FHLB advances.

The following summarizes the Company’s gross uizedllosses and fair values aggregated by investoadagory and length of time that

individual securities have been in a continuousalized loss position.

June 30, 201
More than 12
Less than 12 Montt Months Total
Unrealizer Unrealizer Unrealize:
Fair Fair Fair
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(Dollars in thousands
U.S. Government agency securit $36,58¢ $ 21 $0 $ 0 $36,58¢ $ 21
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 0 0 0 0 0 0
$36,58¢ $ 21 $0 $ 0 $36,58¢ $ 21
June 30, 201
More than 12
Less than 12 Montt Months Total
Unrealize: Unrealizer Unrealize:
Fair Fair Fair
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(Dollars in thousands
U.S. Government agency securit $46,13( $ 97 $0 $ 0 $46,13( $ 97
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 51,36" 291 0 0 51,36 291
Trust preferred securitie 174 23 0 0 174 23
$97,67: $ 411 $0 $ 0 $97,67: $ 411

There were no other-than-temporary impairment wssesecurities during the year ended June 30,. 206&2Company recorded other-than-
temporary impairment of $7 thousand related toatetrust preferred securities during the 184 damyded June 30, 2011. There were no other
than-temporary impairment losses on securitiesndutie 181 days ended December 28, 2010.

At June 30, 2012, the Company did not have anyrig@suin a continuous loss position for greatarttwelve months. At June 30, 2012, all of
the Company'’s available-for-sale securities wesadsl or guaranteed by either government agencigev@rnment-sponsored enterprises. The
decline in fair value of the Company’s available-$ale securities at June 30, 2012 is attributabhanges in interest rates.
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Management of the Company, in addition to considecurrent trends and economic conditions that affgct the quality of individual
securities within the Company’s investment portiphlso considers the Company’s ability and interitold such securities to maturity or
recovery of cost. Management does not believe &ttlyeoCompany’s available-for-sale securities aheethan-temporarily impaired at
June 30, 2012.

The amortized cost and fair values of availablesiae debt securities by contractual maturity & below as of June 30, 2012. Actual
maturities may differ from contractual maturitieschuse borrowers may have the right to call orgyreligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties.

Amortized

Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands

Due after one year through five ye: $ 45,82« $ 45,80¢
Due after five years through ten ye 0 0
Due after ten yeal 0 0
45,82« 45,80¢
Mortgagebacked securitie 86,81¢ 87,45¢
$132,64( $133,26:

4. Loans, Allowance for Loan Losses and Credit Qualit

The composition of the Company’s loan portfoli@assfollows on the dates indicated. The Companyfirated loan portfolio consists of loans
originated before and after the merger with FHBe TQompany’s purchased loan portfolio consists aftoacquired after the merger through
the LASG.

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
Originated Purchase Total Originated Purchase Total
(Dollars in thousands

Residential real esta $ 90,94 $ 3931 $9487¢ $95417 $ 0 $ 95417
Home equity 42,69¢ 0 42,69¢ 50,06( 0 50,06(
Commercial real esta 100,19¢ 80,53¢ 180,73! 117,12 637 117,76:
Constructior 1,185 0 1,18 2,01t 0 2,01t
Commercial busines 19,61: 0 19,61 22,22t 0 22,22t
Consume 17,14¢ 0 17,14¢ 22,43t 0 22,43¢

Total loans $271,78:  $84,47( $356,25: $309,27¢ $ 637 $309,91:
The following table presents a summary of credjtaimed loans acquired through the merger on Decethe2010.

Residential Re. Commercial Real Este
Estate and and Commercial
Consumel Busines: Total
(Dollars in thousands

Contractually required payments receive $ 3,671 $ 6,06¢ $ 9,74
Nonaccretable differenc (93¢) (2,410 (3,349

Cash flows expected to be collec 2,73¢ 3,65¢ 6,39¢
Accretable yielc (1,209 (48€) (1,690

Fair value of PCI loans acquir: $ 1,53t $ 3,17(C $ 4,70t

The remaining carrying amount of loans identifieth@ merger as having evidence of credit detefimmasince origination was $2.4 million as
of June 30, 2012, consisting primarily of nonpariorg small balance consumer loans. The accretaéle gssociated with such loans was not
significant as of June 30, 2012.
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The following tables present a summary of purchasedit-impaired loans acquired by the LASG (daller thousands):

Loans Acquired During the Year Ended June 30, 2

Contractually required payments receive $35,45¢
Nonaccretable differenc 8,765
Cash flows expected to be collec 26,69(
Accretable yielc 8,589
Fair value of PCI loans acquir $18,10:
Activity in Accretable Yield During the Year Endddne 30, 201z
Beginning balanc $ 0
Accretion (1,917
Acquisitions 8,58¢
Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference, 1,15¢
Disposals and transfe (669
Ending balanci $ 7,16¢
Unpaid principal balance at June 30, 2! $21,35¢
Carrying amount at June 30, 2C $13,86¢

In the ordinary course of business, the Companydaastransactions with its officers, directors dneir associates and affiliated companies
(“related parties”) on substantially the same terimduding rate, as those prevailing at the timedomparable transactions with others. Such
loans amounted to $1.6 million and $2.0 millioanhe 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, respectively.

Activity in the allowance for loan losses follows:

Year ended June 30, 20

Residentie Commercie Commercie
Purchase
Real Estat Real Estati Business Consume 1) Total
Successor Compatr (Dollars in thousands
Beginning balanc $ 34 $ 147 $ 23¢ $ 18 $ 0 $ 437
Provision 42E (28) 27 52z 0 94¢€
Recoveries 3 0 44 37 0 84
Chargr-offs (249) (26) (17) (352) 0 (64
Ending balanc $ 214 $ 93 $ 292 $ 22t $ 0 $ 824

(1) Purchased loans included above include com@aleeal estate, commercial business, and residea&ibestate loans. The Company
separately analyzes all loans purchased by the LB&®G other segments in determining the allowamcddan losses under ASC 2-30.

Successor Predecessor
Company J Company
184 days end¢
181 days ended
June 30, 201 J December 28, 20:
(Dollars in thousands
Beginning balanc $ 0 $ 5,80¢
Provision 707 912
Recoveries 36 10¢
Chargeoffs (309 (859
Ending balanci $ 437 $ 5,967
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The following table sets forth information regamglithe allowance for loan losses by portfolio seghagal impairment methodology.

Allowance for loan losse!
Individually evaluatec
Collectively evaluate:
Purchase®

Total

Loans:
Individually evaluatec
Collectively evaluate:
Purchase® @

Total

Allowance for loan losse:!
Individually evaluatet
Collectively evaluate:
Purchase(®

Total

Loans:
Individually evaluatec
Collectively evaluate:
Purchase®@

Total

June 30, 201
Commercia Commercie
Residentia
Real Estat Real Estat Business Consume Total
(Dollars in thousands
$ 3 $ 41 $ 284 $ 0 $ 32¢
211 52 8 22t 49€
0 0 0 0 0
$ 214 $ 93 $ 292 $ 22t $ 824
$ 39¢ $ 3,11- $ 1,127 $ 0 $ 4,63¢
133,24: 99,32¢ 18,48¢ 17,14¢ 268,20:
3,931 79,48¢ 0 0 83,41¢
$137,57: $181,92. $ 19,61: $17,14¢ $356,25¢
June 30, 201
Commercia Commercie
Residentia
Real Estat Real Estat Business Consume Total
(Dollars in thousands
$ 0 $ 11¢ $ 19€ $ 0 $ 31t
34 28 42 18 122
0 0 0 0 0
$ 34 $ 147 $ 23¢ $ 18 $ 437
$ 0 $ 1,221 $ 1,922 $ 0 $ 3,14:
146,58! 116,81( 20,30: 22,43 306,13:
0 637 0 0 637
$146,58! $118,66¢ $ 22,22¢ $22,43¢ $309,91:

(1) Loansin this category are evaluated for imgghunder ASC 310-30. Post acquisition, the efféetaecline in expected cash flows is
recorded through the allowance for loan lossessgeaeific allocation

(2) AtJune 30, 2012, one purchased loan totaling 8illion was nonperforming and individually evaludtender ASC 31-10.
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The following table sets forth information regamglimpaired loans. The recorded investment in ingghioans includes discounts or premiums
from acquisition through purchase or merger. Irgeircome recognized includes interest receiveatorued based on loan principal and
contractual interest rates. Loans accounted foeuA&C 310-30 that have performed based on cashdial accretable yield expectations
determined at date of acquisition are not consalampaired assets and have been excluded fronalkiestbelow.

For the Year Ended

At June 30, 201 June 30, 201
Unpaid
Principa Average Interest
Recorded Related Recorded Income
Investmer Balance Allowance Investmer Recognize

(Dollars in thousands
Impaired loans without a valuation allowan

Originated:
Residential real esta $ 29z $ 482 $ 0 $ 23t $ 21
Consume 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial real esta 1,48: 1,73¢ 0 1,11¢ 99
Constructior 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial busines 377 692 0 52C 15
Purchased
Commercial real esta 1,05¢ 1,462 0 211 0
Residential real esta 0 0 0 0 0
Total 3,207 4,37¢ 0 2,08t 13E
Impaired loans with a valuation allowan:
Originated:
Residential real esta 10€ 10z 3 73 0
Consume 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial real esta 57t 56& 41 647 27
Constructior 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial busines 75C 817 284 732 0
Purchased
Commercial real esta 0 0 0 0 0
Residential real esta 0 0 0 0 0
Total 1,431 1,48t 32¢ 1,452 27
Total impaired loan $ 4,63¢ $5,86( $ 32t $ 3,53 $ 16z
At June 30, 201
Unpaid
Principa
Recorded Related
Investmer Balance Allowance

(Dollars in thousands
Impaired loans without a valuation allowan

Commercial real esta $ 34¢ $ 34¢ $ 0
Commercial busines 1,054 1,05¢ 0
Total 1,40z 1,40z 0
Impaired loans with a valuation allowan:
Commercial real esta 87¢ 87¢ 11¢
Commercial busines 86¢ 86¢ 19¢€
Total 1,741 1,741 31k
Total impaired loan $ 3,14: $3,14: $ 31t
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Residential real esta
Commercial real esta
Commercial busines

Total

The following is a summary of past due and non+zadoans:

Originated portfolio
Residential real esta
Home equity
Commercial real esta
Constructior
Commercial busines
Consume

Total originated portfolic

Purchased portfolic
Residential real esta
Commercial real esta

Total purchased portfoli
Total loans

Originated portfolio
Residential real esta
Home equity
Commercial real esta
Constructior
Commercial busines
Consume

Total originated portfolic
Purchased portfolic
Commercial real esta
Total purchased portfoli
Total loans

Successor Company Predecessor Company
184 Days Ended 181 Days Ended
June 30, 201 December 28, 201
Average Interest Average Interest
Recorded Income Recorded Income
Investmer Recognize Investmer Recognize
(Dollars in thousands
$ 21 $ 1 $ 33C $ 2
1,73¢ 60 3,36¢ 76
1,041 29 1,73¢ 20
$ 2,79¢ $ 90 $ 5,43¢ $ 98
June 30, 201
Past Du:
90 Days Past Due
or More- 90 Days o
Total Non-
3059 60-89 Still More- Past Total Total Accrual
Days Days Accruinc Nonaccrué Due Current Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands
$261 $18: $ 0 $ 2907 $3,357 $ 87,590 $ 90,94« $3,09(
16 16C 0 13¢€ 31z 42,38¢ 42,69¢ 22C
0 20¢ 0 417 62t 99,57! 100,19¢ 417
0 0 0 0] 0 1,187 1,18; 0
0 107 0 901 1,00¢ 18,60 19,61: 1,00¢
25€ 137 0 20¢€ 602 16,54, 17,14¢ 324
53€ 79t 0 4,56 5,89¢ 265,88¢ 271,78 5,05¢
0 0 0 0] 0 3,931 3,931 0
0 0 0 1,05¢ 1,05¢ 79,48/ 80,53¢ 1,05¢
0 0 0 1,05¢ 1,05¢ 83,41t 84,47( 1,05¢
$53€ $79E S 0 & 562 $6,95¢ $349,30. $356,25: $6,11¢
June 30, 201
Past Du
90 Days Past Due
or More- 90 Days o
Total Non-
3059 60-89 Still More- Past Total Total Accrual
Days Days Accruing Nonaccrue Due Current Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands
$257 $1,021 $ 0 $ 1,77¢ $3,057 $92,36( $ 95417 $2,19¢
117 0 0 89 20¢€ 49,85« 50,06( 20¢
0 492 0 934 1,42¢ 115,69¢ 117,12 3,601
0 0 0 121 121 1,894 2,01t 121
4 75 751 41€ 1,24¢ 20,97¢ 22,22¢ 55¢
56€ 33¢€ 0 50¢ 1,41z 21,021 22,43¢ 527
944 1,92¢ 751 3,84 7,46¢ 301,80¢ 309,27¢ 7,20¢
0 0 0 0 0 637 637 0
0 0 0 0 0 637 637 0
$944 $1,92¢ $ 751 $ 3,847 $7,46f $302,44! $309,91: $7,20¢
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The following table shows the troubled debt redtrtings that occurred during the year ended Jup@@02 and the change in the recorded
investment subsequent to the modifications occgritil concessions given during the period consigibeither rate reductions or maturity
extensions, or combinations thereof. There wargifeness of principal related to loans modifiediTDR during the period.

Recorded Recorded

Number o Investment Investment
Pre- Post-

Contracts Maodification Modification

(Dollars in thousands
Originated portfolio

Residential real esta 1 $ 13¢ $ 13¢
Home equity 1 20 20
Commercial real esta 1 184 184
Constructior 0 0 0
Commercial busines 0 0 0
Consume 0 0 0
Total originated portfolic 3 34z 34z

Purchased portfolic
Residential real esta 0 0 0
Commercial real esta 0 0 0
Total purchased portfoli 0 0 0
Total 3 $ 34z $ 34z

Each TDR that occurred during the year ended JOn2CBL2 consisted of a combination of interest ratliction and maturity extension. There
were no defaults of loans previously modified 2R during the year ended June 30, 2012. As of 30n2012, there were no further
commitments to lend associated with loans modifical TDR.

The following table shows the Company’s total TC#0f the dates indicated.

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
On Oon On
On Nonaccrue Accrua Nonaccrue
Accrual
Status Status Total Status Status Total
(Dollars in thousands
Originated portfolio
Residential real esta $ 92 $ 13¢ $ 231 $ 93 $ 0 $ 93
Home equity 2C 0 2C 0 0 0
Commercial real esta 1,05: 0 1,05: 0 85¢ 85¢
Constructior 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial busines 0 0 0 0 0 0
Consume 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total originated portfolic 1,16t 13¢ 1,30¢ 93 85¢ 952
Purchased portfolic
Residential real esta 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial real esta 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total purchased portfoli 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total $1,16¢ $ 13¢ $1,30¢« $ 93 $ 85¢ $952
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Credit Quality Indicators

As of January 1, 2012, the Company updated itsriatdoan rating system from an eight to a ten psoale. Risk ratings for periods prior to
January 1, 2012 have been retroactively adjusteddimparative purposes.

The Company utilizes a ten point internal loanngystem for its purchased loan portfolio andineted commercial real estate, construction
and commercial business loans as follows:

Loans rated 1 — 6: Loans in these categories argidered “pass” rated loans. Loans in categorigsafe considered to have low to average
risk. Loans rated 6 are considered marginally aedd@ business credits and have more than aveisge r

Loans rated 7: Loans in this category are consiti&seecial mention.” These loans are beginninghmassigns of potential weakness and are
being closely monitored by management.

Loans rated 8: Loans in this category are consititsebstandard.” Loans classified as substand&ihadequately protected by the current
sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor fathe collateral pledged, if any. Assets so clésdihave a well defined weakness or
weaknesses that jeopardize the orderly liquidatfathe debt.

Loans rated 9: Loans in this category are consitlfateubtful.” Loans classified as doubtful havethk weaknesses inherent in one graded 8
with the added characteristic that the weaknessd® e collection or liquidation in full, on thadis of currently existing facts, conditions
values, highly questionable and improbable.

Loans rated 10: Loans in this category are cons@lioss” and of such little value that their contance as loans is not warranted.

On an annual basis, or more often if needed, trepaay formally reviews the ratings of all commekc&al estate, construction, and
commercial business loans. Semi-annually, the Compagages an independent thirakty to review a significant portion of loans withhese
segments. Management uses the results of thessusess part of its annual review process. Riskgaton purchased loans, with and without
evidence of credit deterioration at acquisitiore, determined relative to the Company’s recordedstment in that loan, which may be
significantly lower than the loan’s unpaid prindipalance.

The following tables present the Company'’s loansilyrating.

June 30, 201
Originated Portfolic
Commercia Commercic Purchase
Real Estat Constructiol Business Portfolio
(Dollars in thousands
Loans rated - 6 $ 96,96: $ 1,187 $ 18,22: $83,41¢
Loans rated 1,88¢ 0 25C 1,05¢
Loans rated ! 1,347 0 1,13¢ 0
Loans rated ! 0 0 0 0
Loans rated 1/ 0 0 0 0
$100,19¢ $ 1,187 $ 19,617 $84,47(
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June 30, 201
Originated Portfolic
Commercia Commercic Purchase
Real Estat Constructiol Busines: Portfolio
(Dollars in thousands
Loans rated - 6 $106,71° $ 2,01¢ $ 18,20 $ 637
Loans rated - 3,13¢ 0 1,16¢ 0
Loans rated ! 7,27¢ 0 2,85t 0
Loans rated ! 0 0 0 0
Loans rated 1/ 0 0 0 0
$117,12: $ 2,01f $ 22,22t $ 637
5. Premises and Equipmen
Premises and equipment consists of the following:
June 30, June 30
2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands

Land $ 1,21¢( $1,251

Buildings 2,12( 2,19¢

Assets recorded under capital le 1,85( 1,85(

Leasehold and building improveme! 94( 90z

Furniture, fixtures and equipme 4,90¢ 2,64¢

11,02¢ 8,84:

Less accumulated depreciati 1,82¢ 571

Net premises and equipme $ 9,20¢ $8,271

Depreciation and amortization of premises and eqaigt included in occupancy and equipment expensebdz million for the year ended
June 30, 2012, $571 thousand for the 184 days ehdexl30, 2011, and $520 thousand for the 181 efegesd December 28, 2010.

6. Discontinued Operations

The operations of the Company’s wholly-owned sulbsyd Northeast Bank Insurance Group (“NBIG”), hdeen reclassified as discontinued
operations in the consolidated statements of indmmthe year ended June 30, 2012, the 184 daysdeiuhe 30, 2011, and the 181 days el
December 28, 2010, with no effect on previouslyorégd net income or stockholders’ equity.

On August 31, 2011, the Company sold customerdistscertain fixed assets of NBIG to local insusaagencies in two separate transactions
The following is a summary of the sale transacti@lars in thousands).

Sale proceed $9,88¢
Less:
Customer lists and other intangible assets 7,38(
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreci: 164
Severance and other direct exper 77¢
Pre-tax gain recognize $1,56¢

Customer lists and certain fixed assets of an N&j&ncy office were also sold in fiscal 2011, résglin a pretax gain of $105 thousand.
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The following summarizes the operations of NBIG.

Predecessor
Successor Compat Company
Year
Ended 184 Days
June 30 Ended 181 Days Ended
2012 June 30, 201 December 28, 20:
(Dollars in thousands
Interest expens $ 14 $ 54 $ 75
Noninterest income
Insurance commissiot 96& 2,77 2,66(
Other noninterest income (expen 4 4 0
Total noninterest incom 961 2,77¢ 2,66(
Noninterest expens
Salaries and employee bene 494 1,75¢ 1,721
Occupancy and equipment expe 88 237 204
Professional fee 16 11 18
Data processing fet 38 107 97
Intangible assets amortizati 68 417 344
Other 57 124 107
Total noninterest expen: 761 2,654 2,491
Income from discontinued operatic 18¢€ 68 94
Gain on sale of asse 1,56¢ 0 10%
Income from discontinued operations before income
tax expens: 1,75% 68 19¢
Income tax expens 60< 23 70
Net income from discontinued operati $1,147 $ 45 $ 12¢

Intangible assets associated with discontinuedatipas totaled $7.4 million at June 30, 2011. Taeying amount of fixed assets associated
with discontinued operations was not significaniate 30, 2011.

7. Intangible Assets

At June 30, 2012, intangible assets consistedcof@ deposit intangible recorded in conjunctiorhwtite merger on December 29, 2010. Du
the year ended June 30, 2012, intangible assesistioig of customer lists and non-compete agreesngete included in the sale of the assets
of the Company’s insurance division. The Compagp'i® deposit intangible is being amortized on arekerated basis over 9.5 years.
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The changes in the carrying amount of intangibsetssfollow:

Identifiable Intangible:

Total
Core Identifiable
Deposit Other
Goodwill Intangible Intangible: Intangible:
(Dollars in thousands
Predecessor Compa
Balance, June 30, 20: $4,08: $ 0 $ 7,28¢ $ 7,28¢
Amortization 0] 0 (3449) (349
Assets sold or dispost 0 0 (43 (43
Balance, December 28, 20 $4,08: $ 0 $ 6,901 $ 6,907
Identifiable Intangible:
Total
Core Identifiable
Deposit Other
Goodwill Intangible Intangible: Intangible:
(Dollars in thousands
Successor Compat
Balance, December 29, 20 $ 0 $ 6,34¢ $ 7,86¢ $14,21:
Amortization 0 (663) (417) (1,080
Assets sold or dispost 0 0 0 0
Balance, June 30, 20: 0 5,68t 7,44¢ 13,13:
Amortization 0 (1,199 (68) (1,266
Assets sold or dispost 0 0 (7,380) (7,380
Balance, June 30, 20: $ O $ 4,485 $ 0 $ 4,485
The components of identifiable intangible asselteioat June 30:
2012 2011

Core

Deposit Intangible
Gross carrying amoul
Accumulated amortizatio

Other Intangibles

Gross carrying amoul
Accumulated amortizatio

(Dollars in thousands

$ 6,34¢ $6,34¢
1,861) (662)
$ 4,481 $5,68¢
$ 0 $7,86¢
0 (417)

$ 0 $7,44¢

Estimated annual amortization expense associatibdmangible assets, years ending June 30 (dahatsousands):

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereaftel
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8. Deposits
The composition of deposits at June 30 follows:
2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands
Demanc $ 45,32: $ 48,21F
NOW 57,471 55,45¢
Money marke 45,024 48,69¢
Regular saving 32,72% 34,34¢
Time certificates of less than $1 100,29: 121,22¢
Other time certificate 141,34! 93,17¢
$422,18t¢ $401,11¢
The scheduled maturities of time certificates aeJ80, 2012 follows (dollars in thousands):
2013 $132,56¢
2014 39,49t
2015 32,14¢
2016 4,028
2017 33,09¢
Thereaftel 30&
$241,63

9. Borrowings
Federal Home Loan Bar

A summary of fixed-rate long term advances fromRkederal Home Loan Bank of Boston as of June 302 20llows:

Unpaid Principal

Maturity Balance Carrying Amount Weighted Average Co:

By Fiscal 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Year (Dollars in thousands
2013 $15,00( $15,00( $15,19¢ $15,45( 1.4€% 1.4€%
2014 0 0 0 0 0.0C 0.0C
2015 12,50( 12,50( 12,72¢ 12,83: 2.3C 2.3C
2016 0 0] 0 0 0.0C 0.0C
2017 10,00( 10,00( 10,38: 10,46¢ 3.4¢ 3.4¢
2018 5,00( 5,00( 5,14¢ 5,17 3.84 3.84

$42,50( $42,50( $43,45( $43,92: 2.47 2.47

At June 30, 2012, FHLB advances with unpaid priakgs $20.0 million were subject to call provisicanisd may be called prior to the stated
maturity.

Certain mortgage loans, free of liens, pledgeseammdimbrances and certain investment securitiestaiaéd at the FHLB not otherwise pled
have been pledged under a blanket agreement toesase advances. The Company is required to tek 81 the Federal Home Loan Bank
of Boston in order to borrow from the FHLB.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had a $2.1 milli@of credit arrangement with the FHLB which wally available. Also at June 30,
2012, the Company had approximately $7.2 milliomdditional capacity to borrow from the FHLB.
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Structured Repurchase Agreements

A summary of structured repurchase agreements &snef 30, 2012 follows:

Unpaid Principal Weighted Average
Maturity Balance Carrying Amount Cost
By Fiscal Structured 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Year Rate Featur (Dollars in thousands
2013 n/a $40,00( $40,00( $40,30: $41,64: 1.22% 1.22%
2014 n/a 15,00( 15,00( 15,35¢ 15,68: 1.64 1.64
2015 n/a 0 0 0 0 0.0C 0.0C
2016 Caps; strike rate of 3.81 10,00( 10,00( 10,52 10,68¢ 2.7¢ 2.7
$65,00( $65,00( $66,18: $68,00¢ 1.5€ 1.5€

No leveraging strategies were implemented in fi2€dl2 and 2011. Structured repurchased agreemavtsémbedded interest rate cap
summarized in the table above. The interest rgie ceduced balance sheet risk to rising interéssr&ayments will be received on the interes
rate caps when three-month LIBOR exceeds the staileeon the quarterly reset date. The amounteopttyment will be equal to the difference
between the strike rate and three-month LIBOR pligiil by the notional amount of the cap, to be n2@eays after the reset date. The
purchased interest rate caps expire at the erfteafdn-call periods.

The Company is subject to margin calls on eachstration to maintain the necessary collateral irfdine of cash or other mortgage-backed
securities during the borrowing term.

Other Borrowings

Other borrowings of $2.2 million as of June 30, P@bnsisted of non-negotiable promissory notes lgay@ former sellers of the Company’s
insurance agencies. Such borrowings were repaidglfiscal 2012 in connection with the sale of dahsally all of the assets of NBIG.

Capital Lease Obligation

In fiscal 2006, the Company recognized a capitddeobligation for its Lewiston, Maine, headquart@he present value of the lease paymen
over fifteen years exceeded 90% of the fair valudbe property.

The future minimum lease payments over the remgiténm of the lease and the outstanding capitakl@bligation at June 30, 2012 are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

2013 $ 264
2014 264
2015 264
2016 30z
2017 30€
2018 and thereaftt 944

2,34¢
Less imputed intere: 434
Capital lease obligatio $1,911

ShortTerm Borrowings

Short-term borrowings are sweep accounts, whiclaatemand account product that moves balancesessxf an agreed upon target amoun
from a demand deposit account into an interestihgaccount overnight. The
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sweep account is collateralized with a letter efdirissued by the FHLBB. The Company ceased oifesecurities sold under agreements to
repurchase in fiscal 2011. The weighted averagedst rate on short-term borrowings was 2.00% &52i4 at June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

10. Junior Subordinated Debentures Issued to AffiliatedTrusts

NBN Capital Trust Il and NBN Capital Trust Il weoeeated in December 2003. NBN Capital Trust IV wasated in December 2004. E:
such trust is a Delaware statutory trust (togetther,'Private Trusts”). The exclusive purpose @& Brivate Trusts was (i) issuing and selling
common securities and preferred securities inafeiplacement offering (the “Private Trust Sedesiy, (ii) using the proceeds of the sale of
the Private Trust Securities to acquire Junior $dibated Deferrable Interest Notes (“Junior Submatkd Debentures”gnd (iii) engaging onl

in those other activities necessary, conveniemadental thereto. Accordingly, the Junior Subaeded Debentures are the sole assets of eac
of the Private Trusts.

The following table summarizes the Junior Suborgiddebentures issued by the Company to eachaddiilitrust and the Private Trust
Securities issued by each affiliated trust at Bhe012. Amounts include the junior subordinatebahtures acquired by the affiliated trusts
from the Company with the capital contributed by @ompany in exchange for the common securitissicfi trust, which were $93 thousand
for NEB Capital Trust Il and Il and $310 thousdnd NEB Capital Trust IV. The trust preferred setias (the “Preferred Securities”) were
sold in two separate private placement offeringg Tompany has the right to redeem the Junior Suiaied Debentures, in whole or in part,
on or after March 30, 2009, for NBN Capital Trusahd Ill, and on or after February 23, 2010, f@NMCapital Trust IV, at the redemption
price specified in the associated Indenture, pbesweed but unpaid interest to the redemption date.

Contractue

Cost Principal
Carrying Amoun 1) Balance Rate(®) Maturity Date
(Dollars in thousands
NBN Capital Trust Il $1,74 7.52% $ 3,09¢ 3.26% March 30, 203
NBN Capital Trust IlI 1,747 7.52 3,09z 3.2¢ March 30, 203
NBN Capital Trust IV 4,617 7.67 10,31( 2.3 February 23, 20z
Total $8,10¢t $16,49¢

(1) Excludes effects of hedging instrume

NBN Capital Trust Il and Il pay a variable ratesbd on three month LIBOR plus 2.80%, and NBN Céapitast IV pays a variable rate bas

on three month LIBOR plus 1.89%. Accordingly, theferred Securities of the Private Trusts currepdly quarterly distributions at an annual
rate of 3.26% for the stated liquidation amoun$bf000 per Preferred Security for NBN Capital Tdusind Il and an annual rate of 2.36% for
the stated liquidation amount of $1,000 per Prefit8ecurity for NBN Capital Trust IV. The ComparasHully and unconditionally guarante
all of the obligations of each trust. The guarasdyers the quarterly distributions and paymentidquidation or redemption of the Private
Trust Securities, but only to the extent of fundfdiby the trusts.

The Junior Subordinated Debentures each have \ariates indexed to three-month LIBOR. During thelte months ended June 30, 2010,

the Company purchased two interest rate caps anmdeaBst rate swap to hedge the interest rateonshkotional amounts of $6 million and $10
million, respectively, of the Company’s Junior Stdinated Debentures. Each was a cash flow hedgetmge the risk to net interest income
in a period of rising rates.

The interest rate caps hedge the junior subordirdbt resulting from the issuance of trust prefsecurities by our affiliates NBN Capital
Trust Il and NBN Capital Trust Ill. The notional aomt of $3 million for each
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interest rate cap represents the outstanding jsuioordinated debt from each trust. The strikeisa®505%. The Company will recognize
higher interest expense on the junior subordindtdu for the first 200 basis points increase ie¢hmonth LIBOR. Once the three-month
LIBOR rate exceeds 2.505% on a quarterly reset tladee will be a payment by the counterparty ®m@ompany at the following quarter end.
The effective date of the purchased interest raps gvas September 30, 2009 and matures in five.year

The interest rate swap hedges the junior subomtindebt resulting from the issuance of trust pretestock by our affiliate NBN Capital Trust
IV. The notional amount of $10 million represerits butstanding junior subordinated debt from thistt Under the terms of the interest rate

swap, the Company pays a fixed rate of 4.69% quwrfter a period of five years from the effectivatd of February 23, 2010. The Company

receives quarterly interest payments of three mbBIOR plus 1.89% over the same term.

11. Capital and Requlatory Matters

The Company and the Bank are subject to varioudaayy capital requirements administered by thieefal banking agencies. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certasnehatory and possibly additional discretionaryaddiby regulators that, if undertaken,
could have a direct material effect on the Compsfipancial statements. Under capital adequacyaijniels and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bankt meet specific capital guidelines that invajuantitative measures of assets, liabill
and certain off-balance sheet items as calculateléruregulatory accounting practices. The Compaagtsthe Bank’s capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative jundgts by the regulators about components, riskhtieigs and other factors.

The prompt corrective action regulations definecffjfiecapital categories based on an institutiargpital ratios. The capital categories, in
declining order, are “well capitalized,” “adequatebpitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantiyndercapitalized” and “critically
undercapitalized.”

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the most recenticatiiin from the Company’s and the Basmkégulator categorized the Company and the
as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framelvéor prompt corrective action. To be categorizedwell capitalized,'the Company and tt
Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tiersk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forthe table below. There are no
conditions or events since that notification thanagement believes have changed the institutieg'slatory designation as “well-capitalized”
under the regulatory framework for prompt corregtaction. Further, the Bank is subject to capitahmitments with the Federal Reserve that
require higher minimum capital ratios as discuseedote 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Quantitative measures established by regulati@nsare capital adequacy require the Company anBahk to maintain minimum amounts
and ratios as set forth in the table below. At J8@e2012 and 2011, the Company'’s and the Bardtios exceeded the regulatory requirem:
Management believes that the Company and the Balalrcapital adequacy requirements to which tlveye subject as of June 30, 2012 anc
2011. The Company’s and the Bank’s regulatory ehpdtios are set forth below.

Minimum
To Be Well
Minimum Capitalized Under
Capital Prompt Correction
Actual Requirement Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratic Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands
June 30, 201z
Total capital to risk weighted asse
Company >
$124,45. 33.3% $29,86: 8% $ NA N/A
Bank >

>
75,08. 20.1% 29,82 8.(% 37,280 10.%
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted asse
Company >
123,62 33.1%  14,93: 4.(% N/A N/A
Bank 2 2
70,41¢ 18.8%%  14,91( 4%  22,36¢ 6.C%
Tier 1 capital to average asse

Company >
123,62 19.91% 24,83 4.(% N/A N/A
Bank > >

70,41¢ 11.49%  24,64. 4.% 30,80  5.0%
June 30, 2011
Total capital to risk weighted asse

Company >
$ 61,86( 18.99% $26,06: 8% $ N/A N/A
Bank >

>
66,95¢ 20.4%  26,21¢ 8.(% 32,77C 10.(%
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted asse
Company >
61,42 18.8%  13,03( 4.(% N/A N/A
Bank > >
62,84: 19.1¢%  13,10¢ 4%  19,66: 6.C%
Tier 1 capital to average asse

Company >
61,42 10.39%  23,73¢ 4.(% N/A N/A
Bank > >

62,84: 10.68% 23,52 4% 29,40 5.C%

The Bank may not declare or pay a cash dividenaorepurchase, any of its capital stock from theeRt if the effect thereof would cause the
capital of the Bank to be reduced below the capigliirements imposed by the regulatory authorire$ such amount exceeds the otherwise
allowable amount under FRB rules.
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12. Earnings Per Common Share

EPS is computed by dividing net income allocatedaimmon shareholders by the weighted average consimanes outstanding. The following
table shows the weighted average number of shaitssaading for the periods indicated. Shares idsuaative to stock options granted have
been reflected as an increase in the shares oditsgansed to calculate diluted EPS, after applyigtreasury stock method. The number of
shares outstanding for basic and diluted EPS sepited as follows:

Predecessor
Successor Compat Company
184 days end¢
Year ended 181 days ended
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 December 28, 20:
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per slzey
Net income from continuing operatio $ 1,01¢ $ 12,50 $ 1,667
Preferred stock dividenc (212 (107) (109
Accretion of preferred stoc (180 (90) (15
Net income from continuing operations availabledmmon
shareholder $ 624 $ 12,3« $ 1,54¢
Undistributed earnings of continuing operationsadked to participatin
securities 2 46 0
Net income from continuing operations allocateddmmon
shareholder $ 622 $ 12,26¢ $ 1,54¢
Net income from discontinued operations availabledmmor
shareholder $ 1,14 $ 45 $ 12¢
Undistributed earnings of discontinued operatidieeated to
participating securitie 3 0 0
Net income from discontinued operations allocated t
common shareholde $ 1,14« $ 45 $ 12¢
Weighted average shares used in calculation o€ le@snings per sha 4,277,777 3,492,93 2,330,19
Incremental shares from assumed exercise of ddwicuritie: 13,57¢ 55,23: 24,18t
Weighted average shares used in calculation ofedilearnings pe
share 4,291,35; 3,548,16. 2,354,38!
Earnings per common sha
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.1t $ 3.51 $ 0.6¢€
Income from discontinued operatic 0.2¢€ 0.01 0.0¢
Earnings per common she $ 0.41 $ 3.5z $ 0.7z
Diluted earnings per common shg
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.1¢ $ 3.4¢€ $ 0.6¢€
Income from discontinued operatic 0.2¢€ 0.01 0.0t
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.41 $ 3.47 $ 0.71
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Anti-dilutive options and warrants excluded frone ttalculation of dilutive earnings per share follow

Predecessor
Successor Compat Company
184 days end¢
Year ended 181 days ended
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 December 28, 20:
Stock options 796,04¢ 162,01( 0
Warrants 0 0 0
796,04 162,01( 0
13. _Income Taxes
The current and deferred components of incomeliardfit) expense from continuing operations follows
Predecessor
Successor Compat J Company
184 Days Ende
Year Ended 181 Days Ended
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 J December 28, 20:

(Dollars in thousands

Current provision (benefi
Federa $ (1,039 $ (773%) $ 99¢
State 71 14€ 45
Total current provision (benefi (962) (627) 1,041

Deferred provision (benefi
Federa 1,14z 544 (343
State 0 0 0
Total deferred provisio 1,14z 544 (349
Total tax provision (benefii $ 181 $ (83) $ 69€

The reconciliation between the statutory federabme tax rate of 34% and the effective tax ratéoame from continuing operations follow

Predecessor
Successor Compat J Company
184 Days Ende
Year Ended 181 Days Ended
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 J December 28, 20:
(Dollars in thousands

Expected income tax expense at federal tax $ 407 $ 4,22¢ $ 804
State tax, net of federal tax bent 47 9€ 28
Non-taxable merger expen 0 1,04¢ 32
Non-taxable bargain purchase g 0 (5,250 0
Non-taxable interest incomr @) (32 (87)
Non-taxable BOLI income (A70) (86) (87)
Low-income housing tax crec (11¢) (92) 0]
Other 22 1C 8
Total tax provision (benefit $ 181 $ (83 $ 69¢
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The tax effect of temporary differences that gige to significant portions of the deferred taxetés®nd deferred tax liabilities at June 30

follows:

Deferred tax asse
Allowance for loan losse
Loan basis differentie
Time deposit basis differenti
Derivative basis differentic
Capital least
Deferred compensatic
Stoclk-based compensatic
Unrealized loss on derivativi
Unrealized loss on available for sale secur
Interest on nonperforming loa
Limited partnership
Other
Total deferred tax ass
Deferred tax liabilitie:
Goodwill and other intangible ass:
Prepaid expenst
Premises and equipme
Borrowings basis differenti
Unrealized gain on available for sale securi
Other
Total deferred tax liability

Net deferred tax (liability) ass

2012

2011

(Dollars in thousands

28( $ 14¢
62¢ 1,231
58¢ 1,02¢
14¢€ 19¢
12C 11C
21z 78
41¢ 267
13C 62

0 55

212 151
97 78
20E 124
3,03¢ 3,53t
(1,526) (1,222
(26€) (20€)
(801) (487)
(2,127) (1,36%)
(212) 0
(59) (179
(4,999 (3,469
$(1,959) $ 72

The net deferred tax liability was included in athabilities in the accompanying balance sheatfalune 30, 2012. The net deferred tax asset

was included in other assets in the accompanyitanba sheet as of June 30, 2011.

At June 30, 2012, the Company has determined thaluation allowance is not required for any ofdeferred tax assets since it is more likely
than not that these assets will be realized prailgigghrough the utilization of carry-back provie®to taxable income on prior years and future

reversals of existing taxable temporary differeraed by offsetting other future taxable income.

For federal tax purposes, the Company has a $2liomieserve for loan losses which remains subliececapture. If any portion of the rese
is used for purposes other than to absorb theddssevhich it was established, approximately 1580the amount actually used (limited to the
amount of the reserve) would be subject to taxdtidhe year in which used. As the Company intdndsse the reserve only to absorb loan

losses, no provision has been made for potendibilily that would result if 100% of the reserveraeecaptured.

It is the Company’s policy to provide for uncertééix positions and the related interest and peysaliased upon management’s assessment @
whether a tax benefit is more likely than not toshistained upon examination by tax authoritiesofAfune 30, 2012 and 2011, there were no
material uncertain tax positions related to fedaral state income tax matters. The Company is milyrepen to audit under the statute of

limitations by the Internal Revenue Service antkestaxing authorities for the 2009 tax return amvard.
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14. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan

The Company offers a contributory 401(k) plan ikatvailable to all full-time salaried and hourlgigh employees who have attained age 18,
and completed 90 days of employment. Employeesauairibute up to 100% of their base compensatiobjest to IRS limitations. The
Company will match 50% of each employee’s contidoutp to the first 6% contributed. For the yeadlesh June 30, 2012, the 184 days ende
June 30, 2011, and the 181 days ended Decemb2028, the Company contributed $308 thousand, $1G@tand, and $154 thousand,
respectively.

Deferred Compensatic

For the nonqualified deferred compensation agre&neith five senior officers, the merger was deem@thange of the control and, under the
terms of the agreement, the accrued retirementfib@seof November 30, 2010 was distributed. Thiesferred compensation agreements also
terminated on the merger date. A plan to replaegthkvious deferred compensation agreements walizéd subsequent to the year ended
June 30, 2012. The Company recognized deferred ensagion expense of $159 thousand, $112 thousadd106 thousand for the year
ended June 30, 2012, the 184 days ended June BD, &t the 181 days ended December 28, 2010.

15. Stock-Based Compensatior

In connection with the merger, the Company adopitedNortheast Bancorp 2010 Stock Option and IngerRian (the “Plan”), which provides
for awards of stock-based compensation (stock ngtistock appreciation rights, restricted stockrdgjacash-based awards and other equity-
based incentive awards). The maximum number ofosizéd shares of stock that may be issued undegl#imeis 810,054 plan shares. The
Company’s previous stock option plans were terneiti@n the merger date, and 10,500 outstandingdregtions under those plans were
exchanged for options to acquire shares of surgigwmmpany common stock, with terms that are subathnidentical to the existing options.

A summary of the stock option activity for the yeaded June 30, 2012 follows:

Weightec

Average

Exercise

Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of period 764,54¢ $14.0¢
Grantec 40,00( 12.6:
Exercisec 0 0
Forfeited 8,500 13.1(C
Outstanding and at end of peri 796,04¢ 13.9¢
Exercisable 54,17¢ $14.11
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The fair value of options granted was estimatetherdate of grant using the Black-Scholes or lattiption-pricing model using the following
weighted-average assumptions.

Year Ended
June 30, 201 184 Days Ended June 30, 2(
Time-basec Time-basec Performanc-basec
Assumptions
Dividend yield 2.81% 2.58% 2.58%
Expected life 6 year 10 year 10 year
Expected volatility 33.86% 27.15% 27.15%
Risk-free interest rat 0.98% 0.20%-3.35% 0.20%-3.35%
Vesting share price for performai-based option n/e n/e $27.86- $34.8:
Weighted average fair value per opt $ 4.3¢ $ 3.8¢ $ 2.4¢

The expected volatility is based on historical tititg. The risk-free interest rate is for periodgthin the expected life of the awards, and is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effethatime of the grant. The expected life is basethistorical and expected exercise
experience. The dividend yield assumption is basethe Company’s history and expectation of divilpayouts. For the performance-based
stock options, the vesting is triggered if the shanice exceeds the specified hurdle price forf@@@previous 75 consecutive trading days.

The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions outstanding at June 30, 2012.

Options Outstandin Options Exercisabl
Weighted Aggregat Weighted Aggregat
Weighted Average Weighted Average

Average Remaining Intrinsic Average Remaining Intrinsic

Exercise Pric Number Life Value Exercise Pric Number Life Value
$12.63 40,00( 9.6 year $ 0 $ 12.6% 0 9.6 year $ 0
13.93 594,03¢ 8.5 year 0 13.9¢ 37,97t 8.5 year 0
14.52 162,01( 8.5 year 0 14.52 16,20( 8.5 year 0
13.98 796,04¢ 8.6 year 0 14.11 54,17t 8.5 year 0

At June 30, 2012, all unvested stock options ontstey are expected to vest.

On December 29, 2010, the Company granted a riestrstock award of 13,026 shares of the Comgaogimmon stock to a senior executiv
the Company. The holder of this award particip&iélg in the rewards of stock ownership of the Canp, including voting rights and
dividend rights. This award was determined to hef&ir value of $13.93 per share based on the geqrdce at which the Compasytommor
stock traded on the date of grant. Forty percetti@fward will vest on December 29, 2012, andehginder will vest in three equal annual
installments commencing on December 29, 2013. A€ B0, 2012, no restricted common shares weredieslierestricted common shares are
expected to vest.

At June 30, 2012, the Company has accrued a babili$48 thousand representing the maximum caghmpat for performance-based stock
appreciation rights (“SARs") granted in fiscal 20The SARs expire in December of 2020.
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Stock-based compensation totaled $445 thousarttidorear ended June 30, 2012, $210 thousand fdBéhelays ended June 30, 2011, and $
for the 181 days ended December 28, 2010. The &stthamount and timing of future pre-tax stock-dasEmpensation expense to be
recognized are as follows.

Fiscal Years Ending June &

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
(Dollars in thousands

Stock options $41¢ $40& $38¢€ $25€ $69 $1,53¢

Restricted stoc 36 36 36 18 0 12¢€

$45E  $441  $422  $274  $68  $1,661

16. Commitments, Contingent Liabilities and Other Gf-Balance Sheet Risks

The Company is a party to financial instrumentwiff-balance sheet risk in the normal course Gifrss to meet the financing needs of its
customers and to reduce its own exposure to fltictugin interest rates. These financial instrureémtlude commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. Those instruments ingpte varying degrees, elements of credit andéstenate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the consolidated balance sheetscaiigact amounts of those instruments reflect #terg of involvement the Company has in
particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the egénbnperformance by the other party to the finahicistrument for commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit is represehtethe contractual amount of those instrumente. Cmpany uses the same credit policies in
making commitments and conditional obligationstaies for on-balance sheet instruments.

Financial instruments with contract amounts whigpresent credit risk are as follows as of June 30:
2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands
Commitments to originate loar

Residential real estate mortgay $10,27¢ $10,64¢
Construction loan 10€ 56¢
Consume 25 0
Commercial real estate mortgac 361 37t
Commercial business loa 1,14¢ 27
$11,91¢ $11,61¢

Unused lines of cred $36,27¢ $42,38t
Standby letters of crec 602 1,23:
Unadvanced portions of construction loi 162 431

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteaccustomer as long as there is no violatioanyfcondition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require paymgatfee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without beimgvdrupon, the total commitment amounts do not reeciég represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each custoored# worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The@ined collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Company upon extension of ciedigsed on management’s credit evaluation of thater party. Collateral held varies but
may include accounts receivable, inventory, propgtiant and equipment, and income-producing corniakeproperties. The Company has
recorded an allowance for possible losses on comenits and unfunded loans totaling $6 thousand ahdi®usand at June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively.
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Standby letters of credit are conditional commitiséssued by the Company to guarantee the perfaenaina customer to a third party. Those
guarantees are issued to support private borromirangements. The credit risk involved in issuigttelrs of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loan facilities to custers. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the maximuenpiad amount of the Company’s
obligation was $602 thousand and $1.2 million, eesipely, for financial and standby letters of dtedlhe Company’s outstanding letters of
credit generally have a term of less than one y&arletter of credit is drawn upon, the Compangynseek recourse through the customer’s
underlying line of credit. If the customerfine of credit is also in default, the Companyrtake possession of the collateral, if any, seguthe
line of credit.

Lease Obligation

The Company leases certain properties and equipasexdtin operations under terms of operating lethegsnclude renewal options. Rental
expense under leases totaled $817 thousand fgetreended June 30, 2012, $438 thousand for theldy@tending June 30, 2011, and $272
thousand for the 181 days ended December 28, 284jdectively.

Approximate future minimum lease payments overémeaining terms of leases at June 30, 2012 arallag/§ (dollars in thousands):

2013 $ 73¢
2014 98¢
2015 1,09t
2016 1,057
2017 93¢
2018 and thereaftt 5,21(

$10,02(

During fiscal 2012, the Company executed a leas@7dhousand square feet of office space in Bod#tassachusetts. The lease commenc
December of 2012 and continues for a period ofddry. The approximate future minimum lease paynesssciated with the lease are
included in the table above. This new office spaitkereplace the Company’s existing Boston offitlee lease for which expires on
December 31, 2012.

Legal Proceeding

The Company and its subsidiary are parties tadlitign and claims arising in the normal course dfitiess. Management believes that the
liabilities, if any, arising from such litigatiomd claims will not be material to the Company’s solidated financial position or results of
operations.
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17. Condensed Parent Information

Condensed financial information for Northeast Bapdollows:

Balance Sheel

Assets:

Cash

Investment in subsidiar

Investment in common securities of affiliated ta
Other asset

Total asset
Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity:

Junior subordinated debentures issued to affiliaiests
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde' equity

110

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(Dollars in thousands

$ 54,99¢ $ 3,53
72,84 70,53
49¢ 49¢
2,047 1,35(

$ 130,38 $ 75,92
$ 8,10¢ $ 7,957
3,14 3,01
11,24¢ 10,96¢
119,13 64,95
$ 130,38 $ 75,92
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Statements of Incon

Income:
Dividends from banking subsidia
Bargain purchase ga
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Interest on Junior Subordinated Debentures paéfileated trusts

General and administrative expen
Total expense

(Loss) income before income tax expense and equitndistributed net

income of subsidiar
Income tax benefi

Income before equity in undistributed net incomeuwbsidiary

Equity in undistributed net income of subsidi
Net income

Net income available to common stockholc

Statements of Cash Flc
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashdus) provided by

operating activities
Amortization

Amortization of fair value adjustment for borrows"

Stoclk-based compensatic

Undistributed (earnings) loss of subsidi
Net gain on availab-for-sale securitie
Bargain purchase ga

Increase in other assets and liabili

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Cash flows from investing activitie
Increase in investment of bank subsidi
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie
Proceeds from sales of availe-for-sale securitie

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi

Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Dividends paid to stockholde
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net increase in cas
Cash, beginning of peric
Cash, end of perio

111

Successor Compar

184 Days
Year Ended Ended
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(Dollars in thousands
$ 1,50( $ 0
0 16,62(
26 21
1,52¢ 16,64
751 36E
99: 3,77z
1,744 4,137
(21€) 12,50«
58¢ 271
371 12,77¢
1,797 (223)
$ 2,16 $ 12,55:
$ 1,771 $ 12,35t

Successor Compat

184 Days
Year Ended Ended
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(Dollars in thousands
$ 2,16¢ $ 12,55:
0 19
14¢ 68
44¢ 21C
(1,792 227
0 (12)
0 (16,62()
(700) (756)
26E (4,315
0 (9,150)
0 0
0 57¢€
0 (8,579
52,66 16,20:
(1,47¢) (73€)
51,19 15,46¢
51,45¢ 2,57¢
3,53¢ 962
$ 54,99¢ $ 3,53

Predecessor

Company
181 Days
Ended
Dec. 28, 201

$ 1,25t
0
18

1,27:

34C
20¢

54¢

724
151

87¢
921

$ 1,79
$ 1,67

Predecessor

Company
181 Days
Ended
Dec. 28, 201

$ 1,79

(921)
)

(279
59¢

@
17¢
172

62
(525)
(46%)

307
65%
$ 962
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18. Other Comprehensive Income

The components of other comprehensive income follow

Successor Compat

Year Ended June 30, 20

184 Days Ended June 30, 2(

After- After-
Pre-tax Tax Expens tax Pre-tax Tax Expens tax
Amount (Benefit) Amount Amount (Benefit) Amoun
(Dollars in thousands (Dollars in thousands
Unrealized holding gains on availa-for-sale securitie $1,89¢ $ 64t $1,251 $1,03¢ $ 352 $ 68€
Less: Realized gair 1,111 37¢ 733 1,20(C 40¢ 792
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni 78E 267 51¢ (1617) (55) (106
Unrealized losses on cash flow hed (122 (47) (81) (137 (46) (92)
Less: Realized gair 8C 27 53 44 15 29
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges. (202) (68) (139 (187) (62) (120
Total other comprehensive income (lo $ 58: $ 19¢ $ 384 $ (342 $ (116 $(22€)
Predecessor Compa 181 Days Ended December 28, 2(
Pre-tax Tax Expens After-tax
Amount Benefit Amount
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized holding losses on availe-for-sale securitie $(2,80€) $ (959 $(1,857)
Less: Realized gains on availe-for-sale securitie 17 6 11
Unrealized losses on availa-for-sale securities, n (2,829 (960) (1,869)
Unrealized losses on cash flow hed (16) (6) (10
Total other comprehensive la $(2,839) $ 96€) $(1,879)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) msesed of the following components:
June 30 June 30
2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands
Unrealized gain (loss) on availa-for-sale securitie $ 624 $ (167)
Tax effect (212 55
Net-of-tax amoun 412 (106
Unrealized loss on cash flow hed (389 (182)
Tax effect 13C 62
Net-of-tax amoun (259 (120
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li $ 15€ $ (226

19. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is a market-based measure considerettfre perspective of a market participant rathan tan entity-specific measure. Therefore,
even when market assumptions are not readily dlajlthe Company’s own assumptions are set toateti@se that market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability at the
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measurement date. If there has been a signifiearedse in the volume and level of activity for &élsset or liability, regardless of the valuation
technique(s) used, the objective of a fair valuasneement remains the same. Fair value is the firi¢avould be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trandant(that is, not a forced liquidation or distredsale) between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditidms. Company uses prices and inputs that are cuasenit the measurement date, including
in periods of market dislocation. In periods of kedrdislocation, the observability of prices anguts may be reduced for many instruments.
This condition could cause an instrument to beassified from one level to another.

ASC 820 defines fair value and establishes a fineshierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to véiluatechniques used to measure fair value.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unatjdsquoted prices in active markets for identicsleds or liabilities (Level 1 measurements)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs @€ measurements). The three levels of the fairevhierarchy under ASC 820 are describec
below:

Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjustedictive markets for identical assets or liabilitieat the reporting entity has the ability to
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Valuations based on quoted prices in migrkhat are not active or for which all signifitarputs are observable, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 — Prices or valuations that require inghtt are both significant to the fair value meamert and unobservable.

To the extent that valuation is based on modelsprts that are less observable or unobservaliteeimarket, the determination of fair value
requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degrepid§ment exercised by the Company in determinimgvieue is greatest for instruments
categorized in Level 3. A financial instrumentevel within the fair value hierarchy is basectlos lowest level of any input that is significao
the fair value measurement.

Valuation Techniqgus—There have been no changes in the valuationigpesused during the current period.
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value oRexurring Basis

Available-for-sale securities-Where quoted prices are available in an activeketasecurities are classified within Level 1 of th
valuation hierarchy. Examples of such instrumemttuide publicly-traded common and preferred stolflquoted prices are not
available, then fair values are estimated by upitigng models (.e., matrix pricing) and market interest rates andlitr@ssumptions
or quoted prices of securities with similar chaggistics and are classified within Level 2 of treduation hierarchy. Examples of such
instruments include government agency and goverhspmsored agency mortgage-backed securitieselhasvcertain preferred and
trust preferred stocks. Level 3 securities are isiesi for which significant unobservable inputs attilized.

Derivative financial instruments-The valuation of the Company’s interest rate swapbcaps are determined using widely acceptec
valuation techniques including discounted cash fimalyses on the expected cash flows of derivatiMesse analyses reflect the
contractual terms of the derivatives, including plegiod to maturity, and use observable marketagauts, including interest rate
curves and implied volatilities. Unobservable irgpuch as credit valuation adjustments are infgignit to the overall valuation of tl
Companys derivative financial instruments. Accordinglyet@ompany has determined that its interest rafgatises fall within Leve

2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of derivative loan commitments aooiMard loan sale agreements are estimated usingntipated market price based
on pricing indications provided from syndicate bsinkhese commitments and agreements are categasaeglel 2. The fair value of
such instruments was nominal at each date presented
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value oNa@recurring Basis

Impaired Loans—Valuations of impaired loans are determined byawing collateral values or through discounted dbsh analyses
using a rate commensurate with the risk associaitcthe estimated cash flows. Assumptions regardiedit risk, cash flows and
discount rates are developed using available mark@imation and historical information. Certairputs used in appraisals and cash
flow analyses are not always observable, and thexéfnpaired loans are generally categorized aglLl&within the fair value
hierarchy.

Repossessed collateral The fair values of other real estate owned andratbtpossessed collateral are estimated basedappoaised
values less estimated costs to sell. Certain inpsgsl in appraisals are not always observablethamdfore repossessed collateral may
be categorized as Level 3 within the fair valugdrehy. When inputs used in appraisals are primabkervable, they are classified as
Level 2.

Fair Value of Other Financial Instrument

Cash and cash equivalentsThe fair value of cash, due from banks, interestring deposits and FHLB overnight deposits
approximates their relative book values, as thiesm€ial instruments have short maturities.

FHLB and Federal Reserve stoekThe carrying value of FHLB stock and Federal Resatock approximates fair value based on
redemption provisions of the FHLB and the Fedeegddive.

Loans—Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loarith similar financial characteristics. The fairwa of performing loans is
calculated by discounting scheduled cash flowsutinahe estimated maturity using estimated marsebdnt rates that reflect the
credit and interest rate risk inherent in the |0Hme estimates of maturity are based on the Conipéuistorical experience with
repayments for each loan classification, modifeesirequired, by an estimate of the effect of cureennomic conditions, lending
conditions and the effects of estimated prepayments

Loans held for sale-The fair value of loans held-for-sale is estimdteded on bid quotations received from loan dealers

Interest receivable—The fair value of this financial instrument appiroates the book value as this financial instruntergt a short
maturity. It is the Company’s policy to stop acagiinterest on loans past due by more than ninegg.drherefore, this financial
instrument has been adjusted for estimated cresit |

Deposits—The fair value of deposits with no stated matystych as noninterebearing demand deposits, savings, NOW account
money market accounts, is equal to the amount paysbdemand. The fair values of time depositsbased on the discounted value
of contractual cash flows. The discount rate isvested using the rates currently offered for degsos similar remaining maturities.
The fair value estimates do not include the betledit results from the low-cost funding providedtbg deposit liabilities compared to
the cost of borrowing funds in the market. If thatue were considered, the fair value of the Comsamet assets could increase.

Borrowings—The fair value of the Company’s borrowings witle fRHLB is estimated by discounting the cash flohwetgh maturity
or the next repricing date based on current ratasadble to the Company for borrowings with simitaaturities. The fair value of the
Company’s short-term borrowings, capital leasegattions, structured repurchase agreements andlmh@wings is estimated by
discounting the cash flows through maturity basedurrent rates available to the Company for bomge with similar maturities.

Off-Balance Sheet Credit-Related Instrumentsair values for off-balance-sheet, credit-relafedricial instruments are based on fees
currently charged to enter into similar agreememtang into account the remaining terms of theeagrents and the counterparties’
credit standing. The fair value of such instrumevés nominal at each date presented.
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarrring basis are summarized below.

June 30, 201
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level ¢
(Dollars in thousands
Assets
Securities availab-for-sale
U.S. Government agency securit $45,80¢ $ 0 $45,80¢ $ 0
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 87,45¢t 0 87,45t 0
Other asse—interest rate caf 1 0 1 0
Liabilities
Other liabilities<—interest rate swa $ 58C $ O $ 58C $ O
June 30, 201
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level &
(Dollars in thousands
Assets
Securities availab-for-sale
U.S. Government agency securit $48,73" $ 0 $48,73" $ 0
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 99,55¢ 0 99,55¢ 0
Equity securitie: 21¢€ 21¢€ 0 0
Trust preferred securitie 451 451 0 0
Other asse—interest rate caf 46 0 46 0
Liabilities
Other liabilities—interest rate swa $ 50: $ O $ 0 $ 502

Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring bas summarized below.

June 30, 201
Total Level 1 Level Z Level 3
(Dollars in thousands
Impaired loan: $1,10: $ 0 $ 0 $1,10:
Repossessed collate 834 0 0 834
June 30, 201
Total Level 1 Level Z Level 3
(Dollars in thousands
Impaired loan: $1,42¢ $ 0 $ 0 $1,42¢
Repossessed collate 69C 0 0 69C
Premise: 361 0 0 361
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The following table presents the estimated faiugadf the Company'’s financial instruments.

Carrying Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2
Amount Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Dollars in thousands

Financial asset:

Cash and cash equivalel $128,27: $128,27: $128,27: $ 0 $ 0
Available-for-sale securitie 133,26« 133,26« 0 133,26« 0
Regulatory stocl 5,47: 5,47: 0 5,47: 0
Loans held for sal 9,88: 9,89¢ 0 9,89¢ 0
Loans, ne 355,43( 374,06: 0 0 374,06:
Accrued interest receivab 1,84( 1,84( 0 1,84( 0
Interest rate caf 1 1 0 1 0
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 422,18t 425,78. 0 0 425,78
FHLB advance: 43,45( 45,747 0 45,747 0
Structured repurchase agreeme 66,18: 67,31« 0 67,31« 0
Shor-term borrowings 1,20¢ 1,20¢ 0 1,20¢ 0
Capital lease obligatio 1,911 2,20z 0 2,20z 0
Subordinated debentur 8,10¢ 8,591 0 0 8,591
Interest rate sway 58C 58C 0 58C 0
Carrying Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2
Amount Total Level 1 Level 2 _Level3
(Dollars in thousands
Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 83,93: $ 83,93 $83,93: $ 0 $ 0
Available-for-sale securitie 148,96. 148,96 0 148,96 0
Regulatory stocl 5,76( 5,76( 0 5,76( 0
Loans held for sal 5,17¢ 5,20¢ 0 5,20¢ 0
Loans, ne 309,47¢ 316,36 0 0 316,36
Accrued interest receivab 1,24« 1,24¢ 0 1,24¢ 0
Interest rate caf. 46 46 0 46 0
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 401,11¢ 403,48: 0 0 403,48:
FHLB advance: 43,92: 45,46t 0 45,46¢ 0
Structured repurchase agreeme 68,00¢ 69,36¢ 0 69,36+ 0
Other borrowing: 2,22¢ 2,28( 0 2,28( 0
Shor-term borrowings 2,51t 2,51¢ 0 2,51¢ 0
Capital lease obligatio 2,07t 2,30¢ 0 2,30¢ 0
Subordinated debentur 7,951 7,97¢ 0 0 7,97¢
Interest rate sway 50:< 502 0 0 502

20. Derivatives

The Company has stand alone derivative financitiments in the form of interest rate caps thawvdeheir value from a fee paid and are
adjusted to fair value based on index and strike end a swap agreement that derives its value fihe underlying interest rate. These
transactions involve both credit and market rishe Tiotional amounts are amounts on which calcuiatipayments and the value of the
derivative are based. Notional amounts do not ssmedirect credit exposures. Direct credit expessitimited to the net difference between
the calculated amounts to be received and pa#hyif Such differences, which represent the famevalf the derivative instruments, are
reflected on the Company’s balance sheet as demvassets and derivative liabilities.
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The Company is exposed to credit-related losséeirvent of nonperformance by the counterpanti¢sdse agreements. The Company
controls the credit risk of its financial contrattsough credit approvals, limits and monitoringgedures, and does not expect any
counterparties to fail their obligations. Institutal counterparties must have an investment gratbtcating and be approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors. The Company dealy with primary dealers. The Company’s credit expesan interest rate swaps is limited
to the net positive fair value and accrued inteoésill swaps with each counterparty.

Risk Management Polic—Hedging Instruments

The Company evaluates the effectiveness of ent@rtngany derivative instrument agreement by maaguhe cost of such an agreement in
relation to the reduction in net income volatiltjthin an assumed range of interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk Managem—Cash Flow Hedging Instruments

The Company uses long-term variable rate debtsasiae of funds for use in the Company’s lending iamestment activities and other
general business purposes. These debt obligatipuse the Company to variability in interest paytaetue to changes in interest rates. If
interest rates increase, interest expense incre@sasersely, if interest rates decrease, intengsénse decreases. Management believes it is
prudent to limit the variability of a portion okiinterest payments and, therefore, generally teedgmrtion of its variable-rate interest
payments. To meet this objective, management ahiete interest rate caps whereby the Company veseiariable interest payments above ¢
specified interest rate and swap agreements whéneb@ompany receives variable interest rate patsreard makes fixed interest rate
payments during the contract period.

The Company holds two interest rate caps that ex@irSeptember 30, 2014. The swap agreement psofadéhe Company to receive
payments at a variable rate determined by a spddifidex (three month LIBOR) in exchange for makpagments at a fixed rate.

Information pertaining to outstanding interest red@s and swap agreements used to hedge varisbidetat is as follows.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, no interésicap or swap agreements were terminated primatarity. Changes in the fair value of
interest rate caps and swaps designated as heidgtngments of the variability of cash flows assted with long-term debt are reported in
other comprehensive income. These amounts subsgaenreclassified into interest expense as i ydjustment in the same period in
which the related interest on the lotegm debt affects earnings. Risk management refsultbe year ended June 30, 2012 related to thaenbx
sheet hedging of long-term debt indicates thattdges were effective. The Company recorded inafr80 thousand and $44 thousand
related to hedge ineffectiveness during fiscal 2@ the 184 days ended June 30, 2011, respectiMayCompany expects approximately
$80 thousand to be reclassified as an offset &yést expense from OCI in the next twelve months.

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
Interest Interest Interest Interest
Rate Cag Rate Swa Rate Cag Rate Swa
(Dollars in thousands
Notional amoun $ 6,00( $10,00( $ 6,00( $10,00(
Weighted average pay re 4.69% 4.69%
Weighted average receive r: 2.3t% 2.22%
Strike rate based on three month LIB! 2.51% 2.51%
Weighted average maturity in ye: 2.2t 2.617 3.2t 3.67
Unrealized los: $ 69 $ 31t $ 45 $ 137
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The following sets forth the fair values and looatdf derivatives designated as hedging instrumg@atiéars in thousands).

June 30, 201 Asset Derivative!
Balance
Sheet Fair
Location Value
Interest rate caps Othel
asset $ 1

Liability Derivatives

Balance
Sheet Fair
Location Value
Interest rate swap Othel
liabilities $58C
June 30, 201 Asset Derivative!
Balance
Sheet Fair
Location Value
Interest rate caps Othel
asset $ 46
Liability Derivatives
Balance
Sheet Fair
Location Value
Interest rate swap Othel
liabilities $502

21. Troubled Asset Relief Capital Purchase Progran

On December 12, 2008, in connection with the Comisgmarticipation in the federal government’s TARRpital Purchase Program, the
Company issued 4,227 shares of Fixed Rate CumelB&vpetual Preferred Stock, Series A, liquidapi@ierence $1,000 per share (tisefie:
A Preferred Stock”), and a warrant to purchase & ghares of the Company’s common stock (the “TARERrant”) to the Treasury for
aggregate proceeds of $4.2 million.

The Series A Preferred Stock qualifies as Tierfditahand pays cumulative dividends at a rate ofggoeannum until February 14, 2014.
Thereafter, the dividend rate will increase to 986 gnnum. On and after February 15, 2012, the Coynpeay, at its option, redeem shares of
Series A Preferred Stock, in whole or in part,rat ime and from time to time, for cash at a pearslamount equal to the sum of the liquide
preference per share plus any accrued and unpadedis. Prior to February 15, 2012, the SerieseffdPred Stock may have been redeemed
in whole or in part, at the option of the Compasybject to consultation with the Company’s primgageral banking regulator, provided that
any partial redemption was for at least 25% ofisisee price of the Series A Preferred Stock. Amgeneption of a share of Series A Preferred
Stock would be at one hundred percent (100%) a$stse price, plus any accrued and unpaid dividendsthe Series A Preferred Stock ma
redeemed without regard to whether the Companydypaced such funds from any other source, or yonaaiting period.

The TARP Warrant is exercisable at $9.33 per sabamy time on or before December 12, 2018. Thebaurof shares of the Company’s
common stock issuable upon exercise of the TARPrédaiand the exercise price per share will be &eljLi§ specific events occur. Treasury
has agreed not to exercise voting power with ragpeany shares of common stock issued upon exeofithe TARP Warrant. Neither the
Series A Preferred Stock nor the TARP Warrant béllsubject to any contractual restrictions on feangxcept that the Treasury may not
transfer a portion of the Warrant with respeciioexercise the TARP Warrant for, more than oné-dfahe shares of common stock
underlying the TARP Warrant prior to the date orichithe Company has received aggregate gross mecéeot less than $4.2 million from
one or more qualified equity offerings.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out an evaluation, under tpersision and with the participation of the Companpanagement, including the
Company'’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finah®fficer, of the effectiveness of its disclosamntrols and procedures, as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e). @apen the evaluation, the Company’s Chief Exeeuificer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that as of June 30, 2012, the @omy’s disclosure controls and procedures are tefeedisclosure controls and
procedures are controls and procedures that aignéekto ensure that information required to beldsed in the Company’s reports filed
or submitted under the Exchange Act is recordeat;gssed, summarized and reported within the timeggespecified in the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. In amgino change in our internal control over finahceporting (as defined in

Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Adi9#4) occurred during the fourth quarter of oacéil year ended June 30, 2012 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, our internal control over fir@al reporting.

An evaluation was performed under the supervisihwith the participation of the Company’s managetniecluding its Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, tieteffectiveness of the design and operation ofrdarnal controls and procedures o
financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(kthe Exchange Act) as of the end of the periodeced by this annual report.

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal controls over finanoggarting. The standard measures
adopted by management in making its evaluatiorthereneasures imnterest Control—Integrated Framewonublished by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread@ommission. We do not expect that our disclosorgrols and procedures will
prevent all error and all fraud. A control systara,matter how well designed and operated, can geconly reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the control systembjective will be met. Further, the design obateol system must reflect the fact that thererasaurc
constraints, and the benefits of controls mustdresiclered relative to their costs. Because ofriherient limitations in all control syster
no evaluation of controls can provide absolute @sgte that all control issues, errors, and instaptéraud, if any, within the Company
have been or will be detected. The inherent linutet include, among other things, the realitie$ jindgments in decision-making can be
faulty, and that breakdowns can occur becausengilsierror or mistake. Controls and procedures @gobe circumvented by the
individual acts of some persons, by collusion af tw more people, or by management or employeeideeof the controls and
procedures. The design of any system of contralspaocedures is based in part upon certain assangdbout the likelihood of future
events, and there can be no assurance that amndeiflisucceed in achieving its stated goals uradlgpotential future conditions. Over
time, controls and procedures may become inadedpeateuse of changes in conditions or deterioratidhe degree of compliance with
its policies or procedures. Because of the inhdnaitiation in a cost-effective control system, stetements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected.

Based on their evaluation of disclosure control$ mmocedures, our Chief Executive Officer and CRiefancial Officer concluded,
subject to the limitations described above, thatioiernal controls and procedures over finanaglorting as of the end of the period
covered by this report were effective and thatdthveere no material weaknesses.

There have been no significant changes in ournaterontrols, or in other factors that could sigrahtly affect our internal controls,
subsequent to the date the Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer completed their evailo@at including any corrective actio
with regard to significant deficiencies or materaaknesses.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of the Company’s registered public accogntirm regarding internal controls
over financial reporting. Management's report wassubject to attestation by
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the Company'’s registered public accounting firmspiant to rules of the Securities Exchange Comnrigsiat permit the Company to
provide only management's report in this annuabrep

Item 9B.  Other Information.
None.

120



Table of Contents

PART IlI

ltem 10.  Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by Item 10 is includedhe Proxy Statement relating to our 2012 Annual fihgeof Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatior

The information required by Item 11 is includedhe Proxy Statement relating to our 2012 Annual fihgeof Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andvlanagement and Related Stockholder

The information required by Item 12 is includedhe Proxy Statement relating to our 2012 Annual fihgeof Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transaction

The information required by Item 13 is includedhe Proxy Statement relating to our 2012 Annual fihgeof Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Service

The information required by Item 14 is includedhe Proxy Statement relating to our 2012 Annual fihgeof Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 15.

(@)

(b)
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3.1

3.2

3.2

4.1

10.1+

10.2+

10.3+

10.4+

10.5+

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

Financial Statements and Financial Statement S¢be
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2012CHrid

Consolidated Statements of Income for the year@ddee 30, 2012, 184 days ended June 30, 2011,8&indays ended
December 28, 2010

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomtéoyear ended June 30, 2012, 184 days ended0u2€11, and 181 days
ended December 28, 2010

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity for the year ended June 30, 2012, 184 daged June 30, 2011, and
181 days ended December 28, 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the geded June 30, 2012, 184 days ended June 30, 204181 days ended
December 28, 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Exhibits

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Marct2800, by and between Northeast Bancorp and FHB&ion LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of NoasEeBancorp’'s Form 8-K filed with Securities andcEange Commission on
March 31, 2010)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation ofthNeast Bancorp (incorporated by reference toliBi1 of Northeast
Bancor|'s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 2011

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restatditlas of Incorporation of Northeast Bancorp (inmarated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of Northeast Bancc's Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 22, 2011

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Northeast Bancagm(porated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of Northé&sencorp’s Current
Report on Form-K filed on January 5, 201:

Registration Rights Schedule to the Agreement dad & Merger, dated as of March 30, 2010, by agttvben Northeast Bancc
and FHB Formation LLC (incorporated by referencétmendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A of Northeast Bapciiled on March
19, 2012)

Form of Indemnification Agreement, dated as of Delger 29, 2010, by and between Northeast Bancorgacikl of the members
of the Board (incorporated by reference to Exhilitl of Northeast Bancorp’s Current Report on F8fkafiled on January 5,
2011).

Employment Agreement, dated December 30, 2010ntybatween Northeast Bancorp and Richard Waynerfaocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Northeast Ban¢s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 2011

Employment Agreement, dated December 30, 2010nbybatween Northeast Bancorp and Claire Bean (fucated by referenc
to Exhibit 10.3 of Northeast Banc¢s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 2011

Employment Agreement, dated December 30, 2010ntybatween Northeast Bancorp and Heather Campicorforated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Northeast Ban¢s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 2011

Non-Qualified Time-Based Stock Option Agreement, dddedember 29, 2010, by and between Northeast Baraswt Richard
Wayne (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Bloftheast Banco’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 2011
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Non-Qualified Performance-Based Stock Option Agreemgatied December 29, 2010, by and between NortBeastorp and
Richard Wayne (incorporated by reference to ExHibi6 of Northeast Bancorp’s Current Report on F8#filed on January !
2011).

Non-Qualified Time-Based Stock Option Agreement, dddedember 29, 2010, by and between Northeast Bpragat Claire
Bean (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Roftheast Bancor's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 2011

Non-Qualified Performance-Based Stock Option Agreenmdsitied December 29, 2010, by and between NortBeastorp and
Claire Bean (incorporated by reference to ExhiBiBlof Northeast Bancorp’s Current Report on Forkafded on January 5,
2011).

Non-Qualified Time-Based Stock Option Agreement, dddedember 29, 2010, by and between Northeast Bpraoat Heather
Campion (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16f.8lortheast Bancorp’s Current Report on Form 8kdfon January 5,
2011).

Non-Qualified Performance-Based Stock Option Agreenmdsitied December 29, 2010, by and between NortBeastorp and
Heather Campion (incorporated by reference to Bxhih10 of Northeast Bancorp’s Current Report omfr8-K filed on
January 5, 2011

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated Decemlfer2B10, by and between Northeast Bancorp and RGauber
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of Me#st Bancor's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 2011

Time-Based Stock Appreciation Rights Agreemented&ecember 29, 2010, by and between the Compahilatthew Botein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of Me#st Bancor's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 2011

Performance-Based Stock Appreciation Rights Agrednuated December 29, 2010, by and between NatiBzmcorp and
Matthew Botein (incorporated by reference to Exthifi. 13 of Northeast Bancorp’s Current Report om#8-K filed on January
5, 2011).

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated DecembgP@®0, by and between Northeast Bancorp and JBxelesnater
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of Na@st Bancor's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 5, 2011

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, daBetember 29, 2010, by and between Northeast Bareoat each of
Pender Lazenby, Robert Johnson and Marcel Blaisiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of Nortliéancorp’s Current
Report on Form-K filed on January 5, 2011

Amended and Restated Performance-Based Stock AppoecRights Agreement, dated March 24, 2011, iy laetween
Northeast Bancorp and Matthew Botein (incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 10.1 of Northeast Ban’s Current Report on
Form &K filed on March 30, 2011

Non-Qualified Time-Based Stock Option Agreement, dafksdch 24, 2011, by and between Northeast Bancwtg\atthew
Botein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10t Northeast Bancor's Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 30, 2011

Non-Qualified Performance-Based Stock Option Agreemastied March 24, 2011, by and between Northeastd@a and
Matthew Botein (incorporated by reference to Exhilfi.3 of Northeast Bancorp’s Current Report omi8¢K filed on March
30, 2011).

Subsidiaries of Northeast Bancc
Consent of Shatswell, MacLeod & Company, F

Rule 13+14(a)/15+14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Offigeursuant to Section 302 of the SarbiOxley Act of 2002
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31.2* sg(l)ez 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chigfancial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of tlzetnes-Oxley Act of

32.1** Rule 13a-14(b) Certifications of the Chief Execat®fficer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant &cfon 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1* Certification pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) of BEmmergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, agadec

101.INS XBRL Instance Document*

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documer

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutiie

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunt&n

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documer

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenitt

* Filed herewith
**  Furnished herewit
+ Management contract or compensatory plan or agnet
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredutyp authorized.

NORTHEAST BANCORF

Date: September 28, 2012 By: /s RICHARD W AYNE
Richard Wayne
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the dattisdted.

Signature Title Date
/s| RICHARD W AYNE Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal September 28, 2012
Richard Wayne Executive Officer,
/s| CLARE S. BEAN Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating September 28, 2012
Claire S. Bean Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

/s/ ROBERTG LAUBER Chairman of the Board September 28, 2012
Robert Glauber

/s|  MATTHEW B OTEIN Director September 28, 2012
Matthew Botein

/sl CHERYL D ORSEY Director September 28, 2012
Cheryl Dorsey

/s/ PETERM c C LEAN Director September 28, 2012

Peter McClean

/sl JoHNC. ORESTIS Director September 28, 2012
John C. Orestis

/s|  ADAM SHAPIRO Director September 28, 2012
Adam Shapiro

/s/ DAVID T ANNER Director September 28, 2012

David Tanner

/s JubITH E. W ALLINGFORD Director September 28, 2012
Judith E. Wallingford
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Exhibit 21. Subsidiaries of Registrant

Name of Subsidiar

ASI Data Services, Inc.

Northeast Bank (and its 100% owned subsidiariestiidast Bank Insuranc
Group, Inc.; 200 Elm Realty, LLC; 500 Pine RealtyC)

Jurisdiction

of Incorporatiol
Maine

Maine

Year
Acquired
or Forme

199¢

1987

Percentage
of Voting

Securities Owne

10C%

10C%



Exhibit 23

!
S[HATSWEI,.I,.. MacLEOD & COMPANY, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors
Northeast Bancor
Lewiston, Maine

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-18D2h8 the Registration Statements on
Form S-8 (Nos. 333-172974, 333-171466 and 333-13pdbNortheast Bancorp of our report dated Septsnib, 2012, related to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of NorthBasicorp and Subsidiary included in the Annual Reporm 10K for the year ended June !
2012 (Successor), for the period from Decembe@90 through June 30, 2011 (Successor), and thedpieom July 1, 2010 through
December 28, 2010 (Predecessor).

SHATSWELL, MacLEOD & COMPANY, P.C.

West Peabody, Massachusetts
September 24, 2012

B3 PINE STREET » WEST PEABODY, MASSACHUSETTS 01960-3635 = TELEPHOME (878) 535-0206 * FACSIMILE (978) 535-9908
smo@shatswall.com wievw.shatawell. com



Exhibit 31.1.

CERTIFICATION

I, Richard Wayne, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Northeast Bancorg

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiom@iny untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report; ar

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentiusi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuadrig that has materially affected, or is reasopndikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tohover financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evaituat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

September 28, 2012 /s/ Richard Wayn

Richard Wayne
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Claire Bean, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Northeast Bancorg

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiom@iny untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report; ar

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegggnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s mos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuadrig that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tohover financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evaituat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

September 28, 2012 /sl Claire Beal

Claire Bean
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Sectio&3D

In connection with the report of Northeast Bancfihg “Company”) on Form 10-K for the annual peraaling June 30, 2012 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateh@he “Report”), each of the undersigned officefshe Company hereby certify,
pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(b) and 18@J.8350, that to the best of such officer's knowled

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange A&384; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company for the dates and the periods covereddoRéport.

September 28, 2012 /sl Richard Wayn
Richard Wayne
Chief Executive Office

/sl Claire Bean

Claire Bean
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 99.1

Certification Required by Section 111(b)(4) of the
Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA

We, Richard Wayne, Chief Executive Officer, andr€lBean, Chief Financial Officer, of Northeast Bamc(“Northeast”), certify, based
on information provided to us by the relevant empks and directors of Northeast and its subsidiatiiat:

0] The compensation committee of Northeast hasudised, reviewed and evaluated with senior risker® at least every six
months during any part of the fiscal year ended B0y 2012 (the “Applicable Period”), senior exésubfficer (“SEQ”)
compensation plans and employee compensation atahthe risks these plans pose to Northe

(i)  The compensation committee of Northeast hastified and limited during the Applicable Periaahy features of the SEO
compensation plans that could lead SEOs to takeag®sary and excessive risks that could threatevetie of Northeast and
has identified any features of the employee comg@ns plans that pose risks to Northeast and hatelil those features to
ensure that Northeast is not unnecessarily exposegsks;

(i)  The compensation committee has reviewedeast every six months during the Applicable Peribd,terms of each employee
compensation plan and identified any features eflan that could encourage the manipulation obnteg earnings of Northeast
to enhance the compensation of an employee ankhtited any such feature

(iv)  The compensation committee of Northeast welitify to the reviews of the SEO compensation plams employee compensation
plans required under (i) and (iii) aboy

(v)  The compensation committee of Northeast witlyide a narrative description of how it limited ohg the Applicable Period the

features in

a. SEO compensation plans that could lead SEGk#unnecessary and excessive risks that couldtémehe value of
Northeast

b. Employee compensation plans that unnecessarilysexiortheast to risks; ai

C. Employee compensation plans that could encouhegmanipulation of reported earnings of Northéaginhance the

compensation of an employe

(vi)  Northeast has required that bonus payments to SE@sy of the next 20 most highly compensated eysas, as defined in tl
regulations and guidance established under Setfidrof EESA (bonus payments), be subject to a exgaoor “clawback”
provision during the Applicable Period if the borpa/ments were based on materially inaccurate €inhstatements or any
other materially inaccurate performance metriceciat,

(vii)  Northeast has prohibited any golden parachute patras defined in the regulations and guidancebéskeed under Section 1:
of EESA, to an SEO or any of the next five moshhigcompensated employees during the ApplicabléBE

(viii) Northeast has limited bonus payments to its apiplicamployee in accordance with Section 111 of EBS8éthe regulations al
guidance established thereunder during the ApdkcBbriod;

(ix)  Northeast and its employees have complied witle’toessive or luxury expenditures policy, as defiineithe regulations ar
guidance established under Section 111 of EESAngtine Applicable Period; and any expenses thasyant to the policy,
required approval of the board of directors, a cdttex® of the board of directors, an SEO, or an etiee officer with a similar
level of responsibility were properly approvt

(x) Northeast will permit a nc-binding shareholder resolution in compliance vaitty applicable federal securities rules and
regulations on the disclosures provided under¢hderal securities laws related to SEO compensaaahor accrued during the
Applicable Period



(xi)  Northeast will disclose the amount, nature, antfjoation for the offering during the ApplicablesRod, of any perquisites, .
defined in the regulations and guidance establisinelér Section 111 of EESA, whose total value eds&25,000 for any
employee who is subject to the bonus payment Itioita identified in paragraph (viii

(xii)  Northeast will disclose whether Northeast, the BazrDirectors of Northeast or the compensation mittee of Northeast he
engaged during the Applicable Period, a compensatosultant; and the services the compensatiosuttamt or any affiliate of
the compensation consultant provided during thisode

(xiii) Northeast has prohibited the payment of any «-ups, as defined in the regulations and guidantabkshed under Section 111
of EESA, to the SEOs and the next 20 most highiymensated employees during the Applicable Pe

(xiv) Northeast has substantially complied with all ottegjuirements related to employee compensatioratiegprovided in th
agreement between Northeast and Treasury, inclidiggamendment

(xv) Northeast has submitted to Treasury a completeaaagdrate list of the SEOs and the next 20 mosthighmpensated employe
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, with tre-8EOs ranked in descending order of level of ahoompensation and with
the name, title, and employer of each SEO and highty compensated employee identified;

(xvi) We understand that a knowing and willful flsr fraudulent statement made in connection withdertification may be
punished by fine, imprisonment or both. (See, f@meple, 18 USC 1001

Executed this 28th day of September, 2012.

/s/ Richard Wayn
Richard Wayne

Chief Executive Officer
NORTHEAST BANCORF

/sl Claire S. Bea

Claire S. Bean

Chief Financial Officer
NORTHEAST BANCORF




